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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property Investment Trust
plcis to maximise shareholders' total returns by investing
in the shares and securities of property companies and
property related businesses internationally and also in

investment property located in the UK.

Introduction

TR Property Irvestment Trust plc (the ‘Company’) was
farmed in 1905 and khas been a dedicated property
investor since 1982 The Company is an Investment
Trastand its shares are premium listed on the London
Stock Exchange

Benchmark
The berchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Returr Index in sterling

Investment policy

Tre Company seeks to acnieve its objective by
investing in shares and securities of property
companies and property related busiresses on an
international basis, althgugh, with a pan-European
berchmark. the majority of the investments will be
located in that geographical area The Company also
irvests in nvestment property located in the UK onvy.

Further detai's of the Investrent Policies, the Asset
Allocation Guiderines and policies regarding the use of
gearing are set out In the Strategic Report on page 34
and tne entire portfc'io is stown on page 27,

Investment manager

Columbia Threadneedle Investment Busness Limited
acts as the Company's alternative investment

furd rranager (AIFM) with portfolic maragement
delegated to Thames River Capital LLP (the 'Portfoio
Marager or the ‘Manager’} Marcus Phayre-Mudge
has managed the portfolio since 1 Aprit 2011 and been
part of tne Fund Management team since 1997
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Independent board

Tke Directors are ail independent of the Manager

and meet reguiarly to consider investment strategy,

to monitor agherence to the stated objective and
investment policies and to review Investment
performarce Detalls of how the Board operates and
fulfils 1ts responsibilities are set out In the Report of tre
Directors an page 47.

Performance

The Firancial Highhgnts for the current year are set cut
on page 2 and Historicai Performance car be found on
page 3 Key Performance Indicators are set out in the
Strategic Report on pages 35 and 36

Retail investors advised by IFAs

The Company currently conducts its affairs so that

its shares can be recommerded by Indeperdert
Financial Advisers {'IFAs" inthe UK tg retall investors
in accordance with the Fnancial Conduct Authanty
('FCAY rules inrelation to non-mainstream vestment
products ard intends to continue to do so. The shares
are excluded from the FCAs restrictions, which apply
to non-mairstream investment procducts, because they
are shares N an autnorised nvestment trast company.

Further information

General sharehoider iInformation and detaiis of how
to invest in the Company, including investment
through an ISA or savings scheme, can be found on
pages 118 onwards Tris information can also be
found on the Company's website www trproperty com
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Financial highlights and performance

Year ended
31 March

2023

Balance Sheet

Net asset value per share 305.13p
Shareholders’ funds (£'000} 968,346
Shares in issue at the end of the year {m) 317.4
Net debt'” 12.3%
Share Price o

Share price 279.00p
Market capitalisation £885m

Year ended
31 March
2023
Revenue
Revenue earnings per share 17.22p
Dividends?
Interrm dividend per share 565p
Final dividend per share 9.85p
Total dividend per share 15.50p
Performance: Assets éhd Benchmark o
Net Asset Value total return™ -35.5%
Benchmark total return’ -34.0%
Share price total return- -36.2%
Ongeing Chargesie )
Including performance fee 0.73%
Excluding perfarmance fee 0.73%
Excluding performance fee and direct property costs 0.67%
1 Netdebt stretole vaued® 2annstes ans i noud ng nat cna expasurelo CFLs and “ota Retund
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Year ended
31 March
2022

492 43p
1,562,739
3174
10.2%

456.50p
£1.449m

Year ended
31 March
2022

136%p

5.30p
9 20p
14.50p

+27 4%
+12 7%
+19 9%

219%
0 60%
0.58%

ereeantex d o denddate

it

Change

-38 0%
-38 0%
+0.0%

-38.9%
-38 9%

Change

+258%

+6.6%
+7. 1%
+6.9%
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Historical performance

for the vear ended 21 Marc™ 2373

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 20178 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Performance for the year:
E
Total Return (%) 2
NAY 215 224 283 82 80 155 91 115 207 214 355 5
Benchmark - 178 149 233 54 65 102 56 140 159 122 -340 g
Share Price 258 377 295 16 91 255 62 168 283 199 362
Sharehoiders’ funds (£'m)
Ordinary shares 684 809 1010 1065 1118 125 1328 1136 1326 1563 968
G.
(=)
F3
Ordinary shares 3
=1
Net revenue (pence per 2
share)
Earnings 674 805 889 836 1138 1322 1458 1462 1225 1369 1722
Dividends " 700 745 770 B35 1050 1220 1350 1400 7420 450 1550
NAY per share {(pence) 215.25 25494 31812 33596 35242 39564 41854 35811 41787 49243 30513
Share price (pence) 186.30 24750 310.50 207.50 314.50 382.50 139400 317.50 39250 45650 279.00 -
2
Indices of growth g
(RTINS IS R TR PR I 2
©
Share price - 100 183 167 160 169 205 211 170 211 245 133 g
Net Asset Value 100 118 148 156 164 184 194 166 194 229 142 @
Dividend Net " 100 106 110 119 150 174 193 200 203 207 221
RPI 100 102 103 105 108 112 115 118 119 130 148
Benchmark > 100 107 128 131 1% 146 149 124 741 155 99

Figures have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.

{A) Tme NAV Total Return for each year 1s caicu ated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Coripany from the relevant ex dividend dete Dividends
are deered 1o be reinvested at the ex-div-dend date as this 's t1e protoco! used by the Company's bencirmark end otner indces s 1s considered to be an
Allernetive Performance Measure 23 def ned on page 106

{B) Benchmark ndex composite ndex conpr sing the FTSL EPRA/NAREIT Deveioped Lurope TR ndes up to March 2013, 2nd thereafier the FTSE FPRA/NARE!T
Ceveloped Europe Capped Index Source Thames River Capital

{C)] The Share Prce Tolal Returnis calcu.ated by ieinvestng tie dvidends i the snares of the Compeny fiom the relevant ex-di dend dale
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Chairman’s statement

#§ Markets have had to
abscrb huge increases
in the cost of capital and
real estate equities have
suffered consequential price
adjustments. However, this is
an unusual cycle where both
interest rates and rents are
rising. In many of our markets
property fundamentals are
sound and we see few signs
of over-supply.

David Watson

This has been a very difficult year for the property
market, for property shares and for the Company Net
asset value total return was -35.5%, slightly worse than
our benchmark at -34 0% The share price total return
was -36.2% as the discount between the NAY and the
share price widened slhightly, reflecting weaker investor
sentiment as a whole. Although the change in the second
half was modest (first half NAV total return of -33.6%
March to September 2022) we have experienced some
very dramatic price action in the intervening six months.

Macro-economic forces cortinued to dominate. The
drivers and trajectery of inflation remained everyone's
focus. Central bankers appeared as unsure of the
censeguences of their actions as market participants
Volatility remained elevated. Whilst our total return
figures are clearly very poor, the autumnal rally in
property stocks, somewhat punctured (in the UK) by
political events in Novernber, did resume in earnest in
January. This three month rally, based squarely on a
change in the expected trajectory of interest rates, gave
us, at last, ataste of a more optimistic attitude towards
our asset class The last few weeks of the financia: year
saw market sentiment damaged by the failure of two
regional banks in the US and the final take out of Credit
Suisse This raised knee-jerk concerns of bank cantagion
which here feels sensationalist given the enhanced levels
of reguiatory oversight and controis on European banks
post the global financial crisis.

Your iInvestment management team have a long track
record of alpha generation through dynamic stock
selection. Itis fair to say that the investment dynamics of
the last 12 months have not been their preferred context
The dramatic price falis and bear market rallies have
been largely undiscriminating between the good and the
bad Forced sellers were interested in volume not price.
Small caps, as usual, struggied in these conditions This
macro-driven environment 1s hopefully, finaily, abating as
nvestors appear increasingly interested in differentiating
between indvidual companies’ prospects following the
significant correction

Our investment universe has now seen a number of
cormpanies who have suspended or reduced dividends.
These were, inthe ma'r. the likely suspects and it would
be a surprise 1o us If many others now emerge given the
economic cycte One of the core attractions of rea- estate
investing 1s the potertial of 'ndexed income and this 1s
showirg throLgh and remains our focas

TF Progerty Irvestmert Trust



Earmings per share increased by 26% from 13 68p per
share to 17.22p Thisis an all-tme high. Although
company earmings did in general recover o pre-
Covid-19 levels, our headline earnings were further
flattered by changes in the timing of some dividend
payments More detail of this is set out inthe
Manager's report

The Beard is pleased to announce a final dividend

of 9.85p taking the full year dividend ta 15 5Up,
representing a € 9% increase. In determining the
dividend the Board has been very sensitive to investor
appetite for ncome but has also been conscious

of the underlying income growth and the potential
impact of interest and exchange rates on future
eamings.

Following a record level of earnings in 2022/23, the
Board expect to report a reduction in net income for
the yearto 2023/24. This is not only as a result of the
non-recurrence of certain items which enhanced the
current year earnings, but also because of the number
of companies that have announced dividend cuts or
suspensions. All companies have had to adjust to the
change in the price of debt. For some the impact has
been immediate, while for others it will be somewhat
delayed as they continue to benefit from historic
fixed rates. However, on the income side of the
equation, index-linked rents will benefit. Companies
need 10 balance the pluses and minuses and some
have reacted quickly and cautiously to protect their
balance sheets. The medium to longer-term outlook
for interest rates is difficult to predict so it could be

Ordinary Shate Class Performance: Total Return over 10 years {rebased)

B Benchmark Total Return 8 TR Property Share Price Total Return
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a while before companies feel confident about the
longer-term outlook.

Gearing at 12.3% 1s an almost identical figure to that
at the half year. Inevitably these numhbers are just
snapshots in time; the level of gearing has varied in
response to the market volatility and as investment
opportunities have occurred.

sterling weakened over the year by just over 4%. this
marginally enhanced our mcome account as non-
sterling dividends were worth more 1n sterling terms.

As our balance sheet is denominated in sterling a
weaker pound served to help the reported value of
non-sterling assets. The balance sheet exposure
remains materially in line with the benchmark as we
hedge exposure to match the benchmark.
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The discount of the share price to the NAV widened
slightly over the year from -7.3% to -8.6%. However,
the spread over the year has been much wider,
swinging between close to-1% and over -10%.

This volatility is indicative of the rapid changes in
sentiment towards the sector. The average over the
year under review was -5.8%, close to the 10-year
average of -4 9% and an improvement on the -6.6%
average since the invasion of Ukraine.

SIUILLIILLS |BIDURLHY

In light of the transient nature of the discount
volatility, no share buy-backs orissues were made
during the year
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Chairman’'s statement
continued

I reported at the half year that we had commenced
the search for a new Director who would broaden
and strengthen the Board and aad diversity of age,
experience and ethnicity, In January this year we
were delighted to announce the appointment of
Busola Sodeinde to the Board as an independent
Non-Executive Director and we have greatly
appreciated her early insight and perspectiveona
wide range of issues.

We also announced my intention to step down from
the Board with effect from the conclusion of the
forthcoming AGM. As announced, Kate Bolsover
will succeed me as Chairman and Tim Gilibanks will
succeed Kate as Senior independent Director

ESG reports within annual accounts are becarning
longer and contain more and more detail. This

is wholly appropriate for an operating company

and we welcome the additional disclosure. As an
investment trust company and primarily an investor
in companies, we have 1o think about what ESG
should mean for us.

Our ESG approach covers three areas. Firstly, the
governance and policies which apply directly to the
investment trust as a Company under the direct
control of the Board. Secondly, ESG considerations
as part of the investment process for our equity
portfolio adopted by our Manager Although our
Manager cannot have any direct control over ESG
policies in underlying investee companies, it can, and
does, use its influence carefully through corporate
voting and engagement with the companies in
which we invest Thirdly, our Manager does have
control over our direct property portfolic and here we
continue to drive for greater energy efficiency and
environmental care in all that we do

Our Responsibie Investmert Report on pages 16 to
25 sets out our approach in each of these areas with
some case study examples This s of course an area
of active evolut'on

o

Macro considerations continue to dominate. Markets
have had to absorb a huge adjustment in the cost of
capital and real estate equities have certainly borme their
share of price adjustments. However, this is an unusual
cycle where both rates and rents are rising. In many of
our areas of focus, real estate market fundamentals are
sound and we see few signs of over-supply. Our central
assumptionis that the interest rate cycle will peak this
year but that inflation will remain above central banks'
targets. Listed property companies are generally more
conservatively geared than their private counterparts
and this should stand them in good stead. The sector
has been hit hard and many of our companies are
trading at large discounts to asset values that have

also been recalibrated. As in previous cycles, if the
sector is undervalued then private capital will be guick

to step in. Just after the year end, Industrials REIT, one
of the Company’s 10 largest holdings, announced a
recommended bid for cash at a 40% premium to the
undisturbed share price More recently in early May,
Civitas, the social housing tandlord announced a cash bid
from an Asian conglomerate at a similar premium These
businesses are chalk and cheese but both have proved
attractive to very different groups of investors. These
events remind us that, for many, real estateis seen as a
crucial part of the investment jigsaw particularly in these
inflationary times

David Watson

TP Froperty trvestmert Trust
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Manager's report

For a sector where returns are
anchored by income, these
levels of volatility and multiple
directional shifts are almost
unparalleled. The whole
period has been dominated
by the ebbs and flows around
Interest rate expectations

and real estate fundamentals
have taken the proverbial
back seat. However, looking
forward, we anticipate a
renewed focus on those
sectors offering rental growth.

Marcus Phayre-Mudge

H

The Company’s net asset value (NAY') total return for

the 12 months to 31 March 2023 was -35.5%, whilst the
benchmark, FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe TR (in
GBEP), fell -34 0%. These figures are clearly disappointing
but not materiaity different from those reported at the

half year, where the NAV had fallen -33 6% in the first six
maonths of the financial year. Equally important to note

is that these figures are snapshots in very volatile times.
To illustrate the point, the first four months of the second
half of the financial year (i.e. Uctober to January) saw our
universe rally +14 5% only 1o then give up all of those gains
inthe subsequent nine weeks. The end result was a finish
10 the year which was marginally worse than where we
were at the half year stage.

In the half year review, | wrote that shareholders will

no doubt be concerned that given the scale of the
correction, the direction of travel was cbvious and more
protective action should have been taken. It always looks
clear in hindsight but as we walk through the year in the
next few paragraphs, the dramatic swings in sentiment
will help explzin some of the difficulties we faced in
trying to rotate the portfolic into the headwinds, avoid the
rip currents but then also catch the spring tides of
sentiment recovery

The first guarter of the financial year saw the secter

fall 24% as investors really focused on the impact of
rising interest rates. However, you could still have made
money over a four-week period (in May and early June)
and this highlights the sense of sentiment rather than
facts driving markets in mid-2022. Everyone became
central bank-focused whilst real estate fundamentals
were ignored. July saw a strong reversal (+9.5%) as bond
markets responded to the theme that rising interest rates
were having the required deflationary effect. However,
the summer break was followed by hawkish statements
from the US Federal Reserve at Jackson Hole and our
benchmark fell -30% between mid-August and mid-
October as investors began to believe the ‘higher for
longer’ mantra. This severe bout of pessimism was

then followed by a +25% rally in pan-European property
stocks between mid-October and the end of January.
The tzil end of the financial year saw this recovery then
ebb away with the sector falling 13% in the last two
months of the financial year.
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Manager's report
continued

Benchmark Performance

W F7SE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe Capped Total Return Net GBF {Caily)
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For a 'value’ sector where returns are driven — year

in, year out — by income, these levels of volatility and
multiple directicnal shifts are almost unparalleled. what

IS happening? Essentially, the whole period has been
dominated by the ebbs and flows around interest rate
expectations and bond market behaviour Real estate
fundamentals have taken the proverbial back seat. A
longstanding real estate equity market observer with over
30 years' experience recently wrote to clients ‘I can't recall
a period of time when capital values have fallen so sharply
and yet occupier dernand in most sectors has remained
pretty robust’. | have reproduced the statement verbatim
as it neatly encapsulates the environment we find
ourselves in. In other words, yields are rising but so are
rents, this is atypical. It is now clear that, through 2022, 1
placed too much emphasis on this quality of earnings (and
indeed earnings growth) in many of our companies. The
rarket paid little heed, choasing to focus on the impact of
rising yields/capitaiisation rates on asset values,

The speed at which centrai banks responded, as
inflat:on gathered pace, took many participants by
surprise. The rising cost of debt affected all property
stocks, but it had the greatest impact on two particular
cohorts of companies. Those companies which had
successfully utilised unsecured bond market financing
now discovered that this source of (re)financing was
effectively shut. German residential businesses,
particu:arly the larger ones, Vonovia, LEG and the
more diversified Aroundtown (part owner of Grand
Criy Properties), are ali seeing their cost of debt rise
dramatically as the expiry of existing bonds require
refinancing Tne other heavily impacted group were
those with h:gher ‘oan to value compounded by high
teveis of floating rate debt. The impact on earnings

for this group has heen dramatic and the majority of
Swedish companies fail into this category Both these

-

a3

Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-27 Dec-22 Jan-23 Fen-23 Mar-22

cohorts share a couple of similar cutcomes, firstly, those
companies which have reduced or suspended dividends
are disproportionately represented and secondly, these
two groups have experienced the greatest volatility within
our universe. To lllustrate the point, Swedish property
companies collectively fell 40 5% in the year to 31 March
2023 however, within that peniod there were three sharp
bear market railies of +17% (May), +39% (July to mid-
August) and +53% (mid-October to the end of January)
These groups were highly susceptible to changes in
sentiment towards the outlook for rates and margin on
new (or refinanced) debt instruments.

Previously, | have written about the merits of the market
fundamentats of German residential. The vast supply/
demand imbalance ard the persistent widening of the
gap between regulated rents and open market values
remains in place. What has been most frustrating 1s that
our largest relative position in that area is Phoenix Spree
Deutschland, which has no refinancing requirements
until 2026 and is a market minnow (portfolio value less
than £750m) where ail sales, however few, will make a
difference performed in line with its larger cousins.

Collectively the market capitalisation of the German
residential businesses reduced by 57%. Meanwhile, the
Jnderlying asset values have corrected less than 10% in the
year and top line earnings have grown with vacancy levels
stable and the mistspegrel’ (the rent table) continuing to
Increase rerts, albeit at a sub-inflationary rate. The asset
class offers consistently Iow vacancy, steady rentai growth
and the opportunity to move to market rents through
refurbishment or sales to owner-occupiers. As aresult,
yields steadily ightened as the cost of finance fell. By the
beginning of 2022, capitalisation rates were below 3%, fully
reflecting the stability and low risk profile of the income. At
such low capitalisation rates, a modest reversal upwards of
100bps has a very dramatic effect on valuation.

TF Progerty Investrent Trus:



Much the same effect was felt in the valuation of the
other low yielding sector - industrial/logistics This sector
had enjoyed a surge in investor demand as strong rental
growth fuelled the attractiveness of the asset class and
we saw capitalisation rates tighten dramatically over the
last three years. Again, the impact of the abrupt rise in
the cost of debt led to a quick reversat in yields However,
unlike regulated residential rents in Germany, which
deliver sub-inflationary growth, we are confident that
strong rental growth will persist in industrial/lcgistics
property given market fundamentals.

Offices continue to be the secter most under scrutiny
and rightly so. The repercussions and evolution of

the working from home {WFH'} regime are stilt being
waorked through by tenants and landlords Much has
already been written on the topic and firm conclusions
are hard to pin down given the speed of change.
However, we are confident that since the half year we
have seen more data to support our current thesis
Offices remain crucial infrastructure for knowledge-
based businesses - physical interaction Is a vital part
of business life. However, the amount of space required
has reduced whilst crucially the demand for better
quality space has risen. This demand for better quality
working environment is augmented by the requirement
for better energy efficiency and green credentials The
result is a historically wide market bifurcation between
best in class, well located, energy efficient buildings
and the rest, Offices account for approximately 15% of
our benchmark and well over 50% of that exposure is to
London and Paris, hence our focus on those marketsin
this commentary.

Gecina, our largest European ¢ffice exposure (see top
12 holdings) in their Q1 2023 results highlighted that
their prime inner Pans assets recorded an eye-catching
30% reversion, whitst their guter ring assets saw negative
reversion. Qverall rental growth was positive at 7% but
that statistic highlights the gulf between the growth
achieved in central assets and the rest Covivio, which
owns offices in Paris, Milan and several German cities
reported the same phenomenon, with central Milan
recording solid demand and rental growth. Central
London office vacancy 1s elevated at 8%, however the
divide between West End (3.7%) and the City {11.9%)

is almost as stark as it has ever been. The situation in
Docklands 1s even more dire with a number of major
financial institutions who have announced either a
reduction in their space requirements (including HSBC,
Citt end JPMargan) or wholesale relocation (e.g. Clifford
Chance) Inthe case of the latter, the firm is also cutting
its space requirements by 40% One should be careful
not to read simgle statistic across to the wider market
as that particular firm has had excess space in Canary

Annua! Report & Accounts 2023

Wharf for several years. This increasing vacancy in
financial services-focused districts such as Canary
wharf, La Defense and further afield Lower Manhattan is
a reflecticn of both WFH but also the lack of headcount
growth. This s a particular problem in Lendon where
post Brexit, global financial services businesses continue
to increase thelr footprint in Paris, Frankfurt and Dublin
at the expense of London.

This hifurcation of ‘best and the rest’ can be clearly
seen in recent valuation in the specialist London office
landlords. Great Portland reported in their H1 2023
results a divergence in performance based on their
buildings' EPC {energy efficiency) ratings. Those at the
highest levels {A&B) saw value declines of 2.5% whilst
C&D rated were -4 2% Derwent London produced data
based on values per foot. The most valuable (>£1,500 per
ft) saw capital drift of -3 5% and rental growth of +2%,
whilst the least (<£1,000 per ft) saw value falls of -11.8%
and rental growth of just 0.3%.

Even though the best in class continues to enjoy steady
rental growth, this is partly due to its scarcity. The bulk
of all office markets are made up of much more average
product and take up levels in the post pandemic world
have been weak. Paris Centre West (the core} saw
available supply fall year on year {-19%} whilst it rose in
all other markets. The further out, the greater the supply,
with La Defense just +4% whilst the Inner Rim {(+35%).

All of this has fed through into negative sentiment
towards all offices except the best quality in the best
locations. MSCI/IPD's office sector capital decline in
HZ 2022 was -15.7%, underperforming retail which fell
14.5%. Central London initial yield has moved 80bps
from 4 8% (December 2021} to 5 6% (January 2023).
As discussed many times, the UK's independent valuer
community have always attempted to mark-to-market
rather than the Continenta! approach which is more
‘mark-to-model’. The latter approach results ina
smoother correction of values but can equally lead to
the criticism that valuaticns are woefully historic when
markets are correcting fast. As a result, we feel that
highlighting the modest moves in Continental European
valuations i H2 2022 would be rrisleading. They will
catch up over the course of 2023 and beyond

It feels as though this much matigned asset class has
finally passed through the worst of the impact of the
shift to online retailing, the way we search for products
{and pricing) as well as the increasing demand for
entertainment/leisure ahead of more 'stuff’. The huge
reduction in values has been felt more acutely in the
UK. Alongside the differences between the UK and
Continental European shopping malls, it is also crucia!
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Manager's report
continued

to highlight the sub-sectors within retail as they have,
largely, performed very differently over the last few years

The worst performing group remains the farger malis
which are, quite simply, too big with an excess of floor
space, often a shuttered department store (or two) and
a service charge with a chunky non-recoverable element
{due 1o voids). None of this is new information | hear you
say Agreed. However, the update is that we have now
seen capitulation by landlords (and fenders), rents have
re-rated (often halving) and vacant space beginning

10 be repurposed for other uses. Malls must become
cocmmunity hubs with a range of (lower value) uses
such as fitness, medical uses, nurseries, day care etc.
Landsec successfully acquired the 50% of the St David's
Centre in Cardiff which they did not own The seller

was the administrator of Intu and Landsec acquired

the outstanding loans on the asset. The price equated
tc ayield of over 9% on a rent roll which has dropped
materially over the last decade. We are confident that

at the right rents (and yields) those centres which can
reinvent themselves such as this dominant city centre
asset will deliver acceptable returns.

The strongest sub-sector remains retail warehousing
and outlet malls. For different reasons both offer retailers
sales channels which complement online. in the case

of the former, it is the convenience and pricing of edge
of and out of town retail parks Free home delivery will
become unsustainable fram both a profit and an ESG
perspective Click and collect and free returns to store
will drive demand for these super convenient locations
The Company is a large holder of Ediston Property which
has announced a strategic review given the subscale
size of the business. We are hopeful that this will provide
further evidence of supportive valuations in the sector
Outlets help retatters offload lines without damaging

full price/premium offerings. The success of the likes

of Bicester Village (where Hammerson have a non-
contrelling stake) and Gunwharf Quay in Portsmouth
{owned by Landsec) are proof of the concept and we
remain confident about their prospects,

The combining of retall, leisure and food continues,
particularty in tourist destinations. BNP have highlighted
the pick-up 1in post Covid footfall in the most upmarket
locations such as Regent St, Champs Elysees, Portal

de Angel (Barceiona), Via del Corso (Rome) and
Kaufingerstrasse (Munich) with footfall increasing on
average by 1/3 and, in some cases, more thar 65% (Paris
and Murnich)

Retail investmert has beer resiient, particularly in
Continental Europe where investars see affordable rents
and higher yields than other sectors Whilst investment
levels are unsurpnsingly below the 2012 to 2022 decade
average, they did increase year on year 10 €40 Tbn (+2 6%}
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according to BNP in the UK, retail warehousing continued to
dominate volumes {(+60%) over 2027 and 2022 This figure
was lower across Europe and highiights the continued lack
of large shopping centre transactions in the UK

UK logistics take-up in Q1 2023 was 8.6m sq ft, a slowing
when campared to a quarterly average of 12.0m sg ftin
2022 and 13 8m sq ft in 2021 but still ahead of the guarterly
average of 83m sq ft inthe pre-Covid decade. Vacancy
remains at 3% and rents continue torise Against this
comfortable backdrop we saw yields rise by 175bps for
prime distribution units between June 2022 and March
2023, Such was the impact of the cost of money, whilst
market fundamentals are deemed less relevant. Even an
assel with strong rental growth prospects cannot have a
capitalisation rate 200bps below the risk-free rate However,
that pricing adjustment has iargely been completed in our
view. We are beginning to see stability in asset prices.

In Continental Europe the picture was very similar. Savills
report 32m sq metres taken up in 2022 across the 13
largest markets, just 6% below the record year of 2021 and
ahead of the 5-year average in virtually all markets. Higher
construction and finance costs led to reduced speculative
construction maintaining the imtense supply-demand
imbalance ir so many markets. Over £50bn was invested in
2022, again below the record of 2027 but well ahead of the
S-year average Yield expansicn (¢ 100bps) was much less
than in the UK but again we expect upward pressure to ease
as fundamentals drive capitat back into the sector

We have long been cheerleaders for multi-let industrials
(ML), generally terraces of smaller units, management
intensive, but often located in dense urban locations.
Very little new stock has been built over the last few
decades with alternative {multi-storey) uses being

far more valuable. Rents remain low in many parts of
the country making new development unviable. The
tenant rosters have evolved hugely in the last 20 years,
undergoing 'gentrification’ from being the domain

of light industrial 'metal bashers’ tc a much broader
swathe of uses, many born out of internet connectivity
and the ability to access customers directly. Our iargest
exposure was through Industrials REIT, where we owned
11% of the company Just after the year end (3 April)
Blackstone announced an agreed cash bid at a 40%
premium 1o the undisturbed share price The private
equity behemoth already has substantial exposure to
this sub-sector but it 1s a timely reminder that if quality
assets are left undervalued then private capitat will
acquire therm. Our other MLI exposure is through Sinius
(65% Germany, 35% UK) and diversified names such as
Pictor and London Metric (which acquired Muckiow in
2021 where we owned 5%}. The healthy supply-demand
aribalance makes [t a sub-sector we are keen to maintain
exposure 1o
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The shortage of private sector rental accormmodation
remains acute, yet the fisted companies focused on

this sector were amongst the peorest performers in

the financial year. This group of companies (mostly in
Germany and Sweden) highlighted how management
teams were lured into increased leverage given the
stability of the underlying income streams and cccupancy
levels However, very low yielding assets struggle to
provide positive cashflows when interest rates rise

At the asset level, rental growth has remained well below
current inflation rates given the backward-looking nature
of regulated rents We fully expect to see these rents

rse at historically fast rates as they factor in some of
the dramatic inflation datapoints. The serious shortage
of housing underpins long-term values. The fly in the
ointment 15 the cost of improving the energy efficiency of
this housing stock through both insulation and the type
of heating In open market regimes such as the UK and
Finland, the cost of these improvements will be passed
through to rent prices. In regulated markets where only
a proportion of the capital expenditure can currently be
rentalised, this remains an impediment to rental growth.

Within open market regimes such as the UK we have
seen strong rental growth through the combination of a
shortage of rental stock (amateur landlords leaving the
market due to higher regulation and lower tax efficiency),
high levels of employment/wage inflation and market
timing (where buyers decide to continue to temporarily
rent awaiting price corrections)

v [0 -4

Purpose built student accemmodation continues to fare well,
with nsing numbers of students across the UK and Europe.
The traditional accommaodation atternative of private rented
houses (HMOs - Hougses in Multiple Occupation) are reducing
as regulation pushes up licensing costs and (correctly) impedes
overcrowding and sub-standard accommedation. Unite, our
largest student accommodation stock was one of the few
companies to see positive capital vaiue appreciation in 2022
with 4% annualised growth. It has recently increased its rental
growth autlook for academic year 2023/24 from 5% 10 6-7%.
Self-storage continues (o confound the sceptics. Rate
growth and occupancy have begun to normaiise post the
‘Covid boorm but remain encouragingly positive. Safestore,
our largest holding in the sector, enjoyed like-for-like rental
growth of 10 7% in the year to October 2022.

Hotels particularly leisure and tourist focused have also
enjoyed strong growth as consumers continue to rmake up for
lost oppertunities to travel in 2020 and 2021, Recent STR data
highlights London hotels across the quality spectrum showing
RevPAR growth of +22% year an year. UK hotels ex London
was also strong at +11% vear on year and 25% versus 2019

Anrual Repor: & Accounts 2022

Healthcare was the poorest performer of the alternatives
group Profitability of private care providers is being
constantly squeezed through wage and cost inflation
Continental European healthcare operators have been
rccked by the scandal at Crpea. The level of state support,
both direct and indirect, are the crucial figures required by
investors. Even then, the rate of rental growth can be quite
pedestrian as seen at Primary Health Properties and Assura.

Both debt and equity markets were very subdued during
the year The total capital raised in 2022 was {14bn
compared to €32bn in 2021 and €21bn in 2020. Over
£9bn of the total raised in 2022 was debt in the first
quarter. To itlustrate the change in pricing over the

Iast year, we need only review the mest profific issuer,
Vonovia, Europe’s largest property company. in March
2022, itissued 4, 6 and 8 year maturities totalling €2.5bn
priced at 1.375%, 1.875% and 2.375% respectively. By
November, new 2027 and 2030 maturities were costing
475% and 5.0%.

Short-dated leverage rnisked the vicious cycle of
increased interest costs resulting in lower eamings, so
risking credit downgrades feading to even higher cost of
debt. Leverage needed to be reduced to defend earnings;
if asset sales weren't possibie then equity {even when
trading at deep discounts to asset values) needed to be
raised through rights issues.

At the half year, | detailed the capital raising by TAG
immobilien, who had aver stretched themselves with the
acquisition of a Polish housebuilder. They raised €200m
at a 27% discount to the theoretical ex-rights price 1o
help pay off the brnidging loan from the acquisiticn. In
November, VGP a Belgium logistics developer raised
€£302m. This was more front-footed with the raise
diluting NTA by 10% in a one for four share issuance.
The business is overly dependent on selling assets into
Allianz private funds and this capital makes them less
dependent on one customer. The CEQ and CFO own 48%
of the equity and ‘stood their corner’ which reassured
investors In Sweden, Catena, another logistics developer
raised SEK 1.4bn (£135m) as its share price hovered
close to NTA and, whilst small, it was unusual as 1 was
an accelerated bookbuild and not a rights issue. Balder
raised SEK 1.8bn which it used to repay a hybrid bond
and strengthen its overali balance sheet

The only merger and acguisition activity in the 12
months to 31 March (the privatisation of Industrials
REIT was announced on 3 April) were twe mergers,
both widely expected but the timing less sure. The
joining of Shaftesbury and Capco finally happened after
a tortucusly long period of negoetiation, capped off by

a CMA review on whether the combined entity could

be a price setter The most disappointing aspect for
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Manager's report
continued

shareholders (we do not own either company) was
that the deal results in the repayment of much of
Shaftesbury’s cheap debt due to a change of controd
provision. When coupled with further increases in
debt costs next year and some extraordinarily high
advisor fees (given it was an agreed transaction)
there will be precious little earnings benefit from

the anticipated synergies. The ather merger was
between LX] and Secure Income REIT on & NAV for
NAV basis. It was a much more straightforward
affair. We were z farge shareholder in SIR and
benefited immediately as the 12% discount closed
10 NAV. The managers of SR were also large
shareholders in the company and their excellent
timing in previous property cycles was once again on
display. They even sold the management company
which had a contract to run SIR for the next three
years

Portfelio turnover (purchases and sales divided by
two) totalled £477m In the year, considerably less
than the £549m in the previcus year With average
net assets over the year of £1.718bhn, turnover

was 40% of net assets, which was higher than

the previous year's figure of 36% and reflects the
volatility in the year.

In the half year report, | recorded that each raliy then
trended down to a new low and therefore virtually

all buys looked poor and all sells looked clever,

The second half of the year saw the largest and
longest recovery from October to the end of January,
followed by the most dramatic carrection back to the
Cctober lows, this new low point virtually coinciding
with the year end Throughout the year, the renewed
bouts of negative sentiment towards the sector
were based on either a change in the outlook for
interest rates (and the concern that central banks’
behaviour would become more hawkish) or renewed
speculation of a failure in the credit transmission
mechanism. Essentialty, investor sentiment was
driven by the expectation of the change ir the price
and availability of debt.

In hindsight, Maintaining our long-standing
discipiine of buying (or adding) to companies where
we felt confident in the res:lience of earnings driven
by market fundamentatls just wasn't encugh.

Aswould be expected, we have careful'y analysed

al. of our companies’ balance sheet capacity {in
terms of the quantum of leverage, cost and duration
of debt) In many cases, the market had quickly
adjusted tne earnings expectations but what became
apparent as the year progressed was that we were
being overiy rationar about these revised earmings

17

forecasts. The market was not interested in supply and
demand at the property/accupational market level or
whether there were still profits to be achieved from the
development pipeline.

The ability of the market pendulum to (over) swing
between exuberance {greed) and melancholy {fear) was
very much in evidence and we battled to

react accordingly.

A good example of this was our collective underweight

to Swedish property companies. Whilst this call was our
largest contributor to positive relative performance over
the year, the volatility in the group resulted in multiple
phases of repositioning Ywhilst the broad staterment that
Swedish property companies are amongst the most
leveraged In our investment universe is true, some are
obviously more exposed than others. it was therefore
crucial to understand which company would suffer the
fastest earnings degradation from rising interest rates but
also to assess when the market had over reacted Those
most at risk were those exposed to bond markets rather
than bank lending or had complex hybnd instruments
dreamt up by bankers when money was cheap. The scale
of share price volatility is best explained in a handful

of figures EPRA Sweden fell -42% in the first quarter

only to recover +33% in the next six weeks followed by
another 40% drop to mid-October and then the long
recovery (+36%) to the end of January, followed by a
renewed bout of nerves sending the sector down almost
to the October lows. These figures are the collective
impact of 18 companies. For the most leveraged {SBB,
Casteltum, Corem and Balder) the volatility was far greater.
Underlying property market fundamentals do not drive this
levei of price action, this was caused by changes in the
market cutlook for the cost/availability of debt impacting
on a tiny market segment (free float capitalisation of just
£20bn).

Qur exposure to German residential was the poorest
asset allocat’'on decision of the year | remained
convinced, for oo iong, that the market fundamentals of
virtuatlly fur cccupancy and (sub-market) regulated rents
would underpin investor sentiment. The fact that even at
prices a year ago alt of these names were trading below
the reinstatement cost of the underlying assets mattered
not a jol. The market focused exclusively on the impact
of the costof delst During the year we reduced exposure
in the larger rames (Vonovia, LEG) but maintained

the holding in Phoenix Spree, the small Berlin focused
vebicle Itisan externaly managed fund which has an
annually renewed contract with QSix, the manager Its
assets are al. prime Berlin, where open-market rents
continue to grow The share price total returr in the year
was -50% |remain convinced that once prices stabilise
the smallercompanies will benefit dispraportionately
from the impact of portfolio sales. With a market cap of
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just £190m and the share price at half the asset value,
it1s an excellent example of a portfolio of assets which
are no longer benefiting from being held in a listed
company.

With the price of money rising so rapidly in the year,

it was the lowest yielding assets which saw the most
aggressive repricing and so it was with German (and
Swedish) residential. The compression in yields in
the previous five years was a rational response to
the combination of strong market conditions, (high
occupancy and rental growth) combined with very
low cost of borrowing. This strong yield compression
(and capital value growth) was even greater in the
industrial/logistics sector. The structural tailwinds
have been discussed, ad nauseum, in previous reports.
For many markets these persist but capitalisation
rates had simply been driven too low with insatiable
investor appetite for assets with income growth.

The reversal (yield expansion) described earlier was
dramatic and the sector was hit very hard. Again,

our smaller companies suffered disproportionately
as they fell alongside larger names on the way down
but often failed to catch the bounce in any recovery.
We are confident that these conservatively managed
businesses with the right amount of leverage and
quality portfolios will perform well. However, if the
stock market continues to undervalue them, then no
one should be surprised when more privatisations
occur Inthe industrial group in the UK, 1 would include
Industrials REIT, Picton Property and CT Property
Trust. Whilst in Europe the list would inciude Argan,
Sirius and Catena

With the lowest yieiding (highest growth) names
suffering from capitalisation rates rising above the
new cost of debt, it was the highest yielding sectors
which suffered the least from this devaluation. Retall
property has clearly been out of favour for many years
as the wezkening in tenant demand for physical retail
space continued. In Continental Europe, we focused
on Eurccommercial and Klepierre given their high

earnings yield but crucially their secure balance sheets.

We avoided Unibail-Rodamco and Wereldhave. Here
you have two companies at either ends of the asset
quatity spectrum but both suffered from weak balance
sheets and the need to de-leverage Unibail announced
2 years ago its intention to selfits US portfolio whilst
Wereldhave has continued to sell assets whenever

it can. European retail as a subset outperformed the
full benchmark and our stock selection also added to
performance with Unibail -27 5% and Klepierre -2 5%
over the year.

UK retall is now a small part of the listed universe.
For most investors the only way to gain exposure
iIs through the diversified portfolios of Landsec

Lnnuzal Report & Accounts 2023

and British Land The bulk of our exposure is through
Ediston Property which owns only retail warehouses.
However, its market cap at £140m is too small for the
hsted market and we applayd the announcement from
the board that they are carrying out a strategic review
for the future of the company. We remain hopeful that

a merger with another listed company is a viable option
which will ensure the assets remain in the listed space.
The company was a relative outperformer in the year
(-18%) as were virtually all the high yielding retall names.
Hammerson remains a play on corporate reconstruction
rather than a bellwether for retail property. We believe
they are on the right path and we cpened a holding in
the year. The crown jewels are the minority ownerships
in the premium outlet malls controlled by Value Retail.
Investors will need to remain patient as the breakup will
take time, but value is reappearing.

Investors' attitudes towards office property has been
highlighted earlier. We fully subscribe to the bifurcation
of returns between the best and the rest. Smaller
European cities have also performed better with lower
WFH and higher occupancy levels. We have sought
greater exposure to those cities through Arima (Madrid),
Wihlborgs (Malmo, Lund) and Fabege (Stockholm). Core
CBD exposure in the largest cities has been through
Gecina (Paris), Great Portland and Landsec (London).
We have also added to the short lease, flexible offering
husiness model through Workspace {Londcn} and Sirius
{primanly German flexspace). Both of these names

had a poor year with total returns of -35% and -32%
respectively but we found recently published operational
data reassuring. Landsec {-16%) was a top performer as
it continued to reduce feverage through sates of newly
completed prime offices in Central London We are
strong advocates of capital recycling and expect to see
more sales from non-core assets such as hotels and
leisure.

In the alternatives space, our overweight to self-storage
was entirely through Safestore {-27%) rather than Big
Yellow (-21%). Safestore has outperformed on a three-
year and five-year view but clearly not in this last period.
In fact, we find it hard to choose between these two
very well managed companies. Both own irreplaceahle
estates with core holdings in densely populated areas.
Dermand for space has been remarkably stable given

the economic backdrop. Unite (-16%), the student
accommadation provider, was another retative winner

in the year. The combination of increased eamings
guidance and solid market evidence on modest yield
movement continues to support the asset ¢class.

Both these asset types have intensive cperational
requirements and we are confident that the market
undervalues the platform through the traditional asset
value model. This was certainly the case with Industrials
REIT where Blackstone paid a premium for the operating
business alongside the assets.
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Manager's report
continued

As noted in the Chairman’s Statement, the current
year's income benefited from a number of non-recurring
items. Eurocommercial and Swiss Prime both changed
their pattern of distributions during the year effectively
resulting in an additional half year payment from

each of these companies The Argan annual dividend
which generally goes ex-dividend on or around the last
business day in March therefore moves between March
and April. In the year 10 31 March 2023, we received
dividends in Aprit 2022 and March 2023, resulting in two
full year payments. If the dividend due around 31 March
2024 falls back into next April, there will be no income
recorded from this company in the year to March 2024
We have no control over these timings and there are
several companies where dividends go ex-div around
the year end Each of three holdings noted above are
approximately 2.5% of the portfolio so this has had

a significant impact Without these (and the small
enhancement due to foreign exchange movements), we
estimate the earnings would have been around 1 13p
lower than reported. The dividend for the year to March
2023 is therefore well covered.

The dividend for the previous two years was partly paid
out of revenue reserves as the effects of COVID forced
revenue down, In 2022/23, the earnings, adjusted for the
one-offs set out above, are just over 10% higher than the
last reported period before COVID-19 (being the year to
31 March 2019). The full year dividend to 31 March 2023
is almost 15% ahead of the pre-COVID dividend as the
Board recognises the importance of a growing dividend
to our shareholders

Looking ahead to the 2023-24 financiat year, at this
stage, we expect to report a fall in earnings. This is partly
explained by the one-off adjustments highlighted above
However, the additional impact is from the number of
the German residential and Swedish companies that
nave announced dividend suspensiors and/or cuts as
they work to reduce their gearing levels in the face of
rising debt costs. The residential names in particular
are making progress witn their disposal programmes
so we expect to see their dividends resuming, although
possibly at a lower level, in the 1ot too distant future.

The ‘mpact of higher interest rates wil’ feed through to
earrings as fixed or capped debt structures come up for
refinancing. The ‘mpact of tnis of course depends on the
duration of such debt packages and this varies hugely
across our comparies It is encouraging to note that

for most of them, the majority of their debt is fixed (or
capped) until 2026 and beyond

On a more encouraging note, top line revenue i
benefiting from inflation All of cur European companies
and a significant number of our UK names benefit from
rents linked to scme form of indexation. It vanes widely
across countries and sectors but is clearly an impaortant
part of our revenue growth trajectory.

Although the revenue for the forthcoming year is likely
to be under some pressure given all these competing
factors, we are optimistic that growth will return over
the medium term. Market fundamentals continue 10
drive organic rental growth in so many of our sectors In
the meantime, the Company still has plentiful revenue
reserves to maintain dividend tevels over short term
income falls, as was seen through the COVID-19
pandemic.

Gearing began the year at 10.2%, increased to 12.0% by
the half year and finished the year at 12.2%. This does
not represent the changes in gearng seen throughout
the period as gearing has been actively changed

in response to the very variable market conditions
throughout the year and has ranged between 10%

and 16%

The cost of our debt has increased through the year

as our revolving credit facilities and CFD financing

are linked to SONIA {(or other currency equivalents).
However, animportant part of our debt book are the
EUR 50m and GBP 15m loan notes both at fixed rates of
Interest The combination of the fixed and floating rate
debt gives us a high degree of flexibility with some price
stability at lower levels of gearing. Generally, where
higher levels of gearing are appropriate (so drawing on
the floating rate financing) the market conditions are
such that returns are not 1oo sensitive to the pricing

in the year to the end of March the physical property
portfolio preduced a total return of-13.7%, made up of
a capital return of -17 5% and an income returr of 3.8%
Tre MSCI Monthly UK Property Index returned -14.7%
over the same period, made up of an income return of
50%and acapital fal of 18.8%
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During the year we sold the residential element of the
Colonnades development for £5m on a new 989 year
lease at a peppercorn rent. The value of this element

is determined by the outstanding lease extensions
remaining on the individual flats. During the Company’s
ownership we completed lease extensions cver 75% of
the flats and received more than £12.5m in premiums
In addition, the sale facilitated the simplification of the
leasehold structure of the asset. The Company has
retained the freehold of the 1sland site as well as all the
commercial elements. | he locality continues to improve
with the redevelopment of the cld Whiteleys shopping
centre nearing campletion. This is an important next
phase in the further gentrification of Bayswater

It was a busy 12 months for asset management at
Ferrier Street, Wandsworth. The strategy remains to let
the estate on a short-term basis, retaining the flexibility
for either a refurbishment of the existing or a more
comprehensive redevelopment under the planning
perrmission secured in June 2022. During the year the
Company concluded 10 new leases (five renewals and
five new lettings) covering over 60% of the estate This
secured over £500,000 of rent with the average rent on
new lettings exceeding £30 per sq. ft. The attractiveness
of the estate continues to benefit from the further
reduction in supply of London industnal space, whilst
the depth of demand from occupiers has increased.
The diversity of our occupiers reflect this broad based
demand and range from photographic studios to food
production and even a plant nursery.

Annual Report & Accourts 2023

Inflationary pressures persist. Central banks appear
resolutely determined ta remain hawkish with another
round of base rate increases in May. Whilst a relatively
blunt instrument, there are signs that the medicine of
increased interest rates is having the required effect with
reduced retai sales growth. Energy has been a major
driver of cost inflation and the spot price of gas has
fallen back to pre-invasion prices. This will soon begin to
feed into lower headline Inflation figures and also recuce
the likelihood of a recession. We expect wage inflation,
driven by high employment levels, to persist, resulting in
inflation remaining ahead of central banks’ target rates

Against this backdrop real estate fundamentals, in

our preferred sectors, remain solid with little signs of
over-supply and stable demand. Econemic growth is
likely to be at best anaemic, for a while, and speculative
development will remain subdued. Income, often index-
linked, will remain the key valuation underpin. We will
maintain our focus on the most judiciously leveraged,
avoiding those with large near-term refinancing
requirements With such a large number of well financed
listed companies, we alsc expect opportunities 1o gather
assets from those struggling to refinance in a worid
where debt availability is getting more restricted.

The sector has a long tail of micro-cap companies

and we continue to encourage boards to explore the
opportunities for consolidation where it improves share
liquidity and reduces costs. Otherwise, we will continue
to see the steady stream of privatisations as these
smaller companies are attractive bite sized morsels for
large private real estate owners. Whilst the Company has
often benefited from these premium bids (and continues
to hold a wide range of small caps) we also believe that
growing the number of larger companies is in the best
interests of the sector and investors.

As we go to print at the beginning of June, we are
pleased to report an all-paper bid by Lendon Metric
{market cap £1,700m) for CT Property Trust (£180m)
The Company owns 10% of CT Property Trust and the
price rose 25% on the announcement.

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fund Manager
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Responsible investment

Introduction

The Board recognises the mportance of consider'rg
Environmenta Soc.al ard Gavernance {(ESG ) factors
wner making mvestmerts and ir acting as a responsible
steward of captal Tris covers the Corpanys own
respors bii t'es on governance and reporting and the
most matenal way inwr ch the Companry can have
anmpact, through responsible ownershp of the
mvestments that are made on its beha f by its Marager

1. The Company's own approach to
Corporate Governance and Reporting
Maintaining a nigh level of Governance ard disciosure

in the Cormrpary's own operat ons ard reporting

Is extremely important Cur Fund Managers are
ercouragng atd supporting this fro the corpanies
“1wnick we invest ard we carnot fal short of these
standards ourselves

Tre Company's comphance with the AIC Code of
Corporate Goverra~ce s detailed \n the Corporate
Goverrance Report o1 page 50

Urder Section 414 of the Companies Act 2006 there s
arequirement 1o detail nformation about employee ad
horran nights, re.uding nformation about any peicies

n reiation to these matters ard the effectiveness of
these poicies Asthe Company bas roermrployees, s
requirement does rot apply. The Company 18 not withir
the scope of the UK Modern Siavery Act 2075 because
1as 1ot exceeded the turiover thresnoid and s therefore
not obl.gedtc make a s avery and numan trafficking
statemert Tre Drectors are satisfied that, to t~e best

of the'r know edge the Compary's princ.par suppl:ers,
whicn are sted or page 120 comnpy with tae prov.sions
of the UK Modern Siavery Act 2015, These are prircipally
profess oral advisers and serv ce providers ir t~e financ’al
serv'ces irdustry. conseguently the Board cors ders the
Cor-pany to be iow r-sk ~ resat.or to th s matter

The Board currert y com™mpr.ses toree g e D rectors
a~dthree ferraie Drectors Tre Board a'so ™meets tre
FCA's ruesfor divers tvard ncus on folowrgtre
recoTmerdations of tne Parker Review

Treactvtesoftre Nom ratior Commtlee inreiator
to Board cranges are referred to in te Norm mat o~
Cor~ttee Report ¢~ pages 56 ard 57

TreBoards dwversty porcy sout' ned - moredeta
te Corpcrate Governarce Report

TreCo™pary "as ~o green"0use gas er” $3Crs tareport
fro~ ts opelatiors nor does thaveresporsibh ty forary
otner e™ ss ¢s producirg sources wnder the Corpas es
Act 2006 (Strateg.c Report and D rectors’ Repoils

=

Regulations 2313). Investment trust companies are
currertly exept fromieportirg aganst the Task Force on
Chrmate-Reiated Firarcial Disclosures { TCFD), nowever,
the Firanciai Conduct Authorty { FCA') has now published
regulations that require the Company's Marager as its
Alterrative Investrient Fund Manager {AIFM), to report
against TCFD at both the AIFM and product leve by L are
2024 Trus means that therewnl bea TCFD d'sclosure
specfic to the Company's portfo'io avallable 1n tne foture,
which will be published on the Manager's website The
Manager has produced a report on its overall climate
change approach, which s stiuctured using the TCFD
categories and is avallable on its website

2. Our Portfolio Manager’s Approach to ESG
Our Poitfolio Manager's primary duty 1s to pursee the
objective set out at the beginning of this annual report,
which s 1o nvest 1 property and property related
companies with the object ve of exceeding the returns of
cur benchmark

Tre Comrpary nas not set out its stall to be an ESG
focused fund however, as g ong-term vestor,
governarce and sustamability considerat ons nave
always been embedded in our Manager's mvestment
process ESGrsk assessments and considerations are
factors wnich feed into the nvestmert decis ons. This
reflects the be ief that strong governance combined witn
aresponsible approach to socia. obl gat.ons and the
comrm tmert to protect our ervironmmert wi lenkance
sharebolder retuing in the long term

Ir tne part of the portfo ‘o that s avested d rectly im1o
commrerc a real estate we endeavour 1o practice wnat
vie preacn

LISTED EQUITY PORTFOLIO

As a dedicated rvestor intre property sector our Manager
1S not "aving to cons der sore of tne rrore controversia
areas of wnat setn canirvestert However we are
rvestirg oo Id ngs wnere constrocticn and orgoirg
rarage™enthave a d rect mpactcntheenvrorrent

Lo property IS r some way deliverrg a soca purpose
Moder~ bl ding practices are very ~ e ~ore focused
onreducingerergy consorpt or and eficerey than v
tre past Fropert es nave vary g fegpansbutarebo t
fortre .cngter Ouderbudrgswrich are less erergy
eficent man trer modern couterparts are a fact of

fe therrrep acerent ~as wder env remrTenta ard

SOC 8 reperc.ssicrs as we ' as mJge cost Tp cations
Trey are go =g tc for~ part of i=e rvestib e un verse for
tne foreseeab e futore and tre refficiertimprovermert
a~d mranagement §.stas rportant agens.arrgrew
deveiopments fohow tre r gnest poss b.e env ronmental
standards Athougr oder buildngs v ™ost tkely shows
nfengr scores totner more Moderr codterparts or a

TR Proserty Irvestrent Trust




nurrber of environmental measures, we are lockng for
demonstration of best efforts to 'mprave these measuies,
recogn'sing that tnere will be Imitations on what car be
achieved bLt wanting to see a positive direction of travel

There are two fundamental corsiderations to Investment
N property companies: the assets tnemselves and their
management. The Manager seeks to invest \n long-term
assets which are managed by quality teams ir & wel
governed corporate structure As a result, there has been
along standing ard strong culture of stewardship i the
Manager's investment approach. The Manager believes
that engaging with companies 1s best 1in the first instance,
rather than simply divesting or exciuding rvestment
opportun:ties. However, tnere are instances where
governance matters have driven a decision not t¢ invest
ina company. As one of the largest teams investing in
pan-Eurcpean real estate equities, our Manager meets
witn a significant rurmber of management teams of
mvestee and potential investee companies each year and
has a robust record of engagement, with an agenda of
reducing risk, improving performance and encourag.ng
best practice. This is aLgmented by tne strength of
Columbia Tnreadreesdie’'s Regponsible Investment

team and its broader engagement. Qver the course of
the year, our management team participated in 227
naiv:dual or group meetings with companies and therr
management teams.

The Manager is committed to responsible investment
ard is actively developing new procedures and ways in
whtch infarmation is gathered and used to support their
engagement with companes on ESG matters.

Corporate Governance disclosure requirements have
increased transparency enarmously in recent years and
erabled closer scrutiny and engagement on Governance
issues for some years. Environmental measures are now
rapidly comirg te the fore and, with wider disclosure
requirements being placed upon our investee companies,
the Manager is increasingly able to scrutinise other
measures such as climate change and sustainability
poicies and oulcomes

However, the Board and Manager are still of the view that
the £56 rating irdustry ard its approach and processes
ras sign-ficant limitations, making it difficalt to draw

true compansons and make fully informed decisions.
Tre assessments from the vanous data providers

reach different concius ons as they do not all score in a
consistent way. Some of the assessments are subjective
and different data providers have different defimit.ons and
cr.tera.
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This may eventdaly converge into some form of
consensus or standardisation but it still nas a way to

go Conceptuaiy, making ESG comparisons betweer
companies and portfoios appears simple, but it 1s
actualy rather complex and it 1s important to ensure that
valid comparisans are being made. As the shartcomings
are beirg uncovered and the different approaches

high! ghted we hope that this wil put pressudre on the
data providers to mprove the quality and clarify the basis
of the r analys's. The data services are sdbscribed to 50
Mave 1o be fit for purpose

Having noted the shortfails above with the data collected
from the differe~t providers, our Manager 1S ernarcing
the way in which FSG date s collected and compared
Their own company database covers financial and
operational infornation together with extensive
modelling ESG data 1s being collated alorgside this,
allowing comparisons to be made more easny between
the var'ous data sources for a single compary and
interrogated rather than relying on high leve. "scores”.
interactions with companies on ESG matters are

noted and progress, or otherwise, can be tracked more
efficiently.

The Manager 1s tnerefore dedicating direct resource to
the analysis of the informat'cn available and also has
the benefit of mput from its award-winning Responsible
tnvestment Team This is work in progress and a
significant investmentir resource bat it will mprove the
Manager's ability 10 engage with our Irvestee companies
on environmental matters and play oLt our responsible
nvestment aims

Itis cruciat to disaggregate between qualty companies
which also have strong ESG credentals and compan.es
which may appear to have strong ESG credentials (on
the surface at least) but will make peor investments Ore
example of this approach is Home REIT Or the face of it
Home REIT's ESG credentials appeared strong given the
company's bLsiness model s focused or the provision
of accommodation tc help tackle homelessness in the
UK Inaddtion, ts leases are 100% "green’, meaning
Home and its tenanrts agree to identify and implerent
appropnate strategies for tre improvement of the
properties’ environmental performance However, we
elected not to participate m the company's PO, and

the furd has never owned tne shares subsequently, as
we had reservations about tne overall ecoromics of

the business We were concerned about t1e covenant
quality of the tenants {ofter new'y-formed chant:es)
and beiieved that the long lease structures putin place
by Home REIT risked overstating a realistic value of

tne underying assets Thisapproach proved correct

- short seller Viceroy published a report on Home

REIT in Novemnber 20272 whicn highlighted rurrerous
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Responsible investment
continued

corcerns with the busiriess and the company has been
mvestigated by regulatory bodies on a rumber of itemrs
rrecent months. The shares are currently susperded
pend.ng a decision over the future of the business,
having dropped 61% from the or gina, IPO price.

Anexarrple of a arge no ding wnere we be'eve the ESG
credentials complement the investment case s Landsec
As well as adher ng to the governance standards

we would expect from a leading histed company. the
company also has a clearly outhined sustarabibty
framework. This includes iorg-term targets, progress
against whicr s regularly monitored and presented
back to investors, such as eperat.ona. carben emiss-ons
reduction of 70% by 2030 (with a 2013/14 baseline) and
average embodied carbon reduct'on of 50% compared
witn a typical bullding by 2030 The company's newest
deveiopments, which in our v ew contribute postvey

to the investment case given therr abiity to contr.bute
ta both earn'ngs and net tangible asset vaiue over ime,
are aiso all net zero buildings, which we beleve will
contribute to an improved rental growtn tore wnen tne
assets are let. As such trere 1s a symbiotic reiationskp
between tre comrpany s strorg ESG credentia s andits
«nderly.ng ecoromic performance

Governance

Goverrance covers matters such as board structure,
effectiveness, diversity and independence, execJtive
pay ard criena, shareno.der rgats and firanc al and
governance reporting and standards.

Tne Manager nas a carperate governance vot rg pol cy
WTICT, N IS opirion, accerds with carrent best practce
wri st mantaring a priTary focus on finarc al returrs
Treexercise of voting r g-ts attached to tne portfo ic
Fas hee~ de egated tc t~e Manager Where pract cab e,
al srarenoidings were voted at a'l compary reet'rgs
nthefiranca vearmaccordance wir Columbia
Trread-eedle's cw~ corporate goverrance por¢ es Tr s
ensures tat a strong cers stent approacr §taker 1o
proxy vet rg whicr backs wp and re nforces engage~—ent
takes a robust "re 0” key govertance 1ss.es soch as
exec tive pav and Mtegrates envircmirenta socc ar &
divers ty ‘ssues and sustamahb 'ty pract ces irtc the

VOt ~Qg process

Celumba Trreadneed s Stewardsn.p Report 2022
prosdes ~ore ~forrmat on o0 18 firr-ieve stewardst p
Do Ces aswe as ~ow these coply witm the
expectatiors of e UK Stewardsmip Code 2023 tc wr o
tre lanager ‘s a s'gnatory. Its statermert of compliance
ca~befo.nd ot e webste at

tps v Co Lrhiathreadneed'e com e

Durngthe finarc a year t~e Manager voted aga'rst at

least one managerent proposa’ at 52% of sharehoider
meetings Th s represents 13% of total tems voted Of
the tems voted aga nst, the proposals can be broady
categorsed as follows

3% 2%

"Remuneiriat\on
Shareholder rights

i other
Di_r_eptor terms
Ratify Auditor

For tne year the Manager engaged with 24 compan-es
drectly on arange of ESG re'ated matters These
engagements were corducted at botn the board and
senor execJtive ever as well as directly with investor
re ations. Topics of ergagement were split as foilows

Climate Cﬁémge
" Environmental Standards
Labour Standards
" Corporate Governance
~ Human Rigﬁts

Tre Marager tracks 17e Tilestores of the engagement
strategy a~d has see~ progress th.s year or a number

of matters Examp.es inc ude tne pubiicat on of
sustainability reports and beard accourtabilty on buman
nghts r'sk ranagement

Social

Aibu drgsnaveasoca furctor to scme extent,
provid g pacestc ' ve work eat shop, store etc.
Marageent of bt d' ngs ~eeds (¢ ens.re any scoa
cbrgaticrstatre occupants are met nterms of

Hea tr & Safety e~ pioyee marage~e~ta~d we be g
ard corrr trert o commuTtes. Most of these

obl gat orsearetheresporsiblity of the terart but our
yestes co~pares are ob iged to report ar matters
affectrg trerr cwn e~ poyvees ard suc- staterre~tg are
cors dered

TF Property Investmert Trust



Environmental

Envroamental policies in tne property sector focus
largely o sustairabiity and climate change. Climate
change is one of the definirg cnallenges of modern times

The management team have sourced data and research
from several providers, Inciuding the Colurrbia Threadneedle
Responsible Investment team, MSCI and Global ESG
Bencrmark for Rea! Assets (GRESB).

The guantity and depth of data availab e in cur secter

var es greatly, the larger comparies now have teams
dedicated to providing environmental impact data and
reporting. However many of our companies are small and
do not currenty have the resources to contnbute data

to the organisations providing analysis (o the investor
community. As a conseguence, we see strong correlatiors
between company size, maturty and overa'l scores. Since
our investment strategy leads us to own focused mid-sized
coirpanies in preference to some of the larger diversifiec
ones, the portfolios overall ESG score might tend to be
unflatterng compared to the wider benchmark. The rigour
of our process ensures that these companies receive
scrutiny by the team

GRESB I1s a mission-dr'ven and investor-led organisation
providing standardised and validated ESG data to the
capital markets. Established in 2009, GRESB now covers
over USD S trillion inreal estate assets, pub'ishing i) an
annua' reas estate assessment score for participating
companies, and i} a public disclosure score for all isted
real estate companes. The rear estate assessment score
ranks Ervironment, Social and Governance metrics based

Data coverage as % of weight of the invested equity portfolio

2023

Rated B 66% 62%
Unrated 34% 38%
Total 100% 100%

on data contributed directiy from participating companies,
whiist the public disclosure score evaluates the level of ESG
disclosure by listed property companies and REITs

FLitner detail or GRESB can be found at
www gresh com

For 2023 there 1s nereased GRESB Real Estate
Assessment coverage of the Company's equity portfolio
(66% from 50%).

Germanresidentia companies representing 11 6% of the
mdex do not submit data to GRESE due to the requirement
to submit data at the asset or buiding level and concerns
around fair comparisons of data aggregation. We continue
to engage with GRESE, enccuraging them to modify the
requirements to ercourage wider participation.

MSCI ESG research covers a wide range of environmental
impact measures inciuding CO2 and greenhouse gas
emissions, energy and water usage, in addition to wider
carporate governance scores. Further detail car be found at
Www mscL.com/our-solutions/esg-investing/esg-ratings

Coverage of our sector reduced from 99% to 96% and the
Company’s portfono increased from 89% 1o 86%. Where
coverage is based on public data, a sigrificant proportion
is included, whereas where specific data has to be
submitted by companies the coverage is currently much
thinrer.

The tabie below compares caverage by both data
providers year or year

99% o 96% . 96% o 96%
1% ) 4% i A%, ) 4%
100% 100% 100% 100%

Source GRESE, MSC , Co'umbia Threadneedle nvestrents Data as al 3103 2023 Fund exposure calculated as the % weight of the invested equity portfalio

2022 | s
Real Estate Assessment

Rated T s s4%

Unrated 50% 46%

Total 100% ; OC%

" Public Disclosure

Company Rating

97% 97% 89% 99%

3% 3% T1% 1%
100% 100% 100% 100%

Source GRESB, MSC | Co umbia Threadneedle Investments Dala as at 31 03 2022 Fund expesure caicu ated as the % weight of the invested equiy pert‘alo
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Responsible investment
continued

Ve cantinue to collect data on emissions and compare
to pror years with tre emphas:s being more or direct.or
of travei than the absolule measLres themselves This
is also ar area where we expect to see further charge
which s also exp'amed

For tre year ended 31 Marcn 2022, we disclosed, as best
we were able to, the portfo.io-weighted carbor ntersity
of tre total partfo.io for the first time.

Carber Risk measures exposure to carbor rtensive
comrpanies MSCl's definition and caicuiation, with
data based on MSC1 CarbonMetrnics 15 the portfono-
weighted average of 'ssuer carbon intensity. At the
‘'ssuer level carbon intensity s the rato of annaal
scope 1 and 2 carbon emissions to annual revenue
Carbon R sk s categornized as Very Low (0to<15),

Low {1510=70], Moderate (70 ta <250), Higr (250 to
<525) and Very High {(>=525) The Carbon Risk of the
equty portfolio measured at tne financiar year end, was
43 6T CO2E/SM Sales {2022 63 3T CU2E/SM Sales),
fa.ing withi the low risk MSCI category Tne Company’s
portfolio-weighted carbon ntensity was lower than that
of the bercrmark of 49 8 T CO2E/5M Sales.

Comparing agairst the results from last year shows a
neadi re ¢ 31% decrease in carbor intens ty for botk our
owT equty partfoiro ard -18% for the irdex. Tnere arca
nember of reasors for th's Wrilst the ratio § a snapshot
taken at each financiai vear end, reflecting the change

i equity heldings aver the peniod, there is aiso wider
coverage of data at the 2023 financ al year end {98%

far the curret year fund boldings versus 89% for tne
prior year) Toe 'atest emiss ors data for each company
.5 captured by MSC! cr pubhicat:or of ther data, each
compary s notreleas ng treir data at tre sa™e po 1t
sot g dffererceswi arse Theratio w ll a sa be
immpacted by tre crang rgva ge of $ Sales, irc admigire
~pact of FX rates However witr rirese in-tat ons,
vie can bereasonab v conident that tre Carbo- Risk of
the portfo''c s prosangand corrert y better tnar tie
be~ct~ark

T CO2E/SM Sales
70 .

# TR Prope-ty Investment " rust

FTSE EPRA NARFIT Deve oped Furope Capped ndex

in order ta attempt to g've a pictare of the direction of
trave,, we nave ‘coked at the individua' compan.es tre
Company holds to assess wh.cn nave improy ng or
detericrating carbom mtensity metrics over three and
five year periods.

This anawys s depends upor the integnty of tne
underlying data and breadth of data coverage, so we
wouid caut ontnat this s a work r progress, bt it
ndicates a positive trend as awareness improves and
companies are cblged to d'sc'ose data

3yr
momentum

S5yr
momentum

] ' Improving
Detenorating
| Neutral

By rirberof compar es Improvirg where end of perod
va se1s esstnan start of perod Detercrat-g wrereerd
of perod va e sgreater 3yrs Dataford7 cf 61 stocks
Syrs Data ‘or 43 of 61 slocks
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Foi the praperty sector, the focus is currently on tne
energy efficiency of bu Id ngs once they are occupied,
but we expect in time more attention will bhe paid to the
carbon emitted i getting them built and eventually
dismant'ed whi.cm accounts for a large proportion of a
bullding's emissiors over 'ts ifespan.

DIRECT PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

Sustainability ‘s core to tre strategy of the drect property
portfelio whigs we invest in, ho'd and manage or behaif
of srareholders and thig has beer o kay fecus for te
management team In ther asset management approach

Certra tothe year's approach was energy consumpton,
As the pnmary source of carbon emissions within the
porttolio, a priority over the last twelve months has
been to gain a clear understanding of the consumption
intersity across the portfotio, establishing a benchmark
from which we can map the strategy to manage tne
environmental impact of these assets through energy
saving interventions. This data collection allows us to
fix the base year from which to set out future targets as
wer as a clear patr toward a net zero carbon pertfolio.
Alongside this we have also worked hard to future-proof
the portfolio aga:nst the forthcoming Minimum Energy
Efficiency Standards

We also recognise that the built environment plays a
fundamrental role in the life of local communities As a
landlord the Company cortinues 1o ennance its soc:al
engagement with the locai community stakeholders

at our assets. We aiso strive to work with local supply
cham partners to deiiver a best-in-class service for our
occupiers, whilst a'so support rig the locaf economies
surrodnding odr assets This helps us demonstrate the
socia’ value we bring to commiunities, occupiers and
shareholders

The final strand te cur approach 1s governance

This forms the foundation for how we manage our
properties The manager operates a Sustainability and
Social Responsibiiity Committee which focuses on the
implementation and delivery of ail ESG iritiatives and
provides full transparency on our proactive hands-or
approach From this we can execute our environmental
and social responsibiities. We are only able to achieve
our goals thiough a joined-up approach with our property
manager, energy consultant and other key partners with
whoim we work

Annua Report & Accounts 2623

Ir last year's report we identified the three key pillars

to establish the foundation for the delivery of our FSG
strategy These three pillars, namely Asset Energy
Performance (Environment), Occupier Engagement
{Social) and Operational Performance {Governance)
continue to navigate the Management Team towards the
successful realisation of our ESG strategy.

Wniitst the significant progress made over the last 12
months reinforces our commitment to achieve net zero
car bor by 2050, cur o timate goal s to ambitiously
improve on this 2050 target. To that end, we nave
mstructed net zero audits across the portfolio to facilitate
us inidentifying exactly how we can brng this target
forward from 2050 This strategic framewoerk will be
driven by science-based targets in a cost-efficient
manner, and we witl be art'culating our improved
pathway over the forthcoming year

Environmental

Accurate data colection and transparent report:ng are
integral to cur goal of reducing carbon eiSsioNs across
our portfolio We have put in place a number of initiatives
to this end whicn are outlined below

‘.,.1g"-.'\_"‘ N

Reliable and accurate data colection 13 the cornerstone
to understanding the carbon intensity of our assets. This
gives us the ability to set ambitious tergets (o reduce

the carbon ntensity and Scope 1 and 2 emissions for
both ourselves and our cccupiers To this end we have
been working in cotlaboration with our stakeholders
toirrplement a programme to install aatomatic meter
readers ({AMRS’] across the portfclio to enab-e the
accdrate measurement and monitorng of each asset’s
energy consumption This consumpt-on data is now
being collated and analysed by the property industry-
recognised SIERA+ platform This means we can
measure energy consumption and access live data
which we can analyse and then Lse to shape our buildirg
operation decisions The AMRs have also provided the
dataset which will form part of the Company's inaugural
GRESB submission currently underway, setting the
benckmark for future ESG performance. With ongoirg
access to this futly transparent and live dataset we car
take cortro! of our carbon emissions wth integrity and
pinpoint exactly where furtwer ‘mprovements car be
acnieved
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Responsible investment
continued

As odJthned intre last report a key objectve forthe Furd
was to commence 1ts first GRESE submission. Now that
we Nave ar accuarate dataset of carbon consumption, we
have beer able 1o begin the first GRESB subim ssion for
2022/23 Treresults of this submission wil be availabe
in October 2023 and from this we will be ab e to dentfy
furtner sustamabibty opportur ties and enhance our
strategy towards net zero, This 's a significant milestane
for the Companry and GRESE wiit enable us to measdre
our ESG performance wirin a uniform and globaly
established p'atform

Another key element to managing the carbon ~tersity
of the portfolio ss througn the 'mplementation of Green
Leases Clauses across the portfolio 1t has enabled us
to embed our net zerg commitments irto the formai
structure witmin which we lease our assets, setling cut
a mutual agreemert between fandiord and occupler

to strive to irrprove energy efficienc-es and redi.ce
carbon erssions generated by tre assets They also
provide a formas framework for the Company to work
with occupiers on our data coliectior workstream
mnstarces where we are not 'n control of the ut!'ty suppy
Tris v turn strengthens owr abaty to enforce carbon
intensity targets and gain further contro of Scope 1 and
2 eMissions

Further contro of carban emmissions nas been achieved
througr tre successful transiton of al erergy across
and.ord areas for the wroie portfono to renewable
sources T7s's a portfeio-wide initiat ve and 160% of
lardlord electric:ty ard gas suppiies are now contracted
on certrfied green tar ffs backed by the Ofgeireguiated
Renewable Erergy Guarantees of Qrign (REGO) scheme

From 1 Apr i 2022 4 cormrrerca renta properties
arereq. red tonave ar ERC of £ or better Tred rect
property portfo' o curre~tly Teets trese standards a~d,
overa ' the portforcs EPC profie s we! paced for the
siort-term regu rements a~d ~proved ratrgs mave been

acreved overtre ast 12 mo~the

Two sigmificart achievernents of note are the
improvement of the two EPC G ratings within the
portfoiote B and Cratngs and ircreas.ng tne
percentage of assets now qualfying for EPC ratirgs
by over 20% T-is ras been accomplished through
detailed operatioral aralys.s of our assets ard the
implemertation of energy saving ennancements

It1simpartant to note that the imcrease :n E rating °s

due 1o changes ir the assessment critera and the
majority of the E and D ratings are at Wandswortn where
the strateqy s to ether complete a comprehensive
refurbishment or a full-scale redevelopment ir tne mid
term Work an this preject wil comp'ete prior to the 2030
MEES standard whrch will require a mimmune EPC of

B Once this project has been delivered the percentage
cf tne portfo'ic by ERV acmieving 2030 compiiance will
ircrease to 88%. This s before any other erhancements
are implemented

Further 1o thig, the Company has now raised the target
of achievirga mimimum EPC rating to the rinimur of a
B for a' plarred refurbrsnments and upgrade works to
the portfole. Taus forms part of the w der ESG-focused
ref rbsnment check!.st

EPC (% of ERV)

E 8%
(2022: 6%)

D 28%
(2022, 32%;)

Cie%
2022:13%)

Tk Property Ir sestment Trust



The Company has been working closely with the major
tenant of our industriai estate ir Giolcester 1o nstal
PV celis on the roof of the bullding to generate cheap,
low carbon (carbor neutral) energy on site  Irfusion
who package spec alist teas for a number of high-end,
3rd party customers kave been a key tenant on the
estate since purchase in 2015 and sustamability is key
to the company ethos. The installatior of PV celis on
the roof was a critical deve opment for the compary in
its path towards net zero carbon Results to date have
been very positive with 80% of the ons'te generation
bemng corsumed o1 site and the balance being exported
togrid infusion project that 75% of their total annual
electricity consumption will be generated on site.

The key facts of the installation are
+ System Size - 244 8kWp
- Year 1 Gereration Prediction — 231,752kWh's
» CO2 Saving per annum — 49 tonnes

EPC improvement from Cratingto B
This huge'y successful project demonstrates our
occupier-focused opportunity-led approach whereby we
have championed our occupler's success In achieving
their sustamability goals whilst also .mproving the
environmental profile for the portfolio Fol'owing this

success we are investigating installing PV onte the
rerraining urits on the estate.

Annual Report & Accaunts 2023

"infusion GB are extremely committed to reducing our
environmental footprint and the installation of Solar

PV at Gloucester was a critical step towards this. The
proactive engagement of TRPIT was instrumental to this
and enabled us to install a self-generating power source
to owr bulldings This inthative has been incredibly well
recerved by customers, supphers and empioyees alike”
Bruce Stevens, Commercia Directer Infusion 5B
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Responsible investment
continued

Social

The management team nas continued actively to ergage
with oCccupiers 1o support and potentiany mvest n their
ESG objectves Communicatior and co'laborat on plays a
central ro'e i ach eving ESG gaals,

A guarterly ESG news'etter 's now pubished ard
circulated wth occupers to encourage engagerment Key
content for the newsletter includes inv't ng occuplers

1o participate in the AMR nstallation programme,
communty engagement intiatives and rais'ng biodvers ty
awareness across tre portfolio which inciude tne
mstallation of bird boxes and bug hotels at Gioucester

At Wandswort™ we nave successfully maraged to
mtegrate a critca’ 'ocal commurity partrer nto Ferrier
Streettrrough tre letung of Unit 16 to the Wandsworth
Foodbank. By etting the un't at nil rert we have enabled
ther {o contue 1o suppaort people and famiies fac ng
severe hardsn'p across Wandswortn Borough inthe
last year over 11,0000 ermergency food parce s were
provdedto 'ocal Fouseholds in severe hardsk p Witna
.arger facinty at Ferr er St tney rave beer, able to increase
the remrergercy food provisior by 71% trroagnodt tre
boro.gh and del ver d'rectiy to those rouselclds who
cannolaccess ther Weicome Centres,

"Wandsworth Focdbank are extremely gratefulto TR
Froperty Investment Trust for enabling our move (o
Ferner St Tne warehouse provides us with § space (o
recerve, sortand store large amounts of donsted food
and dispatch it to our seven VWelcome Centres and
diectly 10 pecple s romes We are really qrateful for this
partnershug a5 we support iocal housenslds througn the
cost-of-living ensis "Dar Fri- Wardsworis Foodbark
tiarager

TR Prozerty Inesimert Trust



The Coonnades Is also central o the community
‘andscape of the Bayswater area and it 1s vital that it1s
fully mtegrated irto this ervironment We have continued
to work with our local community partners at the
Colonnades over tne last 12 monins to help alleviate the
challenges of rough sleepers in the Bayswater area.

Governance

I~ order to deqver our ESG targets 111s essential that our
nternal management structure s fus'y aigned with our
strateqy The Sustainability ard Social Respansibiiity
Committee meets on a bimonrthly basis to ensure that we
are on track wth our Sustainability Rcadmap objectives
through the thorough review of current intigtives and
implementation The Committee works in partnership
with our managing agerts (Stiles Harrold Witiiams)

to ensure we maintan a sustainab.e supply chain

which complements cur net zero carbon goals This s
demenstrated through objectives set 1o ensure 100%

of waste material under landlord control is not sent to
landfill The accreditation of our managing agent to Safe
Contractor also demonstrales cur commitment 1o paying
ail directly employed staff on our assets a real Living
Wage. In addition, the management team atterd regular
ESG training everts and seminars, continuing our internal
education around ESG and making sure that all avenues
are being explored to achieve positive outcomes across
the portfolio

Net Zero Carbon Pathway

This significant progress over the last twelve months
demonstrates our firm commitment to bring forward our
net zero carbon 2050 strategy Through our thorough
carbon corsumption data maragement. GRESB
submission and MEES improvements we will be able

to clearly set aut our key objectives for the forthcoming
year.

We will continue to expard our AMR programme to
maximise our comprehensive dataset on Serra+ This
w.ll provide further insight ‘nto how we can identify a1d
implemert energy saving measures, targeting Scope 1
ard 2 emissigns.

In October 2023 we will have the Company’'s inadgural
GRESBrating. Fromthis we wi'l be able analyse the
resdlts t¢ formulate a rob st strategy to strengther this
rating ard target an ncrease of at least gne star for the
next subrmission

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

It order to furtner futureproof the portfolio against MEES
we will continue 1o track aur exposure to inefficent
assets through regular EPC analysis. By reducing the
portfol'o's reliance on fossii fuels and ImMp-ementing
further renewable energy sources throwgh solar PV, we
wi. cortinue to dnve down the higner EPC rated assels

Over tne next twelve mont~s we wil' strengthen our
maragement of Scope 2 emissions. We will contire to
col aborate with our supplers and occuplers ta adopt
rrore sustanable pract ces, reduce their reliance on
fossil fuels and delver best in class asset management
to improve our pathway to net zerc carben through
carefully planned and delvered ntervertions

By successfuly achieving these objectives over the
forthcomirg year we expect to be able to declare
an ambitioJs improvement on our net zero caibon
cormrmitment, bringing it farward from 2050,

[
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Portfolio

as at 31 March

2022 2022 0.5%
£000 %
UK Securities’
- guoted 385,876 40.5 518417 33.2
UK investment Properties ) 73,957 7.7 96,255 61
UK Total 459,833 48.2 614672 393
Continental Europe Securities
- quoted 488,839 513 940,744 0.2
Investments held at fair value 948,672 99.5 1555476 99 5
_CFD (ereditorj/debtor. . 4662 05 7857 04
Total Investment Positions 953,334 100.0 1,563,073 100.0 @ UK Securities
UK Property
| Continental Eurgpe
as at 31 March Securities
2022 2022 CFD Debtors/Creditors
£'000 %
Uk Securities
- quoted 385,876 35.7 518,417 256
- CFD exposure® 75,963 7.0 57,324 2.9
UK Investment Properties 73957 7.0 96,258 5.5
UK Total 535,796 49.7 671,996 340
Continental Europe Securities
- gquoted 488,839 45.2 940,744 59.5
-CFD exposure® o 54943 51 87318 65
Total investment exposure? 1,079,578 100.0 1,700,058 100.0
£31 March & Secunties
aee o Urd 2022 2021 2020 2019 UK Property
Total investments £949m £1.555m £140Tm  £1,785m  £1.291Tm
Net assets £968m £1.563m  £1326m £1,136m  £1,328m
UK guoted property shares 41% 33% 28% 3% 33%
Overseas quoted property shares 51% 60% B66% 651% 59%
Direct property (externally valued) 8% 6% 6% 8% 8%
as at 31 March
2023 2022 2022
Benchmark Company Benchmark
0/0 % n/O
GBP 357 339 33.6
EUR 41.3 4719 42.3
CHFE 9.5 74 71
SEK 138 16.3 16.3
NOK 032 05 04
Jk securtes no udes cne un steg o dng D TEs

T1z neestUees ustatngoraveterposute ntudngthe yoss s uesf LR posione

M
O
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Investment portfolio by country

[
=
@
=
=
]
k3

Market Market
value value
o o % %
Belgium ' Sweden
Xior Student Housing 15,267 1.6 wihlborgs 21,999 23
Aedifica 8,959 0.9 Fastighets Balder B 19,804 2.1
Care Property Invest 7,191 0.7 Catena 11,166 1.2
icade 5,457 06 Sagax 10,677 1.1
Intervest Offices & Warehouses 3,476 0.4 Samballsbyggnadsbolaget 8,410 0.9
Montea 1,732 0.2 Fabege 6,382 0.7
Warehouses De Pau 1,429 0.1 Pandox 3,939 0.4
Shugard Self Storage 6uU1 0.1 Platzer Fastigheter 2,706 0.3
' o ’ 44112 4.6 Atrium Ljungberg 1,493 0.
- Cibus Nordic Real Estate 1,274 0. g
France Fastighets Necho o 742 01 i
Gecina 34,321 3.6 o o 88,592 9.3 8
Klepierre 29,984 31 3
Argan 22,445 2.4 Switzerland
Cavivio 16,785 18 Psp Swiss Property 40,606 4.2
Carmila 5741 0.6 Swiss Prime Site o 25,547 27
Altarea o 1,170 0.1 ) ) _ 66,153 69
) ) 110446 116
United Kingdom
Germany Segro 79,223 8.3 ]
Vonovia 72,456 7.6 Safestore Holdings 42,509 4.5 é
LEG immabiiien 14,868 16 Picton Property Income 32,628 3.4 a
TAG Immobilien 13,014 1.3 Industrials REIT 28,318 3.0 &
Arounctown 4310 0.5  LandSec 28,199 3.0 2
104,648 1.0 Sirlus Real Estate 23,664 2.5 @
T ' Phoenix Spree Deutschland 23,137 2.4
Netherlands Great Portland 22,973 2.4
Eurccommercial Properties 24,767 2.6 Ediston Property 19,440 20
NSI 2,902 0.2 Londonmetric Property 17,115 18 c
Unibail Rodamco Westfield 2,110 0.2 Unite Group 15,219 16 2
T T T 29779 31 CT Property 14,262 15 5
T T workspace 13,390 1.4 3
Norway Tritax Big Box REIT 7,033 0.7 E
Entra 3,509 0.4 Supermarket Income REIT 2,909 0.3 ES
o o 3509 04 Hammerson 2,827 0.3 ‘%
-7 warehouse REIT 2,700 0.3 ]
Spain Atrato Cap 2,573 0.3 H
Merlin Properties 26,908 28 Urban Logistics REIT 2,494 0.2
Arima Real Estate 10,531 1.7 Shaftsbury 1,709 02 g
Inrmobiliana Colonial 4,161 0.4 Helical 1,408 0.1 E
’ 41,600 413 Cap & Regional 1,205 0.1 >
T T i Newriver REIT 941 A g
385,876 40.5
Direct Property 73,957 7.8
CFD Paositions (included in
current assets and liabilities) 4,662 0.5 "
&
o
Total Investment Positions 953,334 1000 g
g
3
Notes %
> Companies shown by cauntry o hstng %
=

» The above positions are the physical holdings ncluded in the investrments held 2t ‘ar value n the Balance Saeet, The CFD pos tions 1s the netof the profit o loss on the
CFD contiacts { e not the mvestment cxposor e included 0 tne Baance Sheet current 2ssets and labiltes

[
~1
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Twelve largest equity investments

: SEGRO

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value £79.2m  £773m
% of investment

portfolio” 7.3% 4.5%
% of equity

owned _ D9%_  _05%
Share price 768p 1346 0p
Segro {UK)

Segrois thelargest UK REIT by market cap
and s the largest operator of logistics and
industrial property listed in the UK, with a
total portfolio of ¢ £18bn (split £ 62 0% in
the UK, ¢.38.0% in Continental Europe, with
©.56.0% urban warehouses, .26 0% big
boxes and ¢.18.0% land and ather uses)

in the UK, the group 1s mainly expased to
Greater London industrial and logistics
Rental growth in these markets has been
extremely strong as there remains an
acute supply-demand imbalance, fuelled
by tenants' requirements to deai with the
growth in e-commerce

In Europe, Germany and France are the
group’s largest markets with Italy third;
these markets have alower, but still
positive, rettal growth cutiock (and are
geographically less space-constrained). In
2H22 UK valuations saw a sharp correction,
while E valuations have lagged the
aggressive repricing of the UK. Segro has
extensive development exposure that it
manages largely to pre-let and develop at
yields significantly in excess of investment
values (¢ 6-7% vieid Gn cost vs. an EPRA
netinitial yieldof 3 7% at FY22) This has
been a successful formula to drive both
earnings ana NAV growth, as well as tugh
shareholder returns

The five-year tota' sharehoider return tas
Deen +45 74

VOINovViAa

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value E72.5m  £7489m
% of investment

portfolio” 6.7% 8.8%
% of equity

owned ~ 0e%  05%
Share price €17.34 €42.31

Vonovia (Germany)

Vonovia is a German listed residential
company and the largest real estate
company in Continental Europe by market
capitalisation. Atthe end of 2022, the
company owned a portfolio of ¢.€85.80n,
primarily split between Germany {c 88.9%
of value), Sweden (c.7 4%) and Austria
(c.3.7%). The portfolio has incregsed
dramatically and stands at 548,000 units,
following a string of acquisitions, mostly
of listed peers, such as Deutsche Wohnen,
Hermbla, Victoria Park, and BUWOG

Vonovia is involved inthe whole value chan

of the residential sector via its remtal business
{(€.80.1% of group EBITDA), third-party
developrment segment (.6 7%), recurring
sales segrment (¢ 4.9%}, its value-add
segment (energy, muitimedia, and other
senvices segment, ¢.4.6%)and s nursing
segment (€.3.0%). The Gerrman residential
sectorremiaing heavily regulated, yet Vonavia
has continually been able to generate sofid
rent growth (+3 3%1n 2022), whilst also
complying withregulations and assuming a
social role, which permits them to benefit from
critical political goodwill and partnerships (as
observed by the 20 000-unit portfalic saleto
the State of Berinin 2027). Even though asset
vaiues have come under pressure, as seen
with alireal estate asset classes, operationaily
the business continues to perform strongly as
seenby FFO [ growth of 14.6% pss, driven by
operational mprovements and healthy rent
growth Moreover, market evidence points

to further upward revisions torent growth
estmates as the supply demard imbalance in
Germany persists.

The frie-year tora' sharehoider return has
neer-45.7%,

<

LR
31 March 2022
Shareholding
vatue £596m  £61 5m
% of investment
portfolio’ 5.5% 3.6%
% of equity
owned _ __ _17% _ 1.0%
Share price £20.85 £2418

Klepierre (France)

Klépierreig a French REIT, which owns,
cperates, and manages a portfolio of
European shopping centres, spanning ten
countries. At the end of 2022, the company
owned a portfoko of . £19.8bn, with major
exposures In France (¢.38.3% of value),
ltaly (c 23 8%), tberia (c.13.0%), Germany/
Netherlands {c 8 7%}, and the Nordics
(£.8.7%). The company, like all shopping
centre owners, has reaped the benefits of
areturn to normality as social gatherings
are permitted and travel restrictions have
been lifted demonstrated in its strong
rebound in footfall and tenant safes. While
the ohgoing shift towards e-commerce
as aretail channel has continued, it has

at a slower rate, even retreating In certain
markets, with digitally native retailers
pivoting to physical by apening stares. On
arelative basis, the company continues to
benefit from its 100% focus on Continental
Europe, without any exposure 1o weaker
UK and US markets. Lastly. the company
benefits from the experience of the
Chairman, David Simon, also Chairman
and CEO of Simon Property Group, which
owns a ¢ 22.3% stake in Kléprerre,

In 2022, EPS growth was +18.7% Yoy,
benefiing from accelerating indexation
and eccupancy improverments, with
EPRA NTA broadly flat Yo¥ Meanwhile,
it's financial metrigs remain conservative
with a net debt to EBITDA of 79x and an
EPRA TV of c.43.7% Its average cost of
debtisiowatustc ' 2%, and s expected
toremain low as evidenced by 1ts high
hedging ratio of .20 (%, ang weighted
average ioan maturity of 6.5 years.

The five-yeartotal shareholder return has
been-4.5%

T Notes:
Thepercentzge of nvestment por U £ pos tons sel out sk tee 0o utde ecpodires traugh TFL forbotn e nd L duz postors and tne potio
- Tmef seeat 1Tk snatenode tMis 37 19 Pl King 205 cuenc, ez d ng
ze “F Property irestmert Trust
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31 March 2022
Shareholding

value £59.§m7 £452m
% of investment

portfolic! 5.5% 2.7%
% of equity

owned T3%  08%
Share price 621p 786p

Land Securities (UK)

Landsec is one of the UK's largest REITs,
with a portfolio valued at ¢ £11bn. The
company's assets are a mix of offices
(€.57.0%), retall assets {c.36.0% split
between shopping centres and outlets)
and other uses {c.13.0% such as leisure
assets retail parks and hotels) ¢.61.0%
of the assets arein central Londen.

Since joining the business in 2020 new
CEQ Mark Allen has sought to alter the
company’s strategy, ptedging to sell out
of its non-core assets (e.g. hotels, leisure
assets and retail parks), while increasing
the size of the development pipeline to
focus onlarge mixed-use schemes that
others do not have the capabilities to
deliver. In addition to the established office
development pipeling the company now
plansto spend an additicnal £71.5bn over
five years on mixed use developments,
with a 20% profit on cost target. Balance
sheet management has been relatively
conservative with a very long debt
rnaturity of 10.9 years as at September
2022 netdebt to EBITDA of 8. 7x and LTV
at September 2022 of 31% (and lower
since that date following disposals of
farge office assets including 1 New Street
Square). The company intends to recycle
capital to fund the development pipeline,
avoiding gearing Up despite capex spend,
and has a medium-term target of LTV
remaining in the mid-30s.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been-17 0%.

t Notes:

gec ina

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value £52.4m  £44.0m
% of investment

portfolio’ 4.8% 2.6%
% of equity

owned _ Gen 0.6%
Share price £95.55 £114.3

Gecina (France)

Gecina is the largest French REIT

and s one of the largest real estate
companies in Continental Europe by
market capitalisation. At the end of 2022,
its portfolio was vaiued at ¢.£20.15n,
comprising of offices (¢ 80.0% of vaiue),
residential (¢.18.0%), and student
accommodation (¢.2.0%)

Gecina develops, manages, and owns

a diversified portfohio, which is heavily
skewed toward the Paris region (¢ 97.0%),
and has been selling non-core assets
outside of Paris inrecent years. In 2022,
Gecina was a primary beneficiary of the
much-debated return to the office trend,
helped by its centrally located and high-
quality portfolio. As aresult, Gecina saw
solid rent increases driven by index-linked
rents, positive reversion and a material
increase in cccupancy levels YoY which
all helped to drive 7 4% EPS growth YoY.
Assetvalues during FY22 were broadly
flat (-0.6% including value creation from
pipeline), as widening yields were offset
with improving rental markets and
stronger indexation, and highlights the
high quality of the portfolio.

The company is one of 8 handful of
Eurcpean real estate companies with an
Arating from Moody's and S&P given its
conservative financial profile, operating
with an EPRA LTV of ¢.36.8%. The average
cost of debt isiow at ¢.1.2%. alongside a
high hedging ratic of £.90.0%, and a long
weighted average foan maturity at 7.5
years.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been-15.4%

31 March 2022
ShareﬁO\d\ng

valuve £42.5m  £604m
% of Investment

portfolio! 3.9% 36%
% of equity

owned_ C20% 2%
Share price 950p 1340p
Safestore (UK)

Safestore is the UK's largest self-storage
operator. owning ¢.160 stores, primarily
in the UK {and weighted towards London
and the South East with ¢.44% of total
group stores) In addition the company
has a large footprint in the Paris market
and has recently been expanding into
new European cities (through both Jv
structures and outright ownership} taking
foctholds in Holland, Spain and Belgium.
Safestore has a best in class operating
platformwhich, along with peer Big Yellow,
aliows it to dominate the UK storage
market, particularly in terms of online
search.

The company has driven consistent
earnings growth both organically (through
like-for-like occupancy, rate growth and
opening new developments) and through
acguisitions. The self-storage market also
performed extrernely strongly during the
COVID-18 pandemic and has repeatedly
shownitsresilient credentials durnng wider
economic turbulence,

The five-year total shareholder return has
been+118.6%,

- The pe-centage of invest-ent portfolio postions set out above include exposures through CFD “or both tne ind vidual posit ans and the portfalio

> Thefive-verr total sharehalder returs ave the returns in the lecal currency of the holding

Annual Report £ Accounts 2023
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Twelve largest equity investments
continued

C o IRl
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L T
31 March 2022
Shareholding
value £40.6m  £446m
%, of investment
portfolio” _ 37% 2.6%
% of equity
gyvned ] _1.0% 1.0%
Share price CHF104.0 CHF121.5

PSP Swiss Property (Switzerland)
PSP Swiss Property is ane of Switzerland's
leading real estate companies, owning

a diversified portfolio of high guality

real estate assets in Switzerland. At the
end of 2022, its portfolio was valued at
CHF% 4bn, comprising of offices (c.64.0%),
retail (c.16 0%), food (c.6 0%), and

other (€.14.0%). The portfolio is skewed
towards Switzerland's key economic
centers, including Zunch {¢c 57.0%, Geneva
{€.14.0%), Basel (c.8 0%), and other major
cities atc 21 .0%.

Underlying property markets in
Switzerland appear to be holding up well.
Transactional evidence s light, but from
the few transactions taking place it seems
that property values for prime assets are
broadly stable. Similarly, demand for office
space In econamic centers such as Zurich
and Geneva i1s expected to remain strong.
As aresult, PSP made further progress
during the year onits vacancy reduction,
lowering vacancy from 3.8% to 3.0% at
Dec 23, and saw like-for-like rents grow by
+2.2%; all this led to EPRA EPS growth of
+4 1%. Moreover, EPRA NTA stifl grew 3%
over the year on modest revaluation gains
andretained earnings. LTV remained iow
at 32 6%, amongst the lowest levels for
Europear property cornpanies while its
current cost of debtis fixed for 4.1 years,

The five-year total shareholder return has
been+37 4%,

AW

L N T Pahle nral

'3 s | ICTON
31 March 2022

Sharehoniﬁé

value £37.3m  £359m
% of investrment

partfalio’ 3.4% 2%

% of equity

owned 99%  67%

Share price 69p 98p

Picton (UK)

Picton is a diversified UK REIT with a
weighting towards UK industrial. The
£850m portfolio, as at September 2022,
was ¢ 58 0% industrial, ¢.32.0% offices
{of which ¢.22 0% London and the South
East) and ¢.10.0% retait {of which ¢.7.C%
retail park). Along with a high quality asset
portfolio, where rental growth and capital
value performance have repeatedly beaten
relevant benchmarks, the company is

run conservatively, taking very hmited
development risk as well as maintaining

a very strong balance sheet For example
the company's LTV as at December

2022 was ¢.26.0%, with long-dated debt
raturity (.10 years} and very imited
near term refinancing requirements. In
addition, we believe the portfolio boasts

a number of valuable asset management
opportunities, including both vacancy
reduction in heavily under-rented space,
and the potential for residential conversion
in cefrtain assets which could provide
lucrative upside versus current valuations.

The five-year total shareholder return has
beer -[.4%.

i industrials

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value £34.5m  £53.3m
% of iInvestment

portfalio’ _ 32% 37%
% of equity

owned_ _ 98% 92%
Share price 118p 198p

Industrials RE!T (UK)

Industrials REIT is a UK focused

multi-et industrial business. The portfolio
has been transformed over a number of
years to focus sofefy on the UK MLI sector,
and the £660m portfelio is now c.95% MLI
(as at September 2022}, Over a number
of years the UK MLI asset class has seen
strong capital value growth, driven by
both yield compression and ongoing ERV
growth (in the 12 months to December
2022 Industnals REIT has seen LfL ERV
growth of +10 5%}, with rents coming from
alow base (average passing rent inthe
portfolio was £5.94 at December 2022). In
addition ta its strong underlying property
fundarmentals the company’s Hive
operating platform gives the company
access 1o data on enguiry levels and
demand, as well as atlowing for innovative
operational approaches such as the

use of digital short-form smart [eases,
speeding the letting process and reducing
any negative drag from portfelio vacancy.
Total shareholder return since IPO In June
2078 has been+29.0%, and the company
was recently bid for by Blackstone at a
premium of +42 0% to the clasing price
before the offer was made.

The total shareholder return since listing
{15:06/18) has heen+29.0%.

+ Notes:
- TAe pertentzge ¢F nvestment poots o pos tons setout abioye no.ude expostres trougs LFC ‘o botatte nd s dug postors andtnepontic ©
~ Tmefleseatiole snErens der ety are the telunis ntte ana tuensy ofthenadng

L)
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31 March 2022
Shareholding
value _E269m  £478m
% of Investment
portfolio” 2.5% 2.8%
% of equity
owned _ o 08% 1%
Share price €8.06 £10 59

Merlin Properties {(Spain)

Merlin Properties is a Spanish diversified
REIT with 2 ¢.€11.3bn pertfolic. The
majority of the company’'s assets are
offices {c 56 4%), where the company
focusses its exposure on Major cities,
primarily Madrid and Barcelona.
Additionally, the company owns shopping
centres (c.18.9%), data centres/logistics
(c 12 4%) with the residual © 12.4% of
assets in land and other uses.

As aresult of inflation and continued
tenant dernand in the Spanish market, the
business continued 1o perform well with
average like-for-like rent growth of 7.3% and
year end occupancy of 95.1% (a 60bps YoY
improvement). Even though property values
are not insulated from wider market trends
(asset values declined -1.5% YoY) yields
have already significantly widened by 44bps
and are therefarelikely to provide more
protection going forward. During 2022,
Merlin completed the sale of its net lease
portfolio, comprised of 659 bank branches
letto BBVA, forc.£2.0bnata 17% premium
toits book value (the BBVA portfolio
represented ¢.15% of the total partfalio).

As aresult of this transaction, the company
managed to significantly reduce its EPRA
LTV by 800bps to €.35.8% by financial year
end. This gives the company significant
flexibility going forward as it evaluates

its development pipeline in combimnation
outlook for property values. Moreover, its
costof debt remains low, at an average of
¢.2.0%, with a hedgeratio of .99 6%, and

a weighted average loan maturity remains
long at 4.9 years.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been-15.4%.

1 Notes:

i PHOENIX
H 2 SPREE
31 March 2022
Shareholding

value _ f268m  £51.9m
% of investment

portfolio’ ) 2.5% 31%
% of equity

owned 15.7%  147%
Share price 186p 382p
Phoenix Spree (UK)

Phoenix Spree Deutschland is a UK listed
investrment company that owns residential
units, exclusively in Berlin, Germany. The
company is predominantly mvested in
so-called ‘altbau’ properties (typically built
between 1900-1940} which offer features
that remain highly desired by prospective
tenants and buyers, At the end of 2022,
the company's portfolio was valued at

¢ €776m. The company aims to maximize
shareholder returns by converting

rental units into condominums and sell
these in the open market at significantly
higher values.

During 2023, the company continued

to benefit from a structural supply and
demand imbalance in Germany and Berlin
specificalty, which led to healthy rent
growth of +3.9%, with new lettings signed
6.6% ahead of the prior year. Furthermore,
increased mortgage costs will likely mean
that many prospective buyers will rent

for longer as mortgages have become
more expensive. This will likely lead to
further upward pressure to market rents.
Nonetheless, property values reduced by
-3.1% over the year as a result of increased
interestrates, which led to a decline inthe
EPRANTA of -9 7%, even as average sales
prices were still materially (+22.4%} ahead
of trailing book values. Whilst transaction
volumes have significantly declined as

a result of interestrate increases, It s
expected that investrment volumes should
pick up again once interest rates have
stabilized

The five-year total shareholder return has
been -40.5%,

P SWISS PRIMIE SITE
31 March 2022
Shareholding

value £256rn £274m
% of investment

portfo\io' 2._4%” 1 6%
% of equity

owned . 05%  05%
Share price CHF76.05 CHFS1.25

Swiss Prime Site {Switzerland)
Swiss Prime Site is one of the largest
real estate companies in Switzerland,
with a diversified portfolio of real estate
assets, coupled with a leading real estate
investment {indirect} business. It owns
adiversified real estate portfolio, which
was valued at CHF 13.7bn, comprising of
offices {c.44.0% of value}, retaii (c.26.0%),
logistics (9.0%), botels (€.7.0%), with the
residualc. 14 0% of assets in land and
other uses.

Despite a slowdown in transactions,
underlying property marketsin
Switzerland appear to be holding up well,
as the few transactions that did take
place appeared broadly supportive of
existing asset values. Moreover, tenant
demand remains healthy. During 2022
and the early start of 2023 SPS has made
significant efforts to simplify its corporate
structure (the szle of Wincasa, a real
estate services company) and exit the
retail business (Jelmoli). Meanwhile, the
underlying business continues to perform
well, with like-for-like rent growth of +1.9%
and further vacancy reduction (-30bps

1o 4.3%) whilst EPRANTA increased
modestly with +7.7% on the back of stable
property values. The reported LTV reduced
by 130bps over the year to 38 9% and cost
of debt was kept low at 0.9%.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been +59%.

» The percentage of investment portfalio poaitons set out above include expusyses Lrough CFD for both the individua. positions and the partfolie
» Thefive-yeal tofal shareholde returns a-¢ the -eturns inthe ooa: currency of tne hading

Annual Report & Accounts 2023
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Investment properties

Spread of direct portfolio by capita

i vaiue (%)

Retail Ingustrial
west End of London 50.0 ] =
lnﬂerLé}ﬂdon* -7 17 - ' 376
South West - 10.7
Total 51.7 48.3

*nner London defined as inside the Nosth and Soutl

h Circuiar.

Lease lengths within the direct property portfolio

# Oto Syears
516 WO_y“ears

| | 1010 15 years
: 1510 20 years
20+ years

The Colonnades, Bishops Bridge Road,
London, W2

it

Sector: Mixed use

Tenure; Freehold

Size (sq ft): 64,000

Principal tenants: Watrose Ltd,
Graham & Green, Happy Lamb Hot Pot,
1Rebel, Specsavers

The property comprises a large
mixea-use block in Bayswater constructed
inthe mid-1970s The site extends 1o
approximately 2 acres onthe north east
corner of the jJunct:.on of B'shops Bridge
Road and Porchester Road close to
Bayswater tube station and ongoirg
development of The Whiteley. The
commercial element was extended and
refurbished in 2015 with a new 20 year
lease being agreed with Waitrose.

a3
[

Gross rental

income

Ferrier Street Industrial Estate,
Wandsworth, London, SW18

Sector: industrial

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft): 36,000

Principal tenants: Sweaty Betty, Richard
Dawes Fine Wines, Lockdown Bakers

S.me of Just over an acre, 50 metres from
Wancsworth Town raliway station e ar
areathat is predominantly residentia
The estate compr ses 16 srrallindustr.al
units generally lettoamix of srallto
medidm-Sized private companes.
Plarning permissior granted in
December 2019 for a mixed-use
employmert lea redevelopment

Contracted rent

£29m
£99m
- £1415m

10 Centre, Gloucester Business Park,
Gloucester, GL3

Sector: Industrial

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft): 63,000

Principal tenants: infusicon GB, Pulsin Ltd

The I0 Certre comprises six irdustrial
Jnits occupied by three tenants and
sits ona 4 H-acre site. Gloucester
Business Park s ocated to the east of
Janction T1Aof the i3S and one mile to
the east of Gloucester City Centre. The
property alsc has easy access to the
A417 providing good links to the M4 via
Jurction 15,

TR Property Investmert Trus:
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The Company's investment objective 1S to maximise
shareholders’ total returns by investing in the shares
and securities of property companies and property
related businesses internationally and alsc in
investment property located in the UK.

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Return Index in sterling. The
index, calculated by FTSE, 1s free-float based and as
at 31 March 2023 had 109 constituent companies.
The index limits exposure to any one company to 10%
and reweights the other constituents pro-rata. The
benchmark website www.epra.com contains further
details about the index and performance

e o B sle
s Ons o Ole!

The Company's business model follows that of an
externally managed investment trust company.
The Company has nc employees Its wholly non-
executive Board of Directors retains responsibility
for corporate strategy, corporate governance,

risk management and internal control; the overall
investment and dividend policies; setting limits

on gearnng and asset allocation and monitering
investment performance.

The Board has appointed Columbia Threadneedie
Investment Business Limited as the Company's
Alternative Investment Fund Manager (AIFM') with
portfolio management delegated to Thames River
Capital LLP Marcus Phayre-Mudge acts as Fund
Manager to the Company on behalf of Thames River
Capital LLP and Alban Lhonneur is Deputy Fund
Manager. George Gay is the Direct Property Manager
and Joanne Eliiott the Finance Manager. They are
supported by a team of equity and portfolio analysts

Further information in relation to the Board and the
arrangements under the Investment Management
Agreement can be found in the Report of the Directors
on pages 4910 51.

In accordance with the Aiternative Investment
Fund Managers Directive [AIFMD'), BNP Paribas
has been appointed as Depesitary to the Company.
BNP Paribas also provides custedial and
administrative services to the Company.

Company Secretarial services are provided

by Columbia Threadneedle Investment Business
Limited.

A summary of the terms of the Investment
Management Agreement are set out on
pages 58 and 59
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Strategy and investment policies

The nvestiment selection process seeks to dentify
we'l managed companies of all sizes The Manager
generaly regards futue growth and capital

apprec ation potential more highiy than immed:ate
yeeld or discount to asset value

Altrough tre investmer't objective allows for
mvestrert on an internationa. bas.s, the Compary's
benchmark 1s a pan-European Index and the
magjorty of tne irvestmerts wiil be ‘ocated 0 that
geograprical area Direct property investments are
located inthe UK on'y

As a ded'cated irvestor i1 the property sector

the Company cannot offer diversificatior outside
that sector, nowever, w'tirin the portfolic there
are ImMitatcrs, as set out below, on the size of
indmwidual investrrents reld to ensare that there 15
d'vers.fication w tnir the portfolic.

The maximum holding in the stock of any one 1ssuer
or of a single asset s 'imited to 15% of the portfouo
at tme paint of acqu's:ition Ir addition, any holdirgs in
excess of 5% of the portfol.o must not in aggregate
exceed 40% of the portfolio

The Manager carrently applies the folowing
guidelines for asset allocation”

UK listed equities 25~ 60%
Continental European

listed equities 45— 75%
Cirect Property ~ UK 0-20%
Other listed equities 0-5%
Listed bonds 0-5%
Ungquoted investments 0-5%

Treassetal ocation guide ire wpper mit for UK
l.sted equteshas ncreased from B0% to 2% Tre
reg.iremert for tre weight 1g to UK comrerca
property as not cranged, Fowever the numter of
copan eshod grea estate iccated .~ Erope
but wth a UK strgbas ~creased trerefore tne
asset 3 .ccatier guide’ire has beer crarged (o
accowrrodatetrs

Tre Company may emnp'oy ievels of gearrg from
time 1o time w tn tre aim of e~nancing returns,
subject to anoveral’ rmaximum of 25% of the portfelo
vaiue

In certain market conditions the Manager may
consider it pradert not tc employ geanrgata, ard
to hoid part of the portfot.o in casn

The current asset ailocat.on guidelire 15 10% net
cashlo 25% net gearing (as a percertage of porticl.o
value).

0

[nvestment properties are vaided every six montas by
an externa ndeperdent vaLer Va uations of all the
Group's properties as at 31 March 2023 nave been
carried oLt o~ a 'RICS Red Book' bas s and these
valuations have beer adopted in the accounts

Tne Group calges 75% of annual base maragen-ent
fees and finance costs to capital, N fme with the
Board's expected long-term sp'it of retums in the
form of captal gairs ard mcome A performance
fees are charged to capital

itis the Board's current rtentier to =old no more
than 15% cfthe portfciro 'n isted closed-erded
mvestment comparies

Some companes mvestng Ir CcomMmercia or
residertia’ property are structured as | sted externa.ly
managed closed-ended irvestrent comipanies

and tnerefore form part of our “vestrment ur verse.
Athough trsis ot a rode usially favoured by our
Fund Marager. some rvestrrents are made ir these
structures rorder 1o access a part.co ar sector of tne
Tarket or where the mmanagement tea™ s regarded
asespeca ystrorg Ifthose corparies grow ang
becore a arger part of corirvestr-ent ur verse and-
of rew compan-es corvre to the market rth s forrat
the Fund Manager —ay w SrP 10 " Crease exposare

to tnege ver.ces. If tie Marager wisres to ~crease
nvestenttc cver 12°% tre Covpary w make ar

ar~oarcerertacestd Tqy

TR Sroperty Irvesimert Trus:



Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting the Company’s
objective against the following Key Performance Indicators (KPts'):

KPI

The Directors regard the out-performance of the
Company’s net asset va.ue total return relative to
1he benchmark as being an overall measure of value
delwered to the shareholders’ aver the songer term.

Board monitoring
The Board reviews the performance in detail at each meeting
and discusses the results ard outiook with the Manager

KPI

The principal cbjective of tre Company 1s a tota.
return objective, however, the Fund Manager also
aims (o deliver a reliable dividend with growth over
the sorger term.

Board monitoring
The Board reviews statements on income received 1o
date and incorre forecasts at each meeting

KPI

Whilst expectation of investment performance is a key
driver of the snare price discount or premiurm to the Net
Asset Value of an investment trust company over the
'onger term, there are periods when the discount can
widen The Board is aware of the vulnerability of a sector-
specialist to a change of investor sentiment towards that
sector, or to periods of wider market uncertainty and the
impact that can have an the discount

Board monitoring

The Board takes powers at each AGM to buy-back ard
Issue shares Wnen considerng the merits of share

buy- back or issuance the Board looks at a number of
factors, In addition to the short and ionger-term discount
or premium to NAV, 1o assess whether action wou.d be
beneficial to shareholders overall Particular attention

1S paid ta the current matket sent ment, the potent al
impact of any share buy-back activity or the iguidity of
the shares and o Gngoing Charges over the longer term

Anrual Repert & Accourts 2023

Outcome
NAV Total Return* (Annualised) ) -35.5% -1.8%
Benchmark Total Return (Annualised) -340%  -49%

* Tre NAV Tota Return s ca.culated by assuring dwidends paid by the
Company 3¢ omnvested v ine azsets of the Coripany OnIne feievant ex
div dend date The benchimarkicta retun assumes d v dends are re invested
onthe -elevant ex-div dend dates

Although this KPI has nct been met in the current year, it

has over 5 years. The NAV Total Return has exceeded the

henchmark for the previous 12 years.

Outcome
Compound Annual Dividend Growth* . 69% 4.9%
Compound Annual RPI - 13.5% _5.7%

*The final dividend in the time seies divided by the initial d'v'dend in the peniod
131sed ta the power of 1 divided by the numbe: of yearsin the sei es,

The exceptional inflation figure for the year to 31 March

2023 means the Dividend Annual Growth Rate has fallen

behind RPI on both a one and a five year basis. However

a growing dividend has been delivered in the current and

previous 12 years, despite a fall in earnings through the

COVID pandemic. Over the longer term, the dividend growth

rate has comfortably exceeded RPIon an annualised basis

(10years: 8 3% vs 4.0% and 20 years: 10.6% v 3.6%)

Outcome

Average discount* 4T7%

58%

Total number of shares repurchased - -

* Average daily discount troughout the period of share price 1o NAV with
Incorme. Source Bloomberg

The discount has seen wide fluctuations through the year

as market sentiment towards the sector has changed. The

average discount over 1 year s wider than we have seen for

a while however, over 5 years s at a similar level to the prior

year level of -4.6% and to the ten year average of -4 9%,
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Key Performance Indicators
continued

KPI
The Beard s conscious of expenses ard ams to
del ver a balance betweer excelient serv'ice and costs

The AIC defirution of Ongoing Charges ‘ncludes any
direct property costs in addition to the managemrent
fees and al other expenses incurred mriraing a
publicly listed company As no other rvestment trust
companies ho'd part of their portfono in direct property
(they either bold 100% of tre'r portfoio as property
secwrities or as direct property), in additior. to Srgoing
Ciarges as defired by the AIC, this statistic s shown
withaot direct property costs in order to ghow a cearer
comparnsoen of overall admiristratior. costs witr those
of other funds mvesting in securit.es.

Board monitoring

The Board moritors tre Company's Ongong
Crarges, v comparson 1o arange of other
nvestment trust companies of simrar size, both
property sector specialists and other sector
special.sts The broker pravides a .ist of compan-es
A believes is a reasanable cormpar son Note trere s
no other [mvestmert Trust spec’alising ¢ property
related equities,

Experses ara budgeted for eact finaqcia yearanrd
the Board reviews reports o actual and forecast
experses during the vear

KP1
Tne Compary v 81 cortue te reet tre require™ents
of Sectio~ 1158 of the Corporation Tax &ct 2270

Board monitoring

Tre Board revews firarc a rforrraton ard forecasts at
eac” meeting wrich set odtinerequirements oot ned -

Secto~ 1158

Qutcome

Ongoing charges excluding
performance fees 0.73%  064%

Ongoing charges excluding
performance fees and direct
property costs 0.67% 0.62%

The Company's Ongoing Charges are cocmpetitive when
compared 1o the peer group.

Costs over the year nave not ircreased s'gnficantly, tne
increase ntre ange rg cnarges percertage ‘s as aresult
af the fall ir NaY over the vear.

Outcome

Tre D rectors be'eve tnat tre cordit:ons ard 0mgo g
regeirements rave bee~ et nrespect of the year fo
31 March 2023 ardt-att-e Compary w Ccontruelc
~eet trerean rements

Tre KPls are cons dered to be A ter~at ve Ferforrance Measores as defined ater ~t-e Lnrla Beport

()
Iait
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Principal and emerging risks

In delivering long-term returns to shareholders, the Board must also identify and monitor the
risks that have been taken in order to achieve those returns. It has included below details of

the principal and emerging risks facing the Company and the appropriate measures taken in
order to mitigate those risks as far as practicable.

The ongoing conflict in Ukraine has impacted energy and commodity supplies creating
inflationary pressures and prompting central banks to raise interest rates in response.
Interest rates have risen more quickly and to higher levels than was initially anticipated. This
has brought challenges not seen for many years and particularly impacted Lhe property

sector.

The legacy of COVID-19 has seen ongoing changes and challenges in the workplace in terms
of resourcing and changes in working practices.

Share price performs poorly in comparison
to the underlying NAV

The shares of the Campany are listed an the London Stock
Exchange and the share price 1s determined by supply 2nd
demand The snares may trade at a ciscount or premium
to the Company's underlying NAVY and this discount or
prem um may fluctuate over time.

Poor investment performance of the portfolio

relative to the benchmark

The Company's portfolio 1s actively managed In addition

to investment securities, the Company also invests in
comimercial property and accordingly, the portfo io may 1ot
fo low or outperferm the return of the benchmark.

Apnda Rersort & Accounts 2023

The Board monitors tne leve' of discount or premium at
which the shares are trad'ng over the short and longér term.

The Board encourages engagement with the sharenolders
The Boarc receives reports at each meeting on tne activity
of the Company’s brokers, PR agent and meetings and
events attended by the Fund Manager.

The Company’s shares are available through the Columbia
Threadneed.e savings schemes and tne Company
participates in the active marketing of those schemes
The shares are also w.dely avai able on open archtecture
platforms and can be held crrect'y through the Company's
reqistrar

The Board takes the powers to 1ssue and to buy bacx
shares at each AGM.

The Manager's objective 1s to cutperform the benchrarx
The Board regu'ary reviews the Company's long-term
girategy and investment guidelnes and the Manager’s
relative positions aganst those

The Managemen: Engagement Commiitee reviews e
Manager's performance annually The Board has the
powers to change the Manager if deemed appropriate
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Principal and emerging risks
continued

Market risk

Both share prnices ano exchange rates may move *ap.aly and
can adversely impaci the vaiue of the Company's porifola.
Although the porifoia s diversified across a number of
geograpnical regians, the nvestiment mandate s focused
on a single sector and therefore the portfoio wil be sensitive
towaras the property sector, as well as global equiy markets
more generally.

Property companies are subject 1o miany factors which can
acversely a*fect ineir investment performance They inciude
the general economiz anc fmancial environment in wuen telr
tenants operate, imerest rates, availakbilty of nvestment and
vevelopment finance and regulabions ;ssueo by governments
and authorities

Rising interes! rates have an impact on both capita: values
and distribut'ons of property compan'es Figher interest rates
depress capral values as nvestors gemand & marg over an
ncreased tisk-free -ate of return

Although the UK has now ex.ted the European Union, the
structure of its re.ationship with Continental Europe continues
to evolve and there coud be 2n impact on cccupat'on acToss
each sector

The COV\D-1Q gioba pandemic has changec the way we l've
and wor< and uncertainty remains regarding the impact on
eCONOMIEs anc property markets around the world bein in the
short and longe- term

The 'nvasion of Ukraine by Russa i February 2022 created
‘urtner marxet volat ity and uncertarty wen "ema ns.
Aflanion and interest rates are at elevated eve s notseenin
over 1C years

Any strengthening or weaken ng of sterl ng wil, Mave & direci
impact as g proporlion of our balance sheet 1s hed n non-GEF
denomingied currencies The currency exposuTe 's mantamed
N hrie witn the bencimark anc wil cnange over Time. As a1

31 March 2023 60 4 0° the Companys exposure vias 1o
currenicies giher Tan stet ng

The Board receves and considers a regula” report from tne
Manzger cetai! ng asset arocalion, nvestment decisions,
currency exposures, gearing 'evels and "ationa e in relation
to the preva Hng market condimons

The report consigers the wmpact of & range o cur-ent
‘ssues and sets out the Manager's respanse in pos't omng
the portfa o and the angoing implications for the properiy
marxkel, valuat ons overall and by each sector

TR Propery Insesimert Trust



The Company is unable to maintain dividend growth

Lower earmings in the uncerlying portfeho putting pressure
onthe Company's ab ity to grow the dividend could result
from a number of factors

- Altnough most companies negatively impacted by
COVID-19 returned to paying div dends during the year,
with many at pre-covid levels, ris.ng nterest rates have
posec anew threat. The efect on dividenca nas i n
generali not been fe.t through the financial year that we
are reporting on but the mereascd debt costs will have an
impact on eéarn ngs and hence distributions in future,

proenged vacancles in the d rect property portfolio and
lease or rental renegotialions as a result of onger-term
cnanges follow ng COVID-19;

strengthening of sterling reducing the value of overseas
dividend receipts in sterling terms. The Company saw

a matenal ncrease in the level of earnings in the vears
leading up to the COViD-19 pandemic. A s'gnificant factor
inth.s was the weakenng of sterling following the U's
decision 10 leave the £U ('Brexit) Although this has now
passed, the value of steriing may continue 1o fluctuate .:n
the near 0~ medium te-m as tne ionger-tenm impl cations
of Brexit ancd COVID-192 and the impact on the UK and
European economies become clearer The invasion of
Lkraine by Russia has also increased market uncertamnty
The longer-term implicat'ons will differ across the
European econom.es This could lead to currency volatlity
Strengthening of stening would tead to a fall in earnings,

agverse changes in tne tax treatment of dividends or othe-
‘ncome receved by the Company,

changes in the timing of dividend receipts from nvestee
companies,

egacy impact of COVIC-19 on working practices anc
resulting changes n workspace demand; and

negative cutllook leading to a reduction in gearing levels n
order to protect capital has an adverse effect on earnings

Accounting and operational risks

Disruption or falure of systems and processes
underpinning the serv ces proviced by third parties ana ‘ne
nis« that those suppliers provide a sub- stancard service

Arnda Report & Accourts 2022

Tne Boarc receives and cons:ders regu'ar income
forecasts

Income forecast sens tivity to changes n =X alesisa so
momtored.

The Company has substantial revenues reserves waich are
drawn upon when reguired,

The Board continues to moniior the impact of interest
rates, Breail ane COV C-19 and the long-term imphicalions
for incorme generation

Third-party service providers produce periodic reports
to the Board on the.r control environments and business
contiuation provisions on a regular basis

The Management Engagement Committee considers the

performance of each of the serv'ce providers on a requ'ar

basis and cans'ders ther ongong appoitment and terms
and cond.tions

Tne Custodian and Depositary are responsible for the
safeguarding o assets. In the event of a loss of assets
the Depositary must return assels of an identical type or
corresponding value unless 1t is able 'o cemonsirate that
tne loss was the resuit of an event beyond its reasonable
contro
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Principal and emerging risks
continued

Loss of Investment Trust Status

The Company has been accepted by HM Revenue &
Customs as an nvestment trust company, subect to
contnung to meet tne re'evant ehigibiiity conditions.

As sucntne Company ¢ exempt from capial gains tax on
e profits real.sea from the sale of investments.

Any breach of the reievant e igibily Conatons coua lead
to the Company iosing Investment trust status and being
subject to carporation tax on cap'tal ga ns reaused within
the Company’s porifol.o.

Legal, requlatory and reporting risks

rallure to comply witn the Lonaon Stock Exchange
Listing Rules and D.sclosure Guidance and Transparency
Rules; failure to meet *he reguirements of the Alternative
invesiment Fund Managers Regulations, the provisions
o1 the Companies Act 2006 and other JK, European and
gversezs legis aticn affecung UK companies

Fallure to meet the recu.~ed accounting standards or
make appropriate disclosures inthe Ha't Year anc Annual
Reports.

Inappropriate use of gearing

Geanng, either inrough the use of bank debr o derivatives
may be utlised from t.me to time Whilst the use of
gearing 15 ntended to enhance the NAV total return, it well
nave the opposite effect wnen the return of the Company's
investment porifol'c s negatve or where the cos* of deb?
s higne” thanthe return from 1ne portfono

Other Financial risks

The Companys investment actv.ties expase 1110 & varely
of fnancial r sks wn ch nclude counterparty crecit nisk,
iqu.dity r sk ana the valuaton ol financia’ nstrumenits
Personnel changes at investment Manager

Loss of port®o o mangger o ather <ey s7aff

The Investment Manager monitors the ‘nvestment portfalio,
ncome and proposec ¢ vidend leves 10 engure 1hat the

provisions of CTA 2010 are not breached The -esu:s are
‘eporied to the Boara at eacn meeting

Incomie forecasts are reviewsd by the Company s tax
acvisor through e yes who a.8g reports (0 the Boars on
the year-end 1&x posit.en and 01 CTA 2070 campliance

Tne Board recewves regular reguiatory updates from
the Manager, Company Secretary, lega! advisers and
the Auditor The doard cons ders those reports and
recommendcaticns and takes action acco d gly

The Board receves &1 annual report and update from tne
Depositary

interna. checklisis and review procedures are n place at
service providers

Tne Boara receves reguiar reporia i-om the Manager an
the levels of gezring 'n the portfo.o These are cons dered
against the geanng imits setaut 'n e Board s wvestiment
Gu celines ang also n the context of current mar<et
conaitions anc sedtmen: The cost of detzt is monitorec
and a balance sought between te'm, cost and “lexhinty

Ceta s of these nsks together with the po. cies for
manzging thermr a“e found in the Notes to the Financie’
Statements

The Charman conaucts regu ar meehings w ih the Fund
Management eam

ne ‘ee basis protects tne core Tfrastruciure and ceptn
and guaiity of resources Tne Tee strutiure ncentivises
outpe-formance and s funzameniz ntne atilitvioreta n
key staft

TR Sroperty Invesiment Trust



Long-term viability

Inaccerdance with provision 31 of the UK Corporate
Governance Cade, wh.ch requires the Company

to assess the prospects of the Company over

the 'onger term. the Directors have assessed the
prospects of the Company over the coming three
vears, This peniod is used by the Board during the
strateqic panni~g process as it considers this

per.ad of time to be appropriate for a business of the

Companys nature and size

Th g assessment takes account of tre Company's
current position and the polcies and processes for

managing the pnncipal and emerg ng risks set out on
pages 37 to 40 and the Company's ab ity to continue

i operation and to meet its liablities as they fall due
over the period of assessment

In makirg this statement tne Board carred out a
robust assessment of the prircipal and emerging

risks facing the Company, including those that might

threater its business model, future performance,
solvency and ligLidity.

Inreaching their conc'usions the Directors have
reviewed three year forecasts for the Compary with
sensitivity analysis to a number of assumptions’
investee company dvidend growth, interest rates,
foreign excnange rates, tax rates and asset value
growth,

In assessing of the viability of the Company the
Directors have noted that:

+ Tne Caompary has a long-term investment
strategy under which 't invests mamly inread'ly
reaiisable, publicly fisted securities ard which
restricts the level of borrowings

- Of the current equity portfolio, 50% could be
"guidated witnin five trading days and 71% within
1C trading days

« Ona Group hasis, current assets exceed current
‘labities at the Balance Sneet Date

» The Comparyinvesis nrea estate re ated
compan.es which hoid real estate assets and
irvests in commercial real estate drrectly These
investments provide cash rece'pts in the form of

d'vidends, property incomre distnbat'ons and rental

Come

Annual Report & Azcounts 2023

- The Company 1s able to take advantage of iis

closed-end investment trust company structure
to hold a proportion of its portfo.io i less liguid,
direct property and the less |.quid securities of
smaller companes with a view to lorg-term
outperformance

At the Balance Sheet date the Companry had
£120 millior undrawn or 'ts revolving ioan
facilities.

- The structure has also enated the Company to

secure long-term financing. EUR 50 mullior loan
notes 'ssuedin 2016 are due to matJaré at parin
2026 and GBP 15 milhor ioan notes issued on the
same date are due to mature at par in 2031

« Theresult of th's s that of our own debt, 32% nas

fixed interest rates (assuming all loans are fu:ly
drawn). The flexible structi.re allows debt levels to
be rapidly increased and reduced as needed

Ihe impact of COVID-18 on the UK and European
commerciat property markets continued to
diminigh through the year. This resulted in dividend
receipts from investes compames in the current
year significantly stronger than the prior year as
the majority of compar.es have now returred to
paying dividends, although seme at lower levels
than before the pandemic.

- Theinvason of Ukraine 'n February 2022 has

created further market vo atil ty and uncertainty.
However the portfoio remams highly iquid

- The core part of the direct preperty portfolio is

defensively positioned, with 40% of the income
secured to a major supermarket for over 10 years
and benefits from fixed uplifts The balarce of the
portfclio s focused on the industnal sector where
the supp v and demand dynamics remain positive
from an occupationa: stardpont

- The expenses of the Company are largely

predictable and modest ir comparnison with

the assets. Reguiar and robust monitonng of
revenue and expenditure forecasts are undertaken
throughout the year Analysis has shown that the
Company could suffer a reduction in earnings of
86% anrd still be able to meet 'ts labities from
revenue cashflow as they fel due. Expenses cou'd
be met entirely from capital If required due to the
Pquid rature of the portfoi
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Long-term viability
cantinued

Index |.rked income wi't benefit from tre ircrease
nonterest rates.

« Globa' rierest rate :ncreases have adversely
affected tre property sector and tre resctting
ncrease N the cost of debt wi'l uit matew have an
nrpact 00 earn.ngs

+ Some companies fixed debt for the medium term
so. for these compan:es, the impact of currert
rates wii rot be felt for a while.

» The Company has no employees and
conseguertly does 1ot nave redurdarcy or other
employment related "1abilities or respons.bilities

The Company retains title to its assets heid by the
Custodiar which are subject to further safeguards
mposed on the Depositary

- Theimpact of a range of factors have been
cors.dered in terms of the potential effect o
stering 66% of tne porifol 015 exposed to
currencies gther than sterl.rg

The following assumptions have been made in
assessing the longer-term viability:

Real Estate w il cartince to be an .rvestible sector
cof internatona' stock markets and mvestors wil
cart reelo w sh to nave exposJare to that sector.

C'osed-end invesirert trust companies wi
continue to be indeTard by nvestors and
regulater or taxoegqis ation wi'l 1ot change to
an extent to make tne strecture gnattract've i
comparson o otber .rvestment products

Tre performance of tre Corrpany w il contim e
to be satsfactory Should the Board deemithat
perforrance s 'ess tran satisfactory, 1 »as tne
appropr ale powerstorep'ace tre brvestent
NMarager.

The Company’s business mode), capita) structure
and strategy have enabled it to operate over many
decades and the Board expects this to continue into
the future. The Directors confirm therefore that they
have a reasonable expectation that the Company
will continue in operation and meet its liabilities in
full over the coming three years to 31 March 2026.

By order of the Board
David Watson

B
o
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Directors

David Watson

Appointed:
Apnl 2012

Experience:

Dav d became Charman n duly 2020,
or or towhich he served as the Board s
Serior Independert Director ('SID)

and Chairman of the Aud't Commriitee
Dav.d spent 8 years as Finance Cirector
of MEG Group ple, wherehe was a
director of four equity rvestmert
trusts, and more recertly at Aviva

pic as Chief Frnarce Cfficer of Aviva
General Insurance He was Chairman of
Aegor Assel Marazgemert UK plc urte
Septemper 2022 Dawvicd s a Charterec
Accountant and has had a distingu:shes
career r the financial services ndustry

Skills and contribution to the Board:
“hroughout hs éxecut.v& career, Da. o

has acodamaatet reegrioskils r
fnarce aucit ancrisk marsgemen: ard
expenence rthe investiTer: ndustry
H'sexperenceas siZanaCharang
rumter of coarasrave bl s.grif car:
exper erce in shareboider zrd nves o
ercageTen:

Other appointments:

Zacd scurrert y e Srectorof the
Pracentzl Assararce Compan, here
ke Charsthe Aot Comrr tee

1

Kate Bolsover

Appointed:
October 2079

Experience:

Kate previousty worked for Cazenove
Grour ang J.P. Morgan Cazencve
between 1995 and 2005 where she was
Managing Director of the mutua! ‘und
ousiness and latterly directar of Corporate
Cormmun.cations Prior 7o that sheworked
extens ve'y inthe investment fura ndustry
ard was Managing Drector of Baring's
Tutdal funds grodp. Kate was previously
aron-execu ve director of JPMorgar
Arrerizan Investment “rast o.c Senar
Irdependen: Director of Mortanarc uk
Srmalier Companies Trust and Chairmean
and Trustes of Tomorrow s People

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Fromr her exec s ve exper énce, Kate
controgtes sgnficartancre evartsels
ofshe reestrrent indasiry. Herroeon
vancJsboards alse g ves hertheragiart
experence n sharehc cer zrd rveser

engagemert

Other appointments:
scarrer y Crarrar of Fcery

Agian Yaiaes PLT ard Sener ircepercers

L ez She.sasoznor-erec ) e

Tirectior 2f Bal e Gifford & Co Ltoand of
Be esueHealthoare Trust

Tim Gillbanks

Appointed:
Jaruary 2078

Experience:

Tivi1s a Chartered Accouniant, itk
3Cyears experence inthe financizal
services and nvesiment ndustry Most
recently he spent 12 years at Calumopiz
Threadneedle Investmerts, intaly

as Chief Financ a1 Of.cer, then Chig*
Operatng Officer anc final'y ag imterm
Chuef Executive O ficer

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Tmbrrgsawy deexpenence parlicdary
rfinang &l 3ere ces anc nvesTmen.
marageTert. His prevous finaroial
exper erce fur rghes execdtive career
nforrster e b sroie s the Charmar of
the Lud tComTttes

Other appointments:

T s Carremtly s Non-Execdt e ZreciGr
S* Brewn Shimiey & O LUrited Jards
HerzersoniJK:Iresors L1 tedard
.arus Henasrsor Grouz Hoangs L tes

-~

56 ce-Charofthe Boars of
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Sarah-Jane Curlis
T P

Appointed:
January 2020

Experience:

Sarah-uaneis a Member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors She
was previousty Business Director at
Bicester Village for Value Retall Prior
tothat, Sarah-Jane was a direcior of
Covent Garden for Capital ang Counties
PLC. She has also worked for Grosvenor
for 24 years including as London Estate
Director {retai/residentialt and Fund
Manager for LivernoolONE

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Sarah-Jane has gaired extensive
experience during her varen

career, particu arly inthe retail and
experience sectors and i fund ard
investmert managemert activtes

Other appointments:

Sarah-Jane s current:y Property
Director of Bicester Motion as well as &
consultarttovalue Retall PLC

Anrual Regort & Accounts 2023

Andrew Vaughan

r . o .
' st Tt

Appointed:
August 2022

Experience:

Andrew joined Redevco UKIN 2000 as
Managing Director and was appointed CEOQ
n2011 Helbegan hiscareer at Friends
Provident where hewas a fund manager
Andrews spent three years at Moorfied Group
as an Investment Specialist before joining
Redevco He has a BSc.nUrban Estate
Surveying.

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Andrew brings deepr exoenence as a pan-
European direct property investor

QOther appointments:
andrew s Chief Executve Offic
Redeveco B WV

of

D

Busola Sodeinde

[P e

Appointed:
January 2023

Experience:

Busolais a Chartered Management
Accountant who has spent maost of her
executive career INFinancial Services. Until
2019 she was a Managing Director/Chief
Financial Officer at State Street Global
Markets EMEA, prior to which she was
Finance Director to the Corporate Finance
team of Deutsche Bank Capital Markets.
Busola s the fourder of a digital publishing
firm focused on literacy andisa'so a
supporter of wornen-ied ventures.

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Busola has consicerable experience in
the financial services sector and from her
non-executive career has gained expertise
inauatandrisk She also has experience
i digitalisocial) media and consumer
engagement

Other appointments:

Busola sanon-executivedirector of
Hargreave Hale AIM VCT PLC, The
Ombudeman Services, a trustee of the
Church Commussioners for Engiand, where
she sits on the Audit & Risk Committee, and
a Trustee of The Scouts Association.
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Managers

7

Marcus Phayre-Mudge joined the maragemert team

for the Compary at Hendersor G.obal Investars in
January 1997, .nitially managing tre Company's direct
property portfoio and atterly fotus'ng on real estate
equiies, managirg a rumber of UK and par-Europear
rea. estate equity funds in addit:on to actvites in the
Trust. Marcus maved to Trames River Capital in October
20C4 where re s also furd manager of Thames River
Property Growth & Income Fund Limited. Prior to joiring
Henderson, Marcus was ar mvestment surveyar at
Knight Frank {1996) and was made ar Associate Partner
intrne furd management dwvis:on (1995). He qual fied as
a Chartered Surveyor 11992 and has a BSc {Hons) r
Lard Management from Read ng University

Marcus Phayre-Mudge

Jo Elliott

40 El'iolt has beer F nance Manager since 1995, first at
Herderson Glabal Irvestars tnen, since January 2005,
at Thames Rver Capital, when ske joined as CFO for the
property team She joined Hendérser Globa Investors
N 1885 where sne rost recertiy he.d ihe position of
Drector of Property, Finance & Gperations Europe.
Previously she was Corporate Fimarce Manager wth
Londor and Edinburgn Trust ple and prior to that was
an mvestment/ireasJry analyst w.th Heron Corporaticn
plc. o has a BSc (Hons) 'n Zoology from the University
af Nottirgham ard qualfied as a Chartered Accountart
vt Erst & Young ir 1988

George Gay

George Gay ~as beer the Direct Property Fu-d Manager
$ 1ce 2008 Hejo-ed Trares River Captal 72055 as
ass stant d rect property manager a7d qua fied as a
Cnartered Surveyor r 2006 George was prev.ous v at
~iche Oty nvestre~tagert Margar Pepper wrere as
an mvestrert gradaate ne ga ned cors derabe ~dostry
expere~ce He masa~ Mas i~ Property Va.at 27 a~d Law
fro= Cty - cersty

I
on

Alban Lhonneur

Alban Lnonreur, Depoty Furd Marager jo ~ed Trares
River Captar » Aug.st 2008 He was prevousiy at
Ctagrodp Geba Markets as ar Equ'ty Research a~a yst
focus~go- Contimental Ecropear Rea kstate Proric
tngt re was at Soc ele Senera e Secur hes where ~e
focosed o trarsport equty reSearct He=as a BSc

~ B.us ~ess and Marage~e~tfrom tre ESC Touloose
nooLdmg ore year at Brone Uroiers ty Lordan

He a scatte~ded CERANM Mize H g~ Busimess Scnoo

I 2005 re ofta red a post-graduate Spec’a sed Master
~Fnarce - Z00E from ESCR-EAP
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present the audited hinancial statements

of the Group and the Corrpany and their Strategic Report
and Report of Directors for the year ended 31 March

2023 The Group compr ses TR Property Investment Trust
plc and its wholly owned subsidiaries As permitted by
legislation, some Matters normally included n the Report
of the Dnrectors have been included 0 tre Strateg'c Report
because the Board cons.ders ther to be of strategic
importance Therefare, the review of the business of the
Compary recent everts and cutlook can be found on
pages 4to 42

Status

The Company is an investment company, as defined in
Section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 and operates as
an imvestment trust in accordance with Section 1158 of
the Corporation Tax Act 2010,

The Comrpany has & single share class, Ordinary shares,
with a nom na: value of 2bp eachk whicn are premium
listed on the Londor Stock Exchange.

The Company has received confirmation from HM
Revenue & Customs that 't has been accepted as an
approved investment trust for accounting perods
commencing on of after 1 Aprit 2012 subject to the
Company continuing to meet the eligibility conditions of
Section 1158 Corparation: Tax Act 2070 and the ongoing
requ rements for approved companies in Chapter 3 of
Part 2 Investrment Trust (Approved Company) (Tax)
Reguiations 20171 (Statutory Irstrament 2011/2699)

The Directors are of the opinicn that the Company has
conducted and will continue to cornduct its affairs so as
to maintain mvestrmert trust status. The Company has
also conducted its affairs, and will continue to conduct
its affairs, ™ such a way as to comply with the Individual
Savings Accounts Reguiaticns. Tne Crdinary shares can
be held in Individua, Savings Accounts (1SAsT).

Results and dividends

AU 371 Marcn 2023 the net assets of the Company
amocorted to £968 million {2022 £1.563 million), on a per
share basis 305 13p (2022 492 43p) per share.

Revenue earnings per siare for the year amounted to

17 22p (202213 69p) and the Drectors recommend the
payment of a fina dividend of 9 85p (2022: 9 20p) per
share bring ng the tota dividend for the vear to 15 S0p
(2022 14 50p} In arrving at their dwvidend proposal the
Board also reviewed the mcome forecast for the year to
March 2024

Arndal Report & Accounts 2023

Performance detaiis are set out in the Financial Hignlights

on page 2 and the outcome of what the Directors consider

o be the Key Performance Indicators on pages 35 and 36,
The Chairman's Statemert and the Marager's Report give full
deta Is ard analysis of the results for the year.

Share capital and buy-back activity
At 37 March 2023 the Corrpany had 317350980 (2022
317,350,980) Ordinary shares in 1ssue

At the AGM In 2022 the Directors were given power to buy
back upto 47,57G911 Ordirary shares. Since that AGM the
Directors have not bought back any Crdinary shares under
that authonty, whicn will expire at the 2022 AGM Tne Board
will seek to renew the aLthority to make market purchases
of the Compary's Ordinary shares at this year's AGM.

Since 1 Apri 2023 to the date of this report, the Company
has made no market purchases for cancellation The
Board has not set a specific discount at wh.ch shares
wil: be repurchased.

Management arrangements and fees

Detalls of the management arrangements and fees are

set outin the Report of the Managemert Engagement
Committee heginning an page 58 Total fees paid to the
Manager in any oreyear (Management and Performance
Fees) may not exceed 4.99% of Group Equ'ty Shareholders’
Funds. Total fees payable for the vear to 31 Marcn 2023
amount 10 0.6% (2022 2.0%) of Group Equity Shareholders’
Funds. No performance fee was earned in the year ended
31 March 2023 (2022 £24,489,000).

Basis of accounting and IFRS

The Group and Company financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2023 have been prepared on a
going concern bas:s N accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards and in conformity with
tne requirernent of the Companies Act 2006. The financial
statements have also been prepared in accordance with
the Statement of Recernmended Practice 'Financial
Statements of Investment Trust Companies and Venture
Capital Trusts (SORP) totre extert that it is consistent
w'th UK-adopted International accounting standards.

The accounting policies are set outin note T to the
Financia' Statements or pages 80 to 83

47
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Report of the Directors
continued

Financial instruments

Tre Company’s Fimancia instromerts compr se ts
nvestrment portfoto, cash balances, borrow ngs

ard detrtors and creditors that arise directly fromr its
operations suach as sales and purchases awaitirg
settiement, profit or loss balances or derivat.ve
rstrurrents and accrued irceme and expenses The
finarcia’ risk managemert object ves and polices arising
fror its financial nstrumerts and exposLre of the
Company torsk are disciosed i note 11 toc tne‘inarciai
statements

Risk management and internal control

The Board has overal respons bty for the Group's
systermn of sk ranagement and irteria control and

for reviewing its effectiveness Tne Portfoiuo Manager 15
responsible for the day to day nvestment managenent
decisiors or beha f of the Group Accourting and
Company Secretania services have hotn beer o_tsourced

The systern of nsk management and mternal contros ams
to ensure trat the assets of the Growp are safeguarded.
proper accolLnting records are maimtaned, ard the
financial imformatior Jsed withir the bLsmess and for
pablicatior s rehiable Control of the nisks idertified,
coverng firancia!, operational, comrphance ard nsk
maragement, s embedded ir the cortrois of the Group
by a ser es of regu ar investmert performarce and
attribotion statemerts, finascial and risk ana yses, AIFM
and Portfo'ic Manager reports ard guarterly control
reports.

Key risks have been identified and cemtro s put ir
pacetc ~'t'gate ther inc udirg those not d rect v tne
responsibi ty of the AIFM or Portfo 1o Manager Tae key
nsks are explained 1In more deta’!ir tne Strategic Report
on pages 3710 40

Tre effectiveress of each third-party providers ~termna
co~tro's s assessed g~ ar ongo "¢ bassby e
Cerp ance ard R-sk departrents of tre AIFR and
Fortfcio Manager tre Ad~ mistrator and tne Compary
Secretary Eac~ marta ~s ts owr syster of rsk
~anage~ertand riermal co~tro and the Beoard and
Acdit Comrrttee rece ve reg. ar reports from tre
e sk Maragerent and rterma coniro System

s des.gredtc prov dereaso~ab e bot ~ot abso te
Ssurance aga ~st matera v osstatemertor oss and 1o
aage ratrerta~ el ~ate rskof fallretoacr eve
object ves Astre Compary has "o emp'ovess and 18
peratca fu-ct org ae Lmdertake” by 1o rd part es

01wy

~

(

I~
4]

the Audit Committee does not cons:der it recessary far
the Compa~y to establ’'sn its own terral audit function
Irstead. the Audt Committee relies on interna: contro!
reports receved fror ts princ pal service providers tc
satisfy itself as to the controls ir place

Tne Board ~as established a process for identifyirg,
evaluat’™1g ard managing any Tajar rnsks faced by the
Group. It undertakes an anrval rev ew of the Group's
systerr of r'sk management and interna contralir fine
witn relevant guidarce. Business risks nave also been
analysed by the Board and recorded in a sk map that
1s reviewed reguiar y Eacn quarter tne Board rece ves a
formal repcrt from each of the AIFM, Portfono Marager, !
the Admirustrator and the Company Secretary detailing '
any dentified internal contrel failures or errors

Tre Board alse cors ders the flow of nforator and
tne interacticn between the third-party serv ce prov ders
and the contro s in place to ensure accdracy and
comp'eteness of therecord ng of assets and income
The Board receives a report from the Portfolio Marager
setting out tne key contiols ir operat.or

Tre Board aiso has direct access to Company Secretana

advice and services provided by Coiumbia Threadneedle

Investrert Busess Lmited which througn ts '
rorimated representative, 1s respansibie for ensurrg

tnat the Board ard Comrmittee procedures are {ol'owed

and that app ‘cable regu ations are comphed w.th

Tnese controls have been n pace throwgholt the vear
Jnder review and Jp to the date of s'gning the accounts

Keyrsks de~tfied by tre Auditor are corsidered by the
Audit Comrnr ttee to ensdre robust terna contro s ard
~ronitorirg procedures are in piace rrespact of these
rsks o anorgo ng basis

Annual General Meeting (the 'AGM")

Tre Corpanys AGM w - be reld at the Royal Adtorobile
C .b 89971 Pal Mail Lordo~ SW1Y 5HS on Trursday

20 ooy 2023 at 2 30p Trne Notce of AGM s set out on
pages 1101e 114 and exp aratory notes fel.ow 67 pages
115 aad 16

Material interests

Tmere were "o oortracts subs st g darimg or attre end
of treyear ~wr o~ a Drector of 1re Compary s or was
~atera y ~terested and wmico s or was signficart -
regt o lotreCompatye bus mess No Drectorras a
cortractof servcew it~ tre Co~pany Fortrerdets s
regard ~g e Drectors apps ~iertiefters can be

fo.nd o” page

’
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Listing Rule 9.8.4R

The Company confirms that there are ro items which
require disclosure under List.ng Rule 9 8.4R in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2023,

Voting interests

Rights and QObligations Attaching to Shares

Subject to applicable statutes and other sharenclders’
r'ghts, shares may be issued with such nghts and
restrictions as the Compary may by crdinary resclution
decide, or (/f thoro iz no such reselution or s¢taras il does
"ot make spec fic provision) as the Board may decide
Subyject to the Articles of Association (the Articles’), the
Comrpanies Act 2006 ard other shareholders' nghts,
unissued shares are at the disposal of the Board

Voting

At a general meeting of the Company. when voting

15 undertaken by way of a pall, each share affords its
owner one vote.

Restrictions on Voting

No member shal: be entitled to vote T he has been served
with a restriction notice (as defined in the Articles) after
failure to provide the Companry with information concerning
interests in those shares required to be provided under the
Companies Act 2006,

Deadlines for Voting Rights

Votes are exercisable at a general meeting of the
Company i respect of which the business being voted
upon s being heard. Votes may be exercised in person, by
proxy, or inrelation to corporate members, by corporate
representatives.

1he Artices provide a dead:ine for submission of proxy
forms of not less than 48 hours {(or such shorter time as the
Board may determire) before the meeting (not excluding
non-working days).

Transfer of Shares

Any shares n the Company may be held in uncertificated
form and, subject to the Articles, title to uncertificated shares
rmay be transferred by means of a relevant systern. Subject
1o the Articles. any meirber may transfer all or any of his
certicated snares by an instrurrent of transfer in any usual
form orin any other form whicn the Board rmray approve

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Significant Voting Rights

As at 37 March 2023, the folowing shareholders nad notified
that they held over 3% of the voting rignts -1 the Company on
a non- dscretionary basis:

% of voting rights*

Shareholder

Brewin Dolphin Ltd 11.0%
Interactive Investor Share Dealing Services A%,
Rathbone Investment Management Ltd 4.9%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management | fd 5.5
Quilter Cheviot Investment Management Ltd 3.7%
Investec Wealth & Investment Ltd 3.8%
Charles Stanley Group plc 2%,
Smith & Williamson Investment Managers 3.0%

*See above for fu-ther in‘crmation on the vorng nghts of Ordinary sha-es

Since 31 March 2023 the Company nas been irformed that
Integrafin Holdings plc hoid 4.0% of the voting rignts in the
Compary.

Articles of Association

The Company’s Articles of Association may only be
amended by a special resolation at a General Meeting of
the shareholders They were amended at tne 2021 AGM
and are ava.lable to view on the Company’s website

Corporate Governance

Fuil details are given in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 49 to 55 The Corporate Governance Repart
forms part of this Directors’ Report
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Corporate Governance report

Tne Board of Directors 15 accountable to srarenc ders for
the governance of the Company's affairs. This statement
descrbes how the principles of tne 2018 UK Carporate
Gover-ance Code {the 'Cade }issued by the Financral
Report.ng Council (the 'FRC'} in 20718 have been app'ied
10 the affairs of the Company. The Code can be v ewed at
www.fre.org uk

Application of the AIC Code’s Principles

I applying the princ.pies of the Cede the Directors

have also taken account of the 2019 Code of Corporate
Governance pubished by the AIC (the 'AIC Code), of wnich
the Company 1s @ member Tre AIC Code estabishes the
framework of best practice specifically for ine Boards of
nvestment trust comparies, Furthermaore, the AIC Code
has full erdorsement of the FRC, which mears that AlC
members who report agamst the AlC Code meet their

ob igations under tre Code and the related disc.osure
requirerrents contained ir the Listirg Ruies The AIC Code
can be viewed at www.thealc.ca, ak.

The Directors beiieve that duning ihe year underjeview the
Company nas complied w th the maim principles and relevant
provisions of the Code, Insofar as they apply to the Company's
husiness and w.ith the provisions of the AIC Cade

Compliance Statement

Tne Directors note that the Companry d d not comply with
the follow.rg provisions of the Code - the year ended 31
March 2023

Provisior. 9 Due totre natare and structure of the
Company t~e Board of non-execut.ve directors does 1ot
fee it 's approprate to appoint a cref executive

Provisior 19. The Chairman nas served ontre Board for
Toretrar rine years |1 accordance with the AIC Code

tre Board ~oretieless corsiders t-at he is rdependent
He will stand down at the forthcomirg AGM.

Provis on 24 Tae Board benevesthata Directors, ircludirg
tmeCrair~ar gnoLdsitona!l of the Board's Committees

Prov'siom 26 4Asthe Covpany ras ~o erpoyees and ts
operationai furct org are w~dertaken Dy tr rd part es tre
Audit Co~ ttee does ot cors derit appropr ate for tihe
Co~parytoestab s~ ts owr ~ter~a acdtfoctor The
Co™pary's servce prov ders prov de assorance of trer
effect ve syster of risk manage~ert and ~terra ara
CoNtro;

oy

cv's ¢ 32 The Board does rot ~ave a separate

Composition and Independence of the Board

The Board current y consists of six Directors, al of
wWom are nor-execltive The Board's irdeperderce,
meluding that of the Chairmar, has been cornsidered
and a" of tne Directors are deemed to be
rddependent n character ard have no relatiorshps
or circurrstances wh cn are fikety to affect the'r
JudgeTent

Tne Board s.bscrnbes to the view expréssed in the

AIC Code tnat long-serv ~g Directors show.d rot be
prevented fror~ forming part of an independent majority
It does not consider that tne length of a Director's tenure,
misolation, reduces therr abnity to act independent y.
Tre Board's polcy or terure is that cortinuity and
experience add s'gnificantly to the strength of the Board,
a'though it beieves in the merits of an ongoing ard
progressive refreshment of its compostion

Diversity

The Board recogr ses the beneit of d'versity and

as atthe date of tnis repart it comprises tnree men
and three women. Diversity is taken nto account as
part of the recruitment, appointrment and suecession
planning process. The Board 1s committed fo

appo rting tre most appropriate candidate, regard ess
of gender or other forms of diversity and tnerefore re
targets have been set aganst wnich to report

i accordance wth Listing Ruie 9 8 6R {9} {10)
and (11] tne Board kas prov ded the foliowing
informat onnre ation taats diversity

Board Gender as at 31 March 2023™

Number

of senior

Number Pefcentage positions

of Board of the on the

members Board Board

Men 3 50% 2@
Women 3 50% e

The Company does not d'sc ose he number of Drectors

N eXecut ve managerient as this snot app wabie foran
TVESTIeN: st corpany

Thehree senor pos1onsg are Charman of the Board, Senor
Independer: Duecior ana Cha rman of the Auds Commstee
Noze. the pos ton of the Cha rman of the Aud: Comm™iee
sno currertly defined asasenorpos” anunderthel 8109
Ru es, however the foardbe evesha:, faran nvestrment rus:
company, : s1oud be regarded as sach as @ sbroady equ vaen:
0 -he ChefF nanc a Officer of atrad ng company
Thstieesthe Lsing Rues arger o’ 465

*Thsimeesthel s g Ruesarge of |1
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Board Ethnic Background as at 31 March 2023 ™

Number
of senior
positions
on the
Board

Number Percentage

of the
Board

of Board
members

white British
or other White
{including minority-

white groups) 5 83% 3
Mixed/Multiple
Ethnic Groups 1 17% -

The Cornpany daes not disc ose the number of D rectars
nexeculive management as th s1snot applicable for an
investment rust company

- Thethree senior posimons are, Chairman of the Board, Senior
Indlependent Directar and Chawman of the Aud t Committee
Note the positon of the Chairman of the sud.t Commitiee
1s not currenty defined as a senior posimion under the LLsting
Rules, howevel the Board beleves that, for an nivegtment trus:
company, it shauld be regarded as such as itis broadly eguivalent
tothe Chiet F nancial Officer of a trading company

The nformation inciuded ‘n the above 1ables has
been obtaned through quest’'onnaires campieted by
the ndividual Directors.

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Company's Articles of Association,
tre Companies Act 2006 ard ary directions grven
by specia: resolution, the business of the Company
Is managed by the Board wno may exercise all the
powers of the Company, whether relating to the
maragement of the business of the Company or not.
In particuiar, the Board may exercise al: the powers of
tne Company to borrow money and 1o martgage or
cnarge any of its undertakings, property, assets and
unca led capital and 1o ‘ssue debentures and other
secur'tes and to give security for any debt, hability or
obligation of the Company to any third party.

Board meetings

There are no contracts or arrangemerts waith thrd
parties which affect, ader or termmatc upon a
change of control of the Company.

Directors

Simon Marrison retired from the Board at the
conc,usion of the 2022 AGM. Andrew Vaughan
was appointed a Directaron 1 August 2022 and
Busoia Sodeinde jo:ned the Board on 24 Sanuary
2023 Tre Directors’ hiographies are set out

on pages 44 and 45 All Directors will stand for
re-glect.on by sharenclders at the forthcoming
AGM naccordance with the Code, with the exception
of David Watson, wno will retire from the Board at
the conclusion of the meet'ng Kate Bolsover will
succeed him as Chairman and Tim Gillbanks will
become Senior Independent Director,

Board committees

The Board has established an Aadit Committee,

a Nomiration Committee and a Management
Engagement Committee, which also carries out

the functions of a Remuneration Committee, Al

the Drectors of tne Company are non-executive

and serve on each Comm ttee of the Board. It has
been the Compary's policy to include all Directors

on all Committees This encourages unity, clear
commuJrication and avoids dupiication of discussion
between the Beard and the Comrmittees.

The roles and responsibitties of each Committee
are set out in the individua! Committee reports

wh ch follow Each Committee has written terms
of reference which clearly define its responsibiities
and duties. These can be found on the Company's
website, are available an request and wili aiso be
avaliable for iInspection at the AGM.

The rumber of meetings of the Board and Committees eld during the year under review, and the attendance of

individual Directors, are shown below
Board

Attended Eligible

David Watsoen
Tim Gillbanks
Simon Marrison
Kate Bolsover
Sarah-Jane Curtis
Andrew Vaughan

N OBRE DN OO
N BN OO

Busola Sodeinde’

Ret.red froir the Board on 26 Juty 2022
- Appointed 10 1he Board on 1 August 2022
Appointedtothe Board on 24 January 2023

Audit
Attended

(= S A ]

MEC Nomination

Attended Attended

Eligible

1
1
0
1
1
1

1

Eligible

0 = NN = NN
Y — T
[ T N — N g

Inaddition to formal Board and Committee meetings. the Directors also attend a number of ad 7cc meetings which

are corvened as and wher necessary
Annual Repert & Accourts 2023

Eligible

i S == T gy
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Corporate Governance report
continued

The Board

The Board s respons b.e for the effective stewardsp
of the Company's affairs Certair strateqic 1ssLes

are monitored by tre Board at meetings againrst a
framework which has been agreed with the Manager,
Additona meetings may be arranged as required The
Board nas a forma’ scheduie of matters specifica:ly
reserved for its decision, wh'ch are categorised nder
various headings, mcludirg strategy, rmaragement,
strecture, capita | firancial reporung, interral contro.s,
gearnng, asset allocation, share price discount, contracts,
nvestment policy, finance, risk, investment restrictions,
performrance, corporate governance and Board
membership and appomntmenits

In order 1o erable therr 1o discharge their responsibities,
a Directors have full and timely access to relevart
mformation. At each meeting, the Board reviews the
Campany’s investmert perfarmance and corsigers
financiai analyses and other reports of an operational
nature. The Board mon'tors compliance with the
Company's objectives and 13 respoirsible for setting asset
ahocator and investment and gearng limits wtbn wh.cn
e Portfcho Marager has discreton to act and thus
sJpervises the management of the investmert portfo 1o,
wiicr s contractaaly delegated to the Portfolio Manager

The Board ras respansibil ty for tne approval of
rvestments in unguoted investrrerts and any
nvestments ir funds managed or advised by tre
Portfol o Manager 1t nas also adopted a procedure
for Directors, 1 the furtnerance of the r duties, 1o take
independent professional advice at the expense of the
Company

Conflicts of interest

[~ imre with the Compar.es Act 2006, the Board has th
power to autnonse any potertia’ corfiicts of interest
trat may anse ard mpose such irrts or conditons

as tthirks fit A regster of potertalcorficts s
martaned andis reviewed at every Board meet g
toers.rea deta sare kept cp-to-date Appropniate
actnor sator wi' be scug~tpnortcire appo rirert of
any new Directoror fary ~ew co~ficts ar se

Reiations with shareholders

Srareno derrelat orgare gver ngh prorty bytre
Board, t~e AIFM a~d tre Portfo .o Marager Treprre
medu™ Dy wn e tre Commpany comm LT cates v i
STareroders stercugrtreHafYearacda-nla
Reports v ¢~ a ™ to provs de snareno ders with a cear
wcderstard g oftre Corparys activ tes ardtrer
res.1s T's nforrator ssopoiemerted by tre day
cacuator coft~e Net Asset vaLe of e Co~pary's
Srdnary srares v o spub sredor tie Londer
Siock Edcrange

Thisinformat onis a so ava lable on tne Cormpany’s
webs'te, www trproperty.com, togetherwitih a
monthly factsheet and Marager commentary

The Annual Report and Accounts ard Notce of the
AGM areissued ta shareholders $0 as 1o provide at least
twerty working days' rotce of the AGM 1r accordance
w Ih corporate governance best pract ce. Shareholders
wishing to lodge questions in advance of the AGM, or to
contact the Board at any other t'me, are invited 10 do o
by writng totte Company Secretary at the registered
address givenon page 118

General presentations are gven to both sharehoiders
and analysts fo lowing the publication of the arnual
results. All meet.ngs between the Manager and
shareholders are reported to the Board

Section 172 Companies Act 2006

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 requires
directors to act ir good faitn and in a way that ‘s the
Tost ikely to promote tne success of the Corpany
Ir accordance with the reguirements of the
Companies (M scellanecus Reporting) Regu atiors
2078, below the Company explars how the
Directars have discharged their daty under sectior
172 dunrgtie year. FLIfiling th s duty natural y
supports tre Compary n acheving its Investrment
Jbjective ard nelps to ensure tnat al dec siong are
mMade in a resporsible ard sustamable way

Onappointrert, Drectors’ are provided witn a
detaied rdactior outan ng tne rduties. egaly

and regulatery. as a Director of a UK publ'c iimited
compary and continue to receve regu.ar reievant
tecrnical wpdates ard trairing The Directors also
Pave accesstothe advice ard services of the
Company Secretary ard, wiren deemed recessary,
they nave i1e opportur ty to seek rdependert
professora adv ce nt-efurtrerarce of the r dutes
as a Director att~e Company's experse

Decision making

Trerportarce of stakero der coms derations
~partce arrtrecontext of dec sior-rakrg s
reguiarty brosgrtte tne Board's atte~t or by tre
Corpary Secretary and laker ~to acccount at every
Board ~eet ~g Tne Board co~s gers tre i~ pact
ratary Maira decsiortw  mave o a reevant
stakerodersicersoretrat ts —ak rgadecisior
trat proTotes e org-ter™ socgess of the Copany
wrhetrerto sbhe forexa—pe ~reat o tod viderds,
rew mvestert opportun tes ortre Cerpany s
fulire strategy. i~ add tior the Board logetner witn
tretdarager "o ds a Teet rgfocused or strategy
or ar artoa bas sto ook anead ntrerarket and
a~tic pate pote~t @ sceranog ard now th s may
~pact tre Co~pary s stakerc ders

TF Property Inwesiment Trus!



Stakeholders

e Board recognises the needs ard importance of Company}, ror does 't have a direct impact o0 the

the Company's stakeholders and ensures tnat they are community or env ronr-ert n the convertional sense
corsidered dur ng all its discussions and as part of 1ts The Board recogrises its key stakehotders and expla.ns
decision mak-ng. Since the Company is an investment beiow why these stakehclders are considered :mportant
trust company that 1s externally rmanaged, the Company to the Company and the actions taken to ensire that
does not have any empioyees (the Directors have a their interests are taken irto account.

Letter of Appomtment and are not employees of the

Stakeholder Group and why

they are important

Board engagement

Shareholders

Shareholder supportis
essential to the existence
of the Company and
delvery of the long-term
strategy of the business

The Manager

Hoid ng the Company’'s
shares offers investors a
hquic Investment venicle
through which they can
obtanexposure to the
Company’s diversified
porifolio. The investment
Manager's performance
critical for the Company
to successfully deliver its
Investment sirategy and
meet its ohjective

Annual Report & Accounrts 2022

The Company nas over 3,000 shareholders, 'nclud ng institut onz! and retail investors.

The Boac is committed to maintaining cpen channels of communication and to engage with
shareho!ders in a manner they find most meaningful v order to gain an understanding of
their views These inc:ude the channels below

- Annual General Meeting - the Company welcomes and encourages attendance and
partic’ pation from sharehonders at 1ts AGM The Manager gves a presentation at the
AGM on the Company's performance and the fuiure outlook Sharehalders have the
opportunity to meet the Directors and Manager ana to acdress questions to them directly.
The Company values any feedback and questions it receives from shareholders ahead of
and durng the AGM and takes action or makes changes if and when appropriate

Publications — the annual and half yvear reports are made avallable on the website and
sent to shareholders. These publications provide information on the Company and 11s
portfolio of investments and a better understanding of the Company's financial posizion
This 15 supplemented by da.ly publication of the NAV on the London Stock Exchange and
monthly facisheets an the Company's website The Company 1s open te feedback “rom
shareholders tc improve its publications.

A

.

Shareholder meetings — ihe Manager meets with shareholde s periodical’y and often and
feedback ‘s shared with the Board

Working with the Brokers — the Manager and Brokers work together to maintain dialogue
with sharehoders and prospective investors at scheduled meetings The Board is providec
with regular updates at meetings and outside meetings if required

- Sharehclder concerns — In the event that shareholders wish Lo raise issues or concerns
with the Board, they are welcome to de so at any time by wniting to the Chairman at the
registered office The Serior 'ndependent Cirector is also ava:lable to shareholcers if they
have concerns that contact through the normal channel of the Chairman has failed o
resolve or for which such contact .s inappropriate

Ma/ntaining a ¢close and constructve working relationship with the Manager is crucial, as the
Board andg the Manager both aim to continue to acheve consistent, iong-term returns in line
with the Company's investiment objective ‘mportant components in the collaborat.on with
the Manager, representative of the Company's culture include those listed below.

+ Encouraging open, honest and collaborative discuss’ons at all levels, aliowing time and
space for original and innovative thinking

* E1suring that the impact on the Manager 1s fu'ly considered and understood before any
business decision 1s made

- Ensuring that any potential conflicts of aterest are avorded or managed effectively

The Board ho.ds cetlalted discussions wiih the Manager on &'l key strategic and operational
topics on an ongoing basis [n addilion, the Chainman regularly meets with the Manager 10
ensure a close diglogue 1s maintamec.

o
O8]
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Corporate Governance report

continued

Stakeholder Group and why

they are important

Board engagement

External Service Providers, particularly the Company Secretary, the Administrator, the Registrar and the Depository and

the Broker

A range of advisers
enatles the Company

to funcuen ang ensure
that it meets 18 relevant
obligations as an
mvestment rust company
and a constituent of the
FTSEZRD

Lenders

Awvailabilty of funding and
hgudity are cruzial to the
Campany's ability to take
advantage of nvestment

opportunit.es as they arse.

Regulators

The Company canon'y
operate with the approval
of its regu'ators who have

alegit.mate interest N how

the Company operates '
the market and i-eats s
shareholders.

Investee Companies

Dortfolio companies are
uitmately sharenolgers’
zsseis and the Boara
recognises the mgartance
of good stewardship and
COMMUNICato witr
‘nvestee companies n
meeting e Compeany's
invesiment okjective ana
sirategy

The Board 's always r ndfui of the requiremertto act i

tre best rierests of sharenc.ders as a who'e and to have

regard ta the otrer requireents of section 172 wh ch form

part of Board's dec:sior-"ak ng process The folowi~g key
€C15.07s take~ by the Board dunng tae vear ended 31 Marc-

2023 areexampesofths

Gearing

The Bogrd mantams regu.ar contact with ‘ts key exiertal providers and recelves reguigr
reporting from them through Board and committee meetings, as wel' as outs de of the
regular meeting cyc'e Ther advice, s well as thair needs and views, are routinely Taken into
account The Management Engagement Comm ttee ‘ormally essesses their performance,
fees and contnuing appointment at east annually to ensure that tne key se-vice prov ders
continue to functon at an acceptable ieve' and are appropriately remunerated to del.ver

the expecied level of zervce. The Audir Commitiee reviews and evaluztes the contro
envIrQIments in p.ace at each service provider as appropriate

The Board needs 1o demanstrate to lenders that 1115 a wen-manageo business, capzabie of
celverng Iong-term returns consistenty

The Board regularly congiders how 1 and the Company meet the var ous regulatory and
statutory obagations and foliows vo.untary and best-praciice guicance, INCiua Ng how any
governance dec s1ans I* makes can nave an impact on s stakehoiders, both in the shoter
anc nthelonger term.

The Manager commuricates reguiarly w.th portfolio companies and 's 1 engaged
shareholder (on benalf of the Camipany) The Soara monitors the Manager's stewarasip
arrangemenis anc rece ves regu'a” feedback on meetngs w th the managemenit of port‘olio
Companies anc voting &t 11e’r general meetings

Dividends

Sapject o snareno.der approval of tre proposed fina

dw dend, tqe Compary w I pay a tota' drvidend of 15 50p for
tre fimancia vear represerting an rerease of 6 9% o tne
prev ous year Incomerose sharpy as corpanes resumed
paying dvde~ds ard as ares 't ihs years dviderd ¢
covered by earn ngs. Int a forecasts for tne firarc a year
to 31 Marcn 2024 rdcate trat revenwe may fal aga- asa

Oor~gtre frarciai year tne Compary contned 1o

U se tsexstngrevoly ~ga~rual icar faci 4 es a~d
folowrng arev ew of the avaiabie opt 078 eacr were
recewed o broad y s ar ter~s as thererewa s fe
dugt-ro.grout treyear The Boardis kee~ tora 1tan
awderange of barki~gre atons-psioersore trat t
mas accesstea diverserange of terms ardis ~otre art
onanv ore progsder. Tre fac 1hes prov de fex by tyand
ca~pleentire lorger terrm pr vate p acer-ert fixed
ter~ debtthat s - pisce

N
3

aurber of compan es ~ave suspended d'v de~ds The Board
reqog” sestie mporta~ce of d v.de~ds to srarenoiders ard
subject to carefuirev ew of the Compary's rever e forecasts
and reserves ogetner vt tre resstrertout ook fremars
preparedto LSereverLe reseryes to sLpport tne d v derds
na dic sraeno ders over perods of irpoe srartfa or
JClati ty for dent fledreaso-s

TR Broerty Irvesiment Trus:



Portfolio management

During the year the Board continued to focus on the
performance of the Manager in achieving tne Company's
iIrvestmenrt objective within an appropnate risk

framework. The Board continued to consider the mpact
onthe Cormpany (ircluding portfolo activity, risks and
opportunities gear.ng, revenue forecasts and the operatiors
of ather thurd party providers) of a number of events trrough
the financiai year to ensure that the portfoio had sufficient
resi'ience together with the Company's operational structure
toreet the unprecedented circumstances

Culture and business conduct

The Board beleves tnat having a good corporate

culture, particularly In its engagement with the Manager,
shareholders and other key stakeholders, aids delivery of

1S 'cng-term strategy I line with this puipose, the Board
promotes & culture of openness, debate and integrity through
oNngoing engagement with the Manager and with its other
service providers The Directors agree that estabhishing and
maintaining a healthy corporate culture within the Board and
in its interaction with the Manager, shareho.ders and other
stakeholders wll support the delivery of its purpose, val.es
and strategy The Board strives 1o ensure that its culture 1s i
ine with the Company's purpese, values and strategy.

The Campany has a number of policies and procedures

in place to assist with mamtaning a culture of gocd
gavernance Ingluding those refating to diversity, Directors’
canflicts of interest and Directors’ dealrgs inthe Company's
shares The Board assesses and moniars complance with
these policieg as wel as the general culture of the Board
regularly through Board meetings and in particular during
the annual evaluation process (for more Information see the
Board evaluation section on page 56}.

The Board sesks to appoint the best possible service
providers and evaluates their service on a reqular basis as
described oM page 58 The Board considers the cu'ture of the
Manager and other service prov ders, including therr poncies,
practices and behaviour through regular reporting from
those stakeholders and in particular during the annual review
of the performance ard continuing appoirtment of ail service
providers.

Employee, social impact and wider community

The Board recogrises the requirement under the Companies
Act 2006 to detailinformation about humnan nghts,
employees ard commurity 1ssues, nciuding information
about any policies it has in relatien to those matters and

the effectiveness of those polces These reguirements,
practically, are not appl.cable to the Company as 1t has no
employees, all the Directors are non-executive and 1t 1as
outsourced ali operational functions to third-party service
providers Therefore, the Company has not reported further in
respect of these provisions.

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Directors’' indemnity

Directors’ and Cfficers’ habilty msurance cover s in
place in respect of the Directors The Company's Artcles
of Association aliow 1t 1o e extent permitted by the
Coirpan es Acts to indemnity the Directors agannst any
l.ability

The Company has entered o deeds of .indeminity for

the benefit of each Director of tne Campary in respect of
liabilities whick may attach to them 0 their capacity as
Directars of e Company These provisions, wnich are
gualfyng third party ndermnity provisions as defined by
section 234 of the Compan es Act 2006, were introduced in
January 2007 and currently remain in force.

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of
information to the Auditor

The Directors who were members of the Board at the time
of approving the Directers’ Report are iisted or: pages 44
and 45. Having made enquires of fellow Directors and of the
Company's Auditor each of the Directors confirms that:

- sofar asthey are aware, there is ng information of which
the Company's Auditor s unaware; and

« each Director pas taken all tne steps that they ought to
have taker as a Director to make themselves aware of
ary relevant audit mformation and to establish that the
Company’s Auditor s aware of that irformation.

Thus information s g'ven and shou:d be interpreted ir
accordance with tne provisions of Section 418 of the
Cormpanies Act 2006

L attan

By order of the Board,

.Columbia Threadneedle Investment

Business Limited,
Company Secretary
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Report of the Nomination Committee

Nomination Commitiee
Chairman: David Watson

Key responsibilities

« Revew the Board and ts Committees and make
recommendations to the Board im relaton to stracture,
size and caompositior. the balance of krowiedge,
experierce and ski'l ranges.

Consider succession plaiiing and tenure poicy and
oversee the development of a diverse pipeling,

- Consider the re-electior of Directors; and
Review the outcome of the Board eva vation process

The No~ration Committee meets at east annualy,
and more freguertly as and wren required. it ast met
Narch 2023.

Activity during the year

The Compuitee discussed successor pannng of

tre Board, 1s tenure and dwversity poucies. it reviews
arr.aly the s:ze ard structure of tre Board and w.li
coNntinue (G review succession plain ng and furtrer
recru.tment, tak ng irto accourt the recomimendat.ans
of Board evalcations The Corrmittee appointed a search
consu'tant and, follow.ng interv.ews with a rumber of
suitahie cand dates, it recommended tre appointrent of
B.sola Sodeinde to the Board.

Board evaluation

Durmng tre year tre Board engaged T Stephenscr

of Stephensor & Co, ar indeperdert coripary wh.ch
spec.ahses inrvestment trost board evaluat o7s, to

fac tate ar rdependert eva'uation of tre effect veress
of tre Board, ts comm-tiees and tae performance of
each Director 1nadd tior to tre Drectors, the most

sen or members of tne investmert Manager-ent teagms
were nteryewed NAr Stephenson's report was d-scussed
bvt~e Com tiee

TreevaLat o was cons.dered by the Cormtieeto be
comstructive .~ ter~s of analys g Board corposit-on ard
prov d rgrecoendat ons o Board success oo pan g

Trerewere ~c s gn ica~tactorsarsrgfror t-e

e.a . aton p cess ard twas agreep thal tne Corrent
composton of tve Board and s Coittess refected a
s.tabe ~xofsk'sardexpererce a~dtratt~e Board
asa wroce ire ~divdea Directors and 1s Comr ttees
wereforctor mgeffect valy

Syl
T

1 nght of the external performance evauat or, tne Board
conirms that the performarce of each Director continues
tc be effectve ard demonstrates ther commitment to
their ro e. Therefore ail Directors, witn the exceptior of
David Watsor will offer tnerselves for re-eection at the
forthcorung AGM Furtner nformation or each Director's
skils exper ence and thenr cartr butior to the Board are
outlined ir the biograpnes on pages 44 and 45

i1 accordance with the provisions of tre Code, iTis the
interticn of the Board to engage an externai faciitator to
ass'stw.th the performance evaluation every ifree years
arnd the next externa: evaluation w . be carried ocut duning
the year endrg 31 March 2026 The Board wi'l continue
to comp'ete aninternal board evaluation annually in tne
interven ng years.

Board's palicy on tenure

Provision 24 of the AIC Cade of Corporate Governance
alows a differert approach totenure in relator 1o nvestment
companies, reflecting Fow tney differ 1o operatng

compan es <1 not havirg a ch.ef executive The Board took
irtc carsideratior the approach and introduced 'ts ‘Palcy
Govern ng Board Members Tenure ard Reappointment’
Tris pohcy cutines the Board's approach to tenare and
reappointrert of nor-executive directors, I states its belief
that the vaiue brought through continurty and experience cof
Directors w ik longer percds of serv ce 's not oriy desrable
but essentia’ ~ an investment cormpany. The Board did

not fee' that t would be appropriate to set a specic tenure
Jrit forindw dual Durectors or tne Crairman of tre Board
or tscormittees Instead, the Board will seek to recrut

a rew Directon on average, every two to trree years 56 as
regular'y to bring the strmalus of fresn thinkimg intc the
Board's discussions, érsurng that on eacr occasior that the
Board erters ~to new vestmert comritmerts atleast
nalf the Board Termbers have direct persora. expererce of
negotiating previous commitmerts witn tre Marager

Board Succession

HavrgservedasaDrectors ~ce 2012 bw' sta~d dowr
frermire Beard at e corc wsion of tne fortbeor rg
AGM Kate Borsover wasuceceed me as Cranrman

T~ G rbarks v 1 succeed Kate as Senucr irdeperdent
Director Busc'a Sodends was appoted a D rector oo
24 Laruary 2023 A ~deperdent tord party agency
Noro'e L 7 ied was emgaged for e recruitr-e~t process
wWreerressted ~ Busoasappo ~trent Norgle nave o

otrercorrestor T ite CC"Y'DE’”)/

TF Property Irrestmert Trust



Directors’ training

Or appoirtment, new Directors are offered rairimg to
suit thear needs Directors are alse provided with key
informatior: o the Company's act'vties ¢n a regu.ar
basis, ncluding regulatory ard statutory requirements
and .rternal cortrols Changes affecting Directors’
respensiblities are advised to the Board as they arise,
Directors ensure that they are Lpdated o regulatory,
statutory and industry matters,

Letters of appointment

No Director has a contract of ermpoyment with

the Compary D rectors’ terms and conditions for
appointment are set out In letters of appaintmrent whick
are ava'lable for inspection at the registered office of the
Company and at the AGNM

David Watson

AnnualReport & Azcounts 2022
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Report of the Management Engagement Committee

Management Engagement
Committee (the '"MEC"

Chairman: David Watson

Key responsibilities
+ Monttor and review the performarce of the AIFM and
Portfoiic Manager

+ Review tre terms of the Investment Management
Agreement,

Anryary revew the contracts and performrarce of
each external third-paity service provider and

- Review on ar anrdal basis, the reruneration of the
Directors.

Inaddit or torvestment managerment the Board
nas delegated to exterral third parties tre depositary
and custodiai servces functions (wn ch inciude the
safeguarding of assets) the day to day accounting,
company secretara’, adm.rstratior ard srare
registrat on services tach of these cortracts was
entered imto after fu'l and proper cors deration of the
quaity of the services offered, inciud ng the cortrol
systerrsinoperation mscfar as they relate tote
affairs of the Company. Tre MEC determires and
approves Directors fees, havirg regard to trne level of
fees payable to non executive Directors 1 the mdustry
generaly, theroe that ndwidual Dorectors fulé r
respect of Board and Committee resporsibilties and
tre ime cormrmitted to tre Compary's affars Far
further detalls please see the Directors’ Rerurerat on
Report o~ pages 63 10 65

e MEC ~eets at east anrual'y, towards tre end of
the financ:ai year and .ast met » Marcn 2023,

Activity during the year

At tre meet ~gne'd .1 Maren 2023 the MEC
reviewed t~e perforr-ance of tre AIFM ard Poitfo o
Manager ard cons dered botn e appropriateness
cftre Maragers appo rtment ard 1he cortractua
arrarge~ertsi{ ~cluadng tre structure and avei of
re~.rerat orewitt e Marager

M addtortotnerev.ews by tre MEC t~e Beard
revievied a~d consdered performarce reports
fro~ the Portfo o Marager at eac Board meeting
Te Board also rece ved regoe ar reports from tne
Ad~ o strater and Company Secretary

Tre Board be' eve tat tne Maraqgel's track record

g dperfor—arcere~a ~sootstand ~g Asares.t
the MEC corfir~ed tnat tre &lFNM a1d Fortfouo
Marager sho. d be retained for the firarc a. vear
e~d ~g 31 Marc~ 20724, beng inthe best ~terests of

iy
[ae)

all snareholders, A surrmary of the significant terms

cf the Investment Management Agreement and the

th rd-party serv ce providers wno support the Corpany
are set cut bewow.

Dar.ng tne year the MEC a'sc rev ewed the performarce
of alttner third party service providers inciudng BNP
Paribas, Conrputershare, Coumbia Tnreadneedle act ng
as Company Secretary, both firms of corporate brokers,
Parmure Gordon and Sufel, and PwC {astax advisors).
The Portfaio Manager provides reguiar updates or tne
perforrance of all tnird-party providers dur ng tre year
ard atterded th's part of the MEC Meet rg The MEC
caniirmed that t was sat'sfied with the leve' of serv ces
dehvered by each third-party prev.der.

Management arrangements and fees

Gr 11 Juy 2014, the Board appointed BMO investment
Business Limited (now Columbia Tnreadreed.e
Investrnent Business Limited) as the Company's
Alternatve Irvestment Fund Manager {in accordarce
witn the A'ternat.ve Investment Fund Maragers

Direct vel with portfolio managerment deegated to the
Investrert Manager Thares River Capital LLP

The significant terms of the Investment Management
Agreemert w.in the Manager are as follows

Notice period

Tne Imvestrent Managemert Agreement |'IMA}
provides for terminatan of the agreement by erther
party without compensatior on the provisior of 1ot
less thar 12 monrths writter notice

Management fees

The fee forthe per od under review was a fixed fee of
£3,895030 p us anadva'orem fee of 0 20% pa based
0" the net asset value (determaned im accordance w th
the AIC rmetnod of valuat o) o~ t-e 'ast day of Marcn
Jure Septerrber ard December payab e quarterly ir
advarce. Tre fee arra-gemerts nayve beenrev.ewed by
tre Board for tre year to 31 March 2524 ard tre fixed
e'erentoft-efeew rcreasets £4 0923030 w st
tre ad va ore rate w .l rerar Lnckarged

The Beardcortmoes to corsder that tre fee strocture
a1g7s the rrerests of the shareboider and the Marager
aswe asbeng - gnly compet bve

Trefeearrargeerts v 1 Cort nue to be rey ewed or
aranr.a bass

Performance fees

I~ addtontothe maragemert fees thie Board ras
agreed topay t~e Manager perforrarce reiated fees 2

respect of am accourt rg per od feerta - perforrance
chyject ves are acr eved

TP Propersy Irvestmen: Trast



A performance fee1s pavable if the total return of
adjusted net assets (after deductior of all Base
Management Fees and other expenses}, as defined
inthe IMA, a1 31 March eack year outperforms tne
total return of the Company's benchmark plus 1%
(the ‘hurdle rate’): th's cutperformance (expressed
as a percentage} is krown as the ‘percertage
outperformance’ Any fee payable wll he the
amourt eqo valent to the adjusted net assets at

31 March each year multiplied by the percentage
outperformance, then mudipled by T5% Tne
maxmum performance fee payable for a period is
capped ai 1 5% of the adjusted ret assets However,
if the adjusted nel assets at tne end of any period
are less than at the beginning of the period, the
maximum performance fee payable will be mited to
1% of the adjusted ret assets.

‘Adjusted Net Agsets’ means the Net Asset Value
after (1) exclud'ng any increases or decreases in Net
Asset Value attributable 1o the issue or repurchase of
any Crdinary Shares; (i) adding back the aggregate
amount of any dividends paid or distributions made
in respect of any Ordinary Shares; and (i} excluding
tne amount of any Perfarmance Fee acerued for

the pernod.

If the total returr of shareholders’ funds for any
perfarmance period is less than the benckmark

for the relevant performance pericd, such
dunderperformance {expressed as a percertage) wil'
be carried forward to future performance periods

1T any fee exceeds the cap, such excess performance
(expressed ag a percentage) will be carried

forward and applied to offset any percentage
underperformance in future performance periods.

[n the event that the berchmark 's exceeded but

the hurd.e is not, that outperformance of the
bencnrrark car be used to offset past or future
underperformance These amounts car be used

for offset purposes only and tnerefore cannot have
the effect of creating a fee :n a year where a fee
woLld not otherwise be payable or ‘ncreasing tne
feeinthat year. Tne -1.5% underperformance of

the benchmark in the current year has been offset
against the brought forward outperformance

as described above As aresult of this, the carry
forward of outperforirarce at 21 March 202315 0 4%
(2022 1.9%)

Annua' Renort & Accounts 2023

Management company

On & November 2027 BMO's asset managerment
business in Europe, the Midd.e East and Africa became
part of Columbia Threadreedle Investments, the global
asset management business of Amenprise Financial,
Inc. The process of integrating the twa firms 1s well
advanced and both companies have corfirmed the
importance of Maintainirg the stability and continunty
of the tearms wh'ch suppoit the Company.

Nepositary arrangements and fees

BNP Paribas was appoirted as Depositary on

14 July 2014 n accordance with the AIFMD

The Depositary’s resporabihties include cash
monitorirg, segregation and safe keeping of the
Compary's financ’al instruments; and monitoring the
Compary’s compliance wth investment and .everage
requirements The Depasitary recelves for its services
afee of 2 0 basis poirts per annum on the first

£150 million ¢of the Company's assets, 1.4 basis points
per annum on assets above £15C miliion and betow
£500 million and 0.75 basig points on assets above
£500 million

Review of third party service

providers fees

Custody and Administration Services are provided

by BNP Paribas and Company Secretarnial Services

by Columbia Threadneedle Investment Business
Limited. The fees for these services are charged
directly to the Company and are disciosed within other
administrative experses disclosed in notes to the
accounts,

David Watson
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Report of the Audit Committee

Audit committee
Chairman: Tim Gillbanks

Key responsibilities

Review the rterral financial and naon-financa’
controls;

Rewiew reports from key third party service providers,

Consg'der and recommend ta the Board for approva the

conterits ¢of t7e draft Ha'f year and Annual Reports,

Review accounting poiicres and significant financial
reporting judgerments,

Moritor, togetrer with the Manager, the Compary's
compiiance with financial reportng, maintenance of
Imvestmenrt Trust status and regulatory requiremerts
a~d

- Consider the mrpact of provichng non-audit services or

the external Auditor's imdependerce and objectivty

Represertatives of tre Marager's interna! audit and
co™plance departmerts may attend committee

an!

eetings at the Commrittee Chanman's reguest

This bas 'neluded consideration of the inpact of the
COVID-19 pande™ic, Russ as nvasion of Ukrame,
irfiat-onary and irterest rate Increases across a ra~ge of
rek categones,

- Tre Groupsinterna’ Contrals and cors'deratian of the
Reports therecn,

« TnelSAE/AAE reports or ther equivalent from BMOY
Columbia Threadneedle and BNP Par bas;

+ Wnether tre Comrpary should have its gwn niermal
audit functen,

+ The external Auditor's planning meTorandum setting
out the scope of the arnua! audit and proposed key
areas of focus,

Tre reports from the Auditor corcering ts aud t
of tre Finarcia, Statemerts of the Compary and
Cons.deraton of Sign ficant issues i relation ta the
Firarc.a' Staterments,

+ Tne appropriateress of and ary changes to, tne
accounting pohc.es of the Company, imc'ud rng the
reasorabr’eness of any judgemeris regured by such
pohcies.

Representatives of the Company’s Audtor attend the
Committee meetings at wirich tre draft Haif Year and

Annual Report and Accounts are reviewed and are given

the opporturity 1o speak 1o the Commitlee memrbers
witnout the presence of tre representatives of tre
Mar~ager

Trie Board recogises tre requiremernt for at 'sast are

Comttee memberto nave recent and rewevant firanc a’

expenence a~d forthe ALdit Corrmittee as a winole to

have competence re eva~i 1o e sector The Committee

Crarmar, MrwWatsor and Ms Scdeirde are guas fied
g

accountarts v th exters ve a~d recent exper ence rire

Fra~cal Services Irdustry Treotrer members of tre
Committee nave a corb ~al or of property, fira~c a
~vestment and bus ress exper ence tirougr sen or
postons ~edt=rocgrolt ther careers

Activity during the year
Dur rgtre yearine Cormittee met tw ¢e win a!,

—erhers at eacr ~eeting and cors dered the forow ~g

- Co-sderato- of tre R sk Map arycratges to
tre ' ke rood orepact of rske a~d consequent a0

crangesrega red ic Boarc Mo torng atd ~ tgatcr

precedores. Consderat on of amy new cremerg ~g
rsksard ~c.oson ~tne R sk liap fapproprate

+ The Long-Tetm V'ab aty staterment and consideration

of the preparatior of the Financia Statements or
a Going Concern bas.s, taking account of forward
00k ng meorme forecasts, the aguidity of the
wvestment portfoiio ard debt profie,

Tre fina~ca: ard otner disciosures i the Firanciar
Staterents,

Tre information presented nthe Haf Year and Annual
Reports to assess whether taker as a wrole they are
fart baiawced a~d u~dersta~dab e and tne .~forraton
preserted » erab e sharencidersto agsesstre
Comrparys postion, perforance, business mode!
ard suategy

Treperfer—a~ce of the exterra aoditor to approve
treracdt fees and corsider the assesset of
~dependence

Trerevew and sibsequent proposa totre Board of
the ~tera~d “~a d vdends a~d

Trereveng of tre Coatee’s ters of reference

ensur ~giteyre~a ~ approprate acd corplant Wt
the 2078 UK Coiperate Gover~ance Code

TR Progert, Insestrert Trust



Going concern

In assessng whether it cortnues 1o be approprate 1o
prepaie the Accounts on a Going Concern basis, the
Commitiee hias made a detalled assessment of the
ability of the Company ard Group to meet its habii ties
astheyfaldue inciud.ng stress and igudity tests which
considered the effects of substartial falls in nvestmenrt
valuations, substantial reductions ir 1evenue received
andreduct ons in market ligu.dity

In hight of the testing carred out, the overal levels of

the investment higuidity held by the Company and the
s.grificart net asset posit.on, the Parert Company and
Group, the Direclors confirm that they are satisfied that
the Company and the Group have adeguate financial
resources to continue in operation for at least the

rext 12 montns folowing the signng of the financial
statements and therefore it is appropriate to continue to
adopt the Going Concern basis of accounting.

The iong-term viabiity of the Company was also
assessed as set out an pages 471 and 42

Risk management and internal control

The Board nas overal responsibility for the Group's
system of Risk Management and Internai Contrel and for
reviewing their effectiveness. Key risks identified by the
Auditar are considered by the Audit Committee to ensure
that robust interna! cortrols and monitoring procedures
‘nrespect of these are in place on an ongo'ng basis
Further details can be found on page 48

The Audt Committee received and corsidered reports
on intermal Controls from the key serv ce providers. No
areas of concern were hignlighted.

The Company's Risk Map was considered to identify

any emerging risks and whether any adjustments were
required to existing risks, and the controls and mitigation
Measures in p'ace in respect of trose risks

Elevated levels of inflation ard interest rates and the
Russian invagion of Ukraine were also considered and
the r sks associated with those events reflected T the
risk map.

The legacy impact of COVID-19 or ecaonomies arocund
the world and operationa. cnarges made by our sery.ce
providers inresponse to changing workp ace practices
were considered and the nisk map adjusted accord.ngly.

Based on the processes and contiols in piace witkin
Columbia Threadneedie Investments and other
significant service providers, tne Board has concurred
that there is no current need for the Company to nave its
owr internal audit function

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Significant issues in relation to the financial
statements

Tne Committee nas considered this report and finarcial
statements and the Long-Term Viabiiity statement

on pages 41 ard 42 The Committee considered the
Auditors assessment of risk of materal misstatement
ard reviewed the interral controls in place inregpect

of the key areas identified and the process by whicn

the Board monitors each of the procedures to give the
Committee comfort on those risks on an ongo'ng basis.
Tnose risks are alsu ighlighted inthe Committee’s Risk
Map.

+ Carrying amount of listed investments (Greup ard
Parent Compary) - the Group's investments are
priced for the daily NAY by BNF Paribas,

Tne gquoted assets are priced by the Adm.nistrator's
Global Pricing Platform which uses independent exterral
pricing sources The contral process surrounding this s
set out In the BNP Panbas AAF 01/06 Internal Controls
Report and testing by the reporting accountant for the
per.od reported to 30 September 2022 which did not
reveal any significant exceptions. The quarterly control
report 1o the Board from BNP Paribas covering the perod
up to 31 March 2023 disclosed no sigrificant issues to
reporl In addition, on each business day, the Manager
estimates the NAY using an alternative pricing source as
an independent check,

The Auditor agreed 100% of the listed investments of tre
portfelio to externally quoted prices and irdependently
received third-party corfirmations from investment
custodians and found the carryirg vaiue of listed
investments to be acceptable.

+ Valuation of Direct Property investments (Group and
Parent Company} — the phys'cal property portfolio is
valued every six months by professiora! indeperdent
valuers.

Knight Frank LLP value the portfolio on the basis of

Fair Value in accordance with the RICS Valuaton -
Professional Standards VPS4 (1.5) Fair Va'ue and VPGA
1 Valuations for Irclusior ‘nFinancia Statements,
which apply the defintion of Farr Value adopted by the
International Firancial Report ng Standards. IFRS 13
defines Fair Value as.

The amount for which an asset could be exchanged a
nability sett'ed, or ar equity instrument grarted could be
exchanged, between know'edgeable, will ng parties nan
arm's length transact.on’
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Report of the Audit Committee
continued

in undertakng thewr vaiuation of each property,
Krught Frank make ther assessment or the basis of
a co'lation and analys:s of approprate comparable
nvestiments, renia, and saie transactiors, togethey
wih eviderce of demand within tre vicmity of each
property This information s then applied to the
properties, taking into account ize, ocat on, terms,
covenant and otrer mater.al factors

The Board has reviewed reports from the Manager
and tie external valuer and determimed the valuation
10 be reasonable.

The Auditor has set out ther deta.ied testung and
procedures in respect of the direct property valuatior
and concluded that they found the Company's
vaiuation of investment properties to be acceptable

There nas been nothing brought to the Committeg’s
attertion inrespect of the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2023 tnat was matera!

or significant ¢r that tre Committee felt should be
brought to shareholders attertion

Auditor assessment and independence
The Company's external auditor, KPMG LLP {KPMG )
was appointed as the Company's aud tor a1 the 2076
AGM. The Committes undertock a review durng
23027 10 ensure that shareholders were receivirg

the best services and value for money A pumber of
firms were invited to express 'nterest and respond
o asmah romber of key points The decis'on was
made for tre audit to remair wih KPMG This s Mr
Merchants second year as the Company's Audit
Partner

The Committee expects to repeat a tender process
no later thar 2026 in respect of the audit for tre
fol'ow ng 371 Marcm yearend © L rewitr trecorrent
a.dtreguatiors

At the ~aif year rmeeting of t7e Com~ 1tee KPMG
prese~tedtrer acdipian fortrevearend ardire
Comrittee corsidered the acd t process and fee
proposar Tre Cormittee 3530 rev ewed KPMG's
~deperdece po'ic es ard procedores, ne Ldirg
qualty assurance precedures It was coms dered that
those pol cies are At for purpcse a~d tre Drectors
are sat.sfled tnat KPMG s ndepe~dent

Tota fees payabeto t-e ALd tor ~ respect of the
acdtfortre vearto 31 Marcr 2023 were

£67 00012022 £82 000 ~he were approved by
tne ALdt Comuttes

o
~a

The Commilee ~as approved and implemented

a policy on the engagerent of the Auditor to
supply nor-audt services, takirg irto accodrt the
recommrendatons of the Accounting Practices
Board with a v ew to ensurng tnat tne exterra!
ALdior does not provide ran-audtt services that
Fave the potertial to impair or appear o "rpair the
ndependence of ther audit roe Inadditon tne
Committee reviewed the actions put i place by
the Aud.tor to ensure there was a ciear separation
between audit and advisory services The Comimttee
does not beleve there 1o be any impedimert to the
Auditor's chiectivity and independerce

Fuli detar's of the Auditar's fees are provided ir note
610 the accaunis on page 85 The fees for nor-
audit servces for the year to 31 Marcn 2023 were rl
(2022 rih

Followirg each aud’t, the Commitiee reviews the
audit process and considers its effectveness

and tre quanty of tne serv.ces provided to the
Company. W.trun this process. the Comrmittee
takes mto consideration the.r own assessment, the
sef evaiuator of the auditor and the Audit Quality
Review Report produced by the FRC in order to
Toritor the progress of the Auditor's performance
comparab'e with its peers and tne targets set by
the FRC. Therewew follow.ng the complet.or of
the 2023 avd't corcluded that the Comnttee

was satished witn the ALdtor's effectivenass ard
performance. The Commuttee felt that KPMG nad
r.n an effect ve and efhic.ent andt process with
approprate cnailerge. Aresglation 1o re-appo nt
KPMG LLP asine Company's Aud tor wi' be put to
s~arenclders at tre fortrcoming AGM

Tim Gillbanks

“F Propersy ircestrert Trus!



Directors’ Remuneration Report

Introduction

The Board bas prepared th's report and the Directors’
Remuneration Poicy, n accordarce witn the
requirements of Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium
S'zed Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reparts)
Regulations 2013. Ar ordrary resoiation for the
approval of this report wit be put 1o the rembers at the
forthcom ng Anrual General Meeting

Trelaw requires the Company's Auditor, KPMG LLP,
to audit certam nf the disclosares provided. Where
disclosures nave been audited, they are indicated
assuch The Audtor's gcpmnionis imcluded in the
‘Independent Auditor's Report’.

Annual statement from the chairman

of the committee

The MEC et in March 2023 and corsidered the results
and feedback from tne Board evaiuation. It was agreed
that the Directors’ fees wodld be increased, with effect
from T Apri: 2023, to the followirg leveis Chairmran
£73,000; Audit Committee Chairmar £43,000; Serior
irdependent Director £43.000, and other Directors
£37,000

Directors’ remuneration policy

The Company's policy 1s that the fees payable fo the
Directors shouid reflect the time spent by the Board on
the Company's affairs and the responsibiities borne
by the Directors and should be sufficient to enable
candidates of high calibre to be recruited, The policy is
for the Chairman of the Board, the chairman of the Audit
Commutiee and the Senmwor independent Director to be
paid higher fees than the other Directors in recognition
of their more onerous roles This policy was approved
by the members at the 2020 AGM, and the Directors’
mntention s that this will continue for the year ending
31 March 2024 In accordance with the regulations,

an ordinary resolution tc approve the Directors’
remuneration palicy will be put to shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM on 20 July 2023, as required every
three years.

The Directors are paid in the form of fees, payable
monthly in arrears, to the Director personally or to g third
party specified hy that Director There are no long-term
mncentive schemes, share ophon schemes or pension
arrangements and ihe fees are nat specifically related
to the Duectors performance. either indiaidually o
collectively

Annual Regort & Accaants 2022

The Board comprises entirely of non-executive Directors,

whose appointments are reviewed formally every year
None of the Directors have a contract of service and a
Director may resign by notice it wiiting (o the Board at
any time, there aré no notice periods and no payments
made for loss of office The terms of their appointment
are detailed i an appointment letter when they join the
Board As the Diectors do not have service contracts,
the Company does not have a policy on termination
payments. The Company’s Articles of Assocalion
currenlly hrnl ihe total aggregate tees payabie to the
Board to £300,000 per annum.

Any sharehclders’ views in respect of Directors’
remuneration are communicated at the Company’s
AGM and are taken into account in formulating the
Directors remuneration pohcy At the 2022 AGM,

9G 8% of shareholders’ votes cast were in favour of the

resolution approving the Directors’ Remuneration Report,

with 0.2% against, shawing very significant shareholder
support

The components of the remuneration package for
Non-executive Directors, which are cormnprised in the
Directors' remuneration pohcy of the Company are
set out below, with & description and approach to
determunation.

63

MBIAIBAD

uodal oibayens

I
5
2
5
2
2
a
o
]
2
3
T
=
=
in

3INSOISID AWHIY DUE A1esSoIn

WY |0 3dI10N

UOIBWLIO U RPIOYSIeus



Directors’ Remuneration report
continued

Remuneration Type

Fixed Fees Additional Fees Expenses Other

The aggregate himit for Add.iona' fees may be pad The Ditectors ae enttled Board members are not

tne iees for the Boara to any Drrecto” who fulfis the  tobe paid ail reasonable engble for bonuses, pension
25 awhole s £300,050 role of the Chairman, who expenses properly ‘meutred benefits, share options.

per annurm whicn, 1N chairs any commettee of the by them attend ng meetings  long-term mcentive scnemed
accordance wih e goard or who s appointeg wi'th shareholaers or other or other non-cash kenefis or
Articles of Association. as ne Senor Independent Drectars or olnerw se in laxab.e expenses

s divided between the Director connection with the ¢scharge

Jirectors as rhey ceem of their duties as Drectors

Thnese fees are setat a
competitive levei 1o reflect
Fees are set 1o reflect experence 2na tme
tve role of each Board commnnument

member and the t.me

commirment reauirea

1o cary ouithe r adties

and are reviewed with

reference 1o the fees pa'c

10 Dreciots of simil'ar

nvestment compan es

appropriate

Annual remuneration report

For the year enced 31 Maron 2023, Drrectors fees were paid a1 tne annua! rates of Chairman £72,030,2022 £70.000;
and al' pthe~ Cirectors £36,00C (2022 £36,000) Anadaitiona. £6,000 was paid per annum for eacn of the roles of Audi
Committee Chairman ancd Senicr independent Directar. The actuar SImounts gard to the Directors dur ng the financiar year
under revievy gre as shown helow

Amount of each Director's emoluments (audited)
e fees payable in respect of each of the Directors who serzed cumng tne financizl year were as folows

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£ £
David Watson 72,000 70,000
Simon Marrison 14,000 40000
Tim Gillbanks 42,000 40,000
Kate Balsover 40,069 35,000
Sarah-Jane Curtis 36,000 35000
Andrew Vaughan 24,000 -
Busola Sodeinde B B ) ) . . 6B: -
Total . ) _ - S %34900 . _ 220000
BMUTeTEt.on Tees &7 pro-raten where & CNE1CE rakEs Liace Cun g &
i-mes aclugen n1ie “ees referrec toin the tak e shoce Tniere are o further

£5
OVEES, CThet exelul v O EXECUL L2 ¢ TECIOS

&2 TR Property incestrert Trust



Company performance

The graph below comrpares, for the ten years ended

31 March 2G?3 the percentage change over each period
In the shaie price total return to shareholders compared
to the snare price total return of benchmark, which the
Board cors.ders to be the most appropriate benchmark
for investment performance measurement purposes An
explanatior of the performance of the Company ‘s given
rthe Charrmar's Statemert and Manager's Report.

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return
over 10 years (rebased)

4000 - - - C e S .-
3500
3000
2500
2000 - -

1500 - - -

1000 7

Tas 12 MarTs e 16 Mar 1m0 s 1 [LETIR TR . F R~ R [ R S £ ATl M et}

. TR Property Share Price Total Return . Benchrark Total Return

Share Price Total Retumn assuming investment of £1,000 on 31 March
2013 and reinvestment of all dividends {excluding dealing expenses)
(Source. Thames River Capital)

Benchmark Total Return assuming notional investment into the index of
£1,0000n 31 March 2013 (Source Thames River Capital)

Directors’ sharehoidings {(audited)

The interests of the Directors in the shares of the
Company, at the beginning and at the end of the year, or
date of appointrent, if later, were as follows:

Ordinary shares of 25 pence

31 March 2023
or as at date of

appointment 31 March 2022
David Watson 47,864 36,407
Kate Balsover 2,360 2360
Sarah-Jane Curtis 10,009 5237
Tim Gillbanks - -
Busola Scdeinde - n/a
Andrew Vaughan 11071 _ n/a

Since 371 Marcn 2023 to tne date of this report, there have
been no changes to the Directors’ interests in the shares of
the Company.

Annual Report & Accounts 2073

Relative Importance of spend on pay

2023 2022

£'000 £'000 Change
Dividends paid 47127 45381 3 8%
Directors’ fees 228 220 36%

Five year change comparison
Over the last five years, Directors’ pay has increased as =set
out i the table below,

Change

2023 2018 over Annualised

£'000 £000 Syears Change
Chairman 72 70 29% 0.6%
Audit Committee
Chairman 42 38 70 5% 2.0%
Senior
Independent
Director 42 38 10.5% 2.0%
Director 36 33 97% 1.8%

Annual percentage change in Directors Fees

The table below sets out the annual percentage change n
fees for each director who served in the year under review

EXEGLCE % change % change
g lWit-VAl from 2021 from 2020
102023 10 2022 to 2021
ICULIC M (audited)  (audited)
Director % % %
DavidWatson +29 +158° #5120
Simon Marrison -65.0% +4.1- +9.7«
Tim Gillbanks +5.0 0.0 0.0
Kale Bolsover +14.5W 0.0 +100.0-~
Sarah-Jane Curtis +2.9 0.0 +449.3
Andrew Vaughan n/a’ n/a n/a
Busola Sodeinde ~ n/a® na n/a
Appointed 25 Cran non w10 etfect o P8 uu v 2020 ncaze el enle
the 1 el part yea and subuerquent 'y, ven ni7e "o
cppointed 2s Zerma naependent Breotor ety eifect from 28 duly D27
Boregseoetlests Ue nLa part vear 2ad subseguent ' ves nthe o e
Appomnted tg a nen exesul w0 Drecioron 1 Ootsher S0 Do ease

efents the frst fue ycar entathe

conted &y nen exetdt ve Toredt

the st sl vesn s e Coorpary

e flects the Crichide NG e NG the gea

ISR

Lppaonted as & non-eaes Gt e Loe

Appointed 25 a non execut ce Tento e 2 danusy 2025

For and on behalf of the Board
David Watson
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation
to the Group financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and the Group and Parent Company fimancian
staterments in accordance witn appucabie iaw ard
regu.ations

Company law reguires the Directors to prepare Group
and Parent Company anarcia: statements for each
firianc:al year Directors are reguired ta prepare the Group
financial statermerts in accordance witn UK-adopted
riernational accourting standards and app.icable

law and have elected to prepare the Parert Companry
firanciai statements on the same bas s

Under company law the Directors must not approve

the firancial statemerts unless trey are satisfied that
they give a true ard fair view of the state of affars of tre
Group and Parert Company and of the Group's prefit or
0ss forthat penod Ir prepaning each of the Groap and
Parert Company financia' statements, the Directors are
reguired 1o.

+ select suitabig accounting polic és and appiy them
consistent'y,

make Jjudgements and estimates trat are reasonable,
relevant ard reliahle,

state whether they nave been prepared in accordance
w'th interrational accounting standards in conformity
with the requiremrents of UK-adopted rterratioral
acco.nt rg standards.

assess the Group and Parent Company's ab .ty to
cort rue asagoirg concern, disciosing, as app! cable
matters re ated to goirg corcern ard

+ use the go g concert basis of accounting wiless
trey e'trerirtend to 'igudate tre Group or the Parent
Co~pany of 1¢ Ccease operat ors or 1ave Mo rea stic
alternative bt to de sc

TreDrectors areresponrs b e for keep ~g adeguate
accountrgrecords tratare sofficenttc s~ow and
exp'a ~ the Pare~t Company's trarsact ors and disclose
winreasorab e accoracy at gy e the firgnc’a
postio™ of tre Parent Compary a~d emabetremto
ersJdretrat tsararca stateme~is comp y w o the
Comparres ACt 2006 Theyarerespo-st efors.co
nterta cortro asthey determ e s ~ecessary loenabe
t~e preparater of 97a-c a stater-erts trat are free from
Tater a ~ sstaterent wret~er due to fracd or encr
a~dbrave genera respoms bty fortak mg sucn steps as
are reasc aby opento tme 1c safegoard e assels
oftre Gicup a~dtc preve-t ard detect fraud and otrer
TTEQ.art es

[oy)
fen)

Under appl cable law and regulations, the Directors
are also responsibie for preparirg a Strateg ¢ Report,
Drectors Report, Directors' Remrurerat'on Report
and Corporate Goveraance Statement

The Directors are respons-ble for the mamntenance
and irtegrity of trhe corporate and finarcia
inforrratior mc.uded on tpe Comipany's website
Legis.ation intne UK gaverning the preparator and
disseminatior of financial staterrents may differ
from legisiat on in otner junisdictons

In accordance with Disc.osdre Guidance and
Transparency Rule 4 1 14R, the firancial statements
will form part of the anrual financia’ report prepared
Jsng the single eiectronic reparting format under
the TD ESEF Regulatior The Auditors report on
these financ.a’ statements provides no assurance
aver the ESEF format

Responsibility statement of the Directors
in respect of the annuai financial report
Each of the Directors corfirms tnat to the best of
trer knowedge

- the “narcial staterents, prepared - accordance
with the app! cable set of account:~g standards
gwve atrue and far vew of the assets habiities
finarcia: position and profit or .oss of the Group
and Parent Company ard the undertakings
inc.uded ntae corsotidatior taker as a whoie, and

+ te strategic report neludes a far review of the
develop™ert ard performance of the bus ness
and tne postion of tne ssuer a~d the undertakrgs
e aded v the consoldator taken as a whoe,
togetrer with a descrption of the pracipal risks
and uncertarties that they face

Tre Drectors cors.der that tne Arrca Repert
and Accourts takerasawnoe s fair baarced
a~d anderstardab e a~d prov.des tre nfor—aton
~ecessary for srare~c ders to assess 1+ Srowp's
pos tior acd performance busness voge and
strategy

By order of the Board
David Watson

TR Progerty rcestment Trast



KPMG

Independent auditor's report

to the members of TR Property Investment Trust Pic

01 Our opinion is unmodified

We nave audited tre “inancial statements of 1R Property
Investmenrt Trust Ple (the 'Company’} for tne year

ended 31 March 2023 wnich comprise the Group
Statement of Comprehens've Incorre, Group and
Company Statements of Changes in Equity, Group and
Company Balance Sheets, Group and Company Cash
Flow Statements and the related notes, including the
accounting policies n note 1.

In our opinion:

+ the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of the Group's and of the parent Company's
affairs as at 31 March 2023 and of the Group's return
for the year ther ended;

+ the Group financ:al statements have been properly
prepared ir accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting stardards,

+ the parent Company financia. statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted
nternational accourting standards and as appled in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2006, ard

+ the financial statements have been prepared In
accordance with the requirements of the Compan-es
Act 2006

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit ir accordance with International
Slandards on Audiirg (UK) {Isas (UK)) and apphcable
law. Our responsibilities are described below. We believe
that the aud® evidence we have obtaned ‘s a sufficient
and appropriate basis for our opimicn. Our audit opinion
Is consistert with our report to the avdit committee

We were first appointed as auditor by the Directors on

2 November 2016 The period of total uninterrupted
engagement s for the seven financial years ended

37 March 2023 We have fulfilled our ethical
responsibilities under, and we remain independent of
the Group in accordance with, UK ethical requirerments
including {ne FRC Ethica: Standard as appled to listed
public interest entities. No qon-audit services prohibited
by that standard were provided.

Overview

Matenality’ group £10.5m (2022 £16.8m)
financial statements 1% (2027 1%) of Total Assets

as a whole

Key audit matters vs 2022 o vs 2022

Recurring risks Valuation of direct property < )
investments i
Carrying amount of listed >
investments

02 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most sigr ficance in the audit of the
financial statements and nclude the most significant assessed risks of material misstaterrent (whether or rot due
o fraud) identified by us, Including tnose which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocaton of
resources ir the audit; and directirg the effarts of the engagement team. We summarise below the key audit matters
{uncranged from 2022), n decreasing order of auddt sigrificance, in arriving at our audit opmion abhove, together

with our key aud t procedures to address those matters and aur findings from those procedures in order that the
Company's members, as a body, may Jnderstand better the process by which we arrved at cur audit opinion. These
matters were addressed, ard our findings are based on procedures undertaken in the context of, and solety for the
purpose of our audit of the financial staterments as a whole, and in forming our opimion thereor and cansequently ale
meidenta to that opimon. and we do not provide a separate opinion or these matters

Annua. Report & Accounts 20722
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

02 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of materiat misstatement . - -+ -

e 1S Qur response

Valuation of direct
property investments
{(Group and Parent}
(£74 C milion;

2022 £96.3milhoni

Refer to pages 6010

62 (Audrt Committee
Report: pages 81 ang 82
taccounting pelicy), note 10
onpages 8% 10 92 (‘mancial
disciosures}

a
o0

Subjective valuation:

7.0 (2022, 5 7)) of ine Group g,

and 6 8% (2022 5 6% of the Parem
Company’s, total assets by va'ue) are
neid 'ninvestmen: properties

The fair va'ue of each property requ res
signficant estimation, in particular with
regara to the estimated rentat value and
yield assumptions "he assumplions
wll be impactec by a number of factors
mncludimg qua’ty ana condition of the
bullding and tenant financiai strengin

The effect of these matters is that

as par1 of our sk assessment, we
determined that the valuztion of
Investment propertes has a igh
degree of estimation uncertz iy, with a
potent al range of reasonable cutcomes
greater than our materialhty for the
financial statements 2s a who.e. The
financra: statements (nate 101 d sc.ose
the sens*-vity estirmatec by the Group

We pe-formed the ceta fed tests be.ow tather
thzseeking to rely on any of tne Group's
carilrols, because the nature of *he balance

s such that we wou'd expect 1o obtain audit
evidence pr manly througn the aetar'ed
proceaures descr bed

Qur procedures included:

- Assessing valuer's credentials: Using ou own
property veluation specalist, we eva uated the
competence. experience and inoependence of
the externa: valuer

* Tests of detail: We compared the afarmaton
providea by the Croup toits external property
va'uer for a sample of properiies, such as
renta’ ncome and tenancy data 1o Supparing
cozuments mcluding lease agreements;

+ Methodology choice: We held discussons
with The Group’s externa' property valuer to
cetermine the valuation methadology used &
appropnate Using our gwn property valuation
specialist, we criticaiy assessed the resulis
of the va.uers repart by checking that the
va'uations were in accordance with the RICS
valuat-on Professional Stanacarcs the Red
Jock’ anc FRS and that the methodoiogy
zdopted was app-opriate by reference <o
acceptzb'e vauation practice,

Benchmarking assumptions: With the
assistance of our own property va.uaton
specialist, we ne'd discuss.ons w th the
Group's external property valuer to understanc
Movernents in property values For g sampie of
propertes, we assessed the <ey assumptions
used by the valuer upan which the valuations
are based, inciud ng those relatng @ esi.mated
“enta velue and vield, by makng a comparsaen
o our own understancing of the marke* 2-d "o
Incustry bencnmarks,

*+ Assessing transparency: We a.s0 considerec
e adecuacy of tne Group's ci1sciosures abour
the cegree o estmigtion and sens.iv. Ty to «ey
zssumpt ons made wnen il g tne crrect
PTORErty nees ments

Qur findings
e found the Croup s valuat on of nesiment
e estobe balencec {2022 balancenr Ve

TR Srooery Investmert Trast



e TiS Jur response

Carrying amount of
listed investments
(Group and Parent)
(£B872 1 milion;

2022 £1,456.8 m ihign)

Referto pages 6C 10 62
{Audt Committee Report),
page 82 (accounting pol.cy)}
and note 10 on pages 85 1c
92 (fnancial d'sclosures).

Low risk, high value:

The partfolio of listed evel 1
Mvestments maxes up 83 0% (2022

86 4%} of the Group's, and 80.2% (2022
84 6% of the Parent Company’s, iotal
assets (by value) and ‘s one of the key
drivers of results We ao not consider

these Investments 1o e at a high risk of

matenal misstatemen?, or 1o be sub;ect
10 a signuficant level of jJucgement
hecause they comprise hguid, quoted
investments However due to tner
materiality in the context of the
financial statements as & whole, they
are considered to be one of the areas
which had the greatest effect on our
overa | augr strategy and alocation of
resources In planning and compieting

We performed the detailed tests below rather
than seeking to rely on any of the group’s
contre.s, because the nature of the batance
‘s such that we would expect to obktam audit
evidence primarly through the detailed
procedures descr bed

Our procedures inc'uded

+ Test of detail: Agreeing the valuaton of 100%
ot level 1 listed investmenis in the portfolio 1o
externaily quoted prices. anc

« Enquiry of custodians: Agreeing 100% of
level 7 listed 'nvestment holdings in the
portiolio 1o independently received third party
confrmations from investment custodians

our audit.

Our findings

We founc no differences from third party
holdings confirmations nor from the externally
quoted prices of a size to reguire reporting to the
Audit Committee (2022 no differences).

03 Our application of materiality and an
overview of the scope of our audit

Matenahty for the Group financia statements as a whole
was set at £10.5m (2022 £16.8m), determined with
refererce to a benchmark of totar assets, of which it
represents 1.0% (2027, 1.0%),

Materiality for tne parent Carmmpany financial statements
as awhole was set at £9.97m {2022 £16.0m}, which

is the component matenality for the Parent Company
determined by the Group audit engagement team This
15 lower than the Materiality we would otnerwise have
determined with reference to Parent Company total
assets, of which it represents 0 95% (2022 0.95%]).

I line with our audit methodology, our procedures
on individual account balances and disclosures were

performed to a lower threshold, performarce materiahty,

S0 as to reduce to an acceptable levei tnhe risk that
individeaily immaterial misstaternents in individual
accourt balarces add up to a mater al amount across
the financial staterments as a whole Performance
materality was set at 75% (2022 75%) of matenality
for the financial statements as a who e which equates
to £7.86m (2022 £12 6m) for the Group ard £7.45m
(2022 £12m) for the Parent Company. We applied
tnis percentage in our determination of performance
mater ality becal:se we did not :dentify any factors
indicat ng an elevated leve! of risk

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any
corrected or uncorrected identified misstatements
exceeding £0.53m (2022 £0 84m) for the Group and
exceeding £0 5m (2022: £C Bm) for tne Parent Company,
in addition to other identified misstatements that
warranted repcrting on qualitative thresholds.

The audit teamr performed tne audit of the Group as a
single aggregated set of financial informaticon rather

than scoping ' individual components This approach

is Lnchanged from the pricr vear. The audit of the

Group and Parent Company was performed Jsirg the
materiaiity evels set out above and was performed by a
single audit team The scope of tne audit work performed
was fully substantive as we did not rely upon the Group's
internal controls over financial reporting

Group Materiality
£10.5m (2022 £16 8m)

Total Assets
£1.051Tm (2022 £71,686m)

£10.5m
whole financial statements
maternality (2022° £16.8m)

£7.85m

Whaole financial statements
performance materiality
(2022 £12 6m)

£9.97m
Parent Company Materiality
(2022, £16.0m)

£0.5m

Misstatements reported
to the audit commitiee
{2022 £0 8mM)

n Total Assets
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

04 The impact of climate change on our audit

We have performed a nsk assessmenrt of tow the ‘mpact
of cur-ate crange may affect the financial statements
and our audit Leve' 1 listed investments make up
83.0% of the Group's total assets forwr cn farva.Le

Is deter™ined as the quoted market price Trerefore,
we assessed that tre finarcial statemenrt estimate tnat
1S proariy exposed to chimate risk is the investment
property portfoao, for which the valuation assumptions
and estimates rray be impacted by phys cal and policy
or legal ci'mate risks, such as flooding or an inciease

N cimate related compliance expenditure We heid
discussions with cur own climate change professionals
to cha'lenge oLr nsk assessment We assessed that,
whilst clmate charge posed a nsk ¢ the determinatiar
of irvestment property valuations in the current year,
this rsk was not significart wnen consider rg hoth e
nature and domicie of the properties and the tenure of
unexpred ieases Therefore, there was na s'gnificant
impact of this or aJr key audit matters,

We nave read the disciosure of cimate related narrative
M the front nalf of the firarcia: statements and
considered consistency with tne financ'a’ staterrents
and ocr acdit Knowiedge.

05 Going concern

The Directors have prepared the fimancial statements
or the going concerr basis as they do not irtend to
l.quidate the Group or the Compary or to cease treir
operat ong, ard as tney have concluded that the Group's
and tre Cormpany's “inancial position means trat t's

is realstic They have a so concluded that there are no
mater a. uncentantiesthat cou d have cast s'ignificant
doubt overtrer atiity to contirue as a go' g corcern for
at least & vear fror the date of approva of tne firanc a
staterre~ts{the go ng carcer perod)

We Lsed our knowedge of tme Group. its rdustry,

ard the gerera ecomomic envirgr~ert tode-tify

tre ~~erertrsksic 1S husiness vode and aralysed
~ow thoger sks m gt affect t-e Sroup or Corpany s
firanc.& reso.rces or abilty ta co~tr.e opetat'ons aver
tre going concern per od Tne v sks that we cosidered
~—qgst ke y toc adverse y affect the Group or Coparys
ava abefrarcalresources and (s ab’l ty to operate
cver17is per od were

Tre-~pactofasgn ficantredact on o~ the wa Lation
of =sestrrerts andthe ™ .cato~s fortre Growp or
Lo parys debt coverarts

—

(

+ Toelgudiy of the i~vestment portfolio and its al'ity
to meet the iabirt es of the Group as and wnen they
fal die ard

+ The operat ona' resilience of key service organisat ons

We corsidered whetner these risks could plausitly affect
tne ilguidity of coverant cormpilance in the goirg cencer
period by assessing tre degree of downside assLmption
that, mdvidially and collectively, could result ir a hguidity
1ssLe, taking into account tre Group or Companry’s
currert and projected cash ard igaid investment
posdion (a~d tne results of their revérse stréss testirg)

We corsidered whether the going concern disclosure
ir note 1 g'ves a ful a-d accurate deseription of the
Dorectors” assessment of gomg corcern reluding the
aentified risks and related sensitivit es

Curcorc.ds 01s hased or trs work:

we consider that the Directors’ use of the goirg
concern basis of accourtirg in the preparation of tne
finarcial siaterments s appropriate;

« we have rotidert-fied, and concur witk tne Directors'
assessTert that there is not, a matenal ancerta riy
related to everts orconditons that, ind v-dual y or
collective'y may cast s grificart doubt on the Group's
or Corrpary s ab’ ity to cont "ILe as a goirg concern
for the going concerr period,

+ we nave rotn g raterial to add or draw attention to
irretatior to the Directors’ staterent or the use of the
goirg concern basis of accourt ng with ro Tater a!
drcerta ~ties that may cast sigrificant doubt over
the Group and Comrpary's use of that basis for the
gorg concern perod, and we fourd the going concerr
disc ¢suremn rote 1to be acceptab e ard

tme reated statemert under the List ng Ruies setout
or page 61 s ™Mater aly cors stert with tre fmanc a
staterents a~d our aad t knicwledge

Howewver aswe cannot pred'ct all futore everis ar
condtons and as subseguerteverts ravress T
curcomrestrat are ncors stent w th jLdge—ents trat
werereasorab e atthet rmetney veere rade e above
conc..sotsare ot aguara~teetratt e Groop ortne
Company v cont Tue  operat on

TF Procerty investrert Trust



06 Fraud and breaches of laws and
regulations - ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of matenal misstatemert due to fraud
(fraud nsks ) we assessed events of conditions tnat
could indicate an ircentive or pressure to commit fraud
or provide an opportunity to commt fraud Ourr sk
assessiment procedures included.

Frounng of Drectors as to the Group's nign level
paiicies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud,
as wel! as whether they have knowledge of any actual,
suspected or alleged fraud,

+ Assessing the segregat'on of duties in place between
the Directars, the Administrator and the Group's
Investment Manager, and

Reading Board and Audit Committee minutes.

As required by auditing standards, we perform
procedures to address the nisk of managemert override
of contrals, in particuiar to the risk that management
may be in a pesition to make inappropriate accounting
entries, We communicated identified fraud risk
throughout tne audit team and remained alert to any
indications of fraud throughout the audi. We evaluated
the design and implemertation of the controls over
journal entries and other adjustments and made
inquiries of the Administrator about inappropriate or
wnusual activity relat ng to the processing of journal
entries and ather adjustments

We substantively tested all material post- ciosing
ertries and, based or the resuits of our risk assessment
procedures and understanding of tre process, including
the segregation of duties between the Directors and

the Adrinistrator, no further high-risk journal entres or
other adjustments were identified

On this audit we Fave rebutted the fraud nsk related
to reverce recognition because the revenue is

non- judgemental and straightforward, with lim'ted
opporturity for marpulation We did rot identify any

sigrficart unasua transact'ons or addiional frand risks.

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and
regulations

We dentified areas of laws and regulations that cou d
reasorably be expected to have a material effect on

the financial statements from our genera commerc al
and sector experence ard through discussion with

the Directors, the Investment Manager and the
Administrator (as reguired by auditing standards)

and discussed with the Directers the polic es and
provedures regarding comphnarce with laws and
regulations We communicated identified laws and
regulations throughout ourtea and remamed aert to
any indications of non-compuance throughout the audit
As the Parent Company is regulated, cur assessment of
risks involved gaining ar understanding of the control
environmert including the ent'ty's procedures for
comply.ng with regulatory requirements.

Tne potential effect of these laws and 1eguiations on the
financial statements vanes considerabiy.

Firstly, the Group is sublect to ‘aws and regulations

that directly affect tne financial statements ‘ncluding
financial reporting legislation (including re’ated
companies legislation), distnbutable profits .egislation,
and its qualificatior as an Investment Trust under UK
taxation legislaticn, any breach of which could lead to
the Group losing var'ous deductions and exerrptions
from UK corporaticn tax, and we assessed the extent of
compliarnce with these laws and regulations as part of
our proceddres on the related financial statement items

We assessed the lega ity of the distributions made by
the Company in the period based on comparing the
dividends paid to the distr butable reserves prior to each
distribution.

Secondly, the Group 1s subject to many other laws and
regllations where the consequerces of nor-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures
ntne financial statements, for instance through the
mposition of fines or litigatior. We idertified the
following areas as tnose most I'kely to have such an
effect: money laundering, data protectior:, bribery and
corruption iegrslation and certa n agpects of Company
'egislation recognising the financial nature of the
Group's activities and s lega! form. Auditing standards
it the required audit procedures toidentify non-
compliance with tnese laws ard regulations to erquiry
of the Directors and the Adrministrator and :nspection of
regulatory and lega! correspondence, if any Therefore,
if & breacnh of operational regulations i1s not disclesed to
us or evident from relevant correspendence, an audit wit
not detect that breach

21
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independent auditor’s report
continued

06 Fraud and breaches of laws and requlatians -
ability to detect - = .-

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or
breaches of law or regulation

Owrng tothe nherent Imitat:ons of an audt, there s an
uravo'dabie risk that we may not have detected some
materal misstatements nthe financia’ statements, even
thougn we nave properly pianned and performed our aud t
raccordance witk aud tirg standards. Forexample, the
further removed non-compliance with iaws ard regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected ir the financia.
statements, the less ikely the inherently imited procedures
required by auditing standards would identify it

in addition, as with any aud't, there remained a mgher risk
of non-detectior of fraud, as these may involve colusion,
forgery rtentiona omissions, me-srepresentat ors, or the
override of internal contrals Our audit proceduares are
designed to detect materia) misstatermert We are not
responsibie for preventing non-compiiance or fraud and
cannot be expected to detect nar-corpliance with ail 'aws
and regulations

07 We have nothing to repart on the other
information in the Annual Report

The Directors are resporsible for the other infarmation
presented 1 tre Annual Report together w tn the financal
staterrents Qur opinion on the firarcia: statements
does not cover the other rformation and accord gy,
we do not express anaddt opirian on except as expi citly
stated bewow, any form of agsurarce conc'usior thereor

Our respons bil ty storead the otrer infarmatior and.

- do'ng so corsider whether based on our finarcia
statements audit work, the ~formatior trerer is
matenally msstated or sconsistent with the firarc al
statements or our aud-t knowledge Based soe'y onthat
work we have not -dert fied materia m sstate™ents in
tre other rfor-atar

Strategic report and Directors’ Report
Based solewy on our work o~ the other ~fornmat ¢

- we nave "ot dentifled materal misstate~ents intre
strategic report a~d the Directors report

©orourapor the AforTat' on gven 1 those repents
for tre financia!l year scons stertwit~trefranca
stater~eris ard

* T OLrGpR T Crttose reports mave beer prepared -
accorda-ce v thire Compar es £21 2006

Directors’ remuneration report

In oL opinmior the part of the Directors’ Remuneratior
Report 1o be audited has beer preperly prepared i
accordance with the Companies Act 2006

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and
longer-term viability

We are required to perform proced.res todertify
whether there s a mrateria' nconsistency between
tne Directors’ d'sclosures ir respect of emergirg ard
princ.pa. risks and the viability statement, and the
financal statemnents and  our audit knowledge

Based on those procedures, we bave nothing mater al to
add or draw attention to nre'ation to:

- he Directors’ confirmaton. within tne Long-term
Viabinty staterrent on page 47 Inat they have carned
odt arobast assessment of the emerg.ng and prnc pal
nisks facing the Group, ircluding those that wouid
threaten its busiress mode'. future performance,
sowvercy ard Lagudity,

« tne Principa’ and emerg.ng risks and .ncerta nties
disclosures describing these risks and now emerging
nske are -dentified. and expiaining how they are being
maraged and mitigated; and

+ the Drrectors’ explanation '+ tne Long- term Viabil'ty
statement of how tney have assessed the prospects
of the Group. Gver what perod they pave done sg and
why trey considered that per od ta be appropriate, ard
their statemert as to wrether they rave a reasonable
expectation trat the Group w i be ab'eto contrue
i operat'or and meet s liabi't es as they fal' due
over tne per od of treir assessmert ~cudngany
reated discrosures draw ng attention 16 ary Necessary
gua ificatons or ass.rptions

Wwe are a'sorequired to review tne Long-term Viabil ty
statere~t set oLt o” page 41 and 42 Lnder the L sting
Rules Based o~ tre above procedures we rave

conc sdedthat the above disc osures are matera vy
corsstertw th tre firarca staterierts ard odr avd t
krow edge

Ourwerk s o ted to assess ng tiese ~atters + the
cortext of only tre know edge acqured dur rg our
‘Imarca siatementsaudt Aswecanrctpredcia
future everts orcond t ors and as subsea ert everts
~ayres. o oltcorestratare roors stert vtk

judge~ertsthat werereasorabeattiet retrey

were rmade the abse~ce of arvtnirg to report o0 these
statements srctaguararteeaste t-e Groupsand
Companys cnger-ter~ vab ity

TF Srgperty reestmert Trust



Corporate governance disclosures

We are required 1o perform procedures to identfy
whether there 15 a matenal inconsistency between the
Drectars’ corporate governance disclosures and the
financial statements ard our audit knowledge

Based on those procedures, we have corcluded that
each af the following .s mater'a vy cons'stent with the
financian statements ard cur audit knowledge:

- the Directors’ stateiment that they consider that the
annual report and financial statements taken as
awnoie is fair baarced and urderstandable, and
provides the .nformation necessary for sharehoders
tc assess the Group's position and performance,
business model and strategy;

- the secticn of tre annual report describing the work of
the Audit Commuttee, Including the significart 1ssues
that the audit committee corsidered in relation to
the “inancial statements, and how these issues were
addressed, and

+ the sectior of the annual report that describes
the review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internai control systems.

We are requi.red to review the part of the Corporate
Sovernance Statement relating to the Group's
compliance with the provisions of the UK Caorporate
Goverrance Code specified by the Listing Rules for our
review We have nothing to report in this respect.

08 We have nothing to report on the other
matters on which we are required to report
by exception

Undertre Companies Act 2006, we are required to report
to you if in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records Fave rot been kept by
the parent Company, or returns adeguate for cur audit
have not been recelved from branches not visited
by us; or

+ the parent Company financiai statements ard the part
of the Directars’ Remuaneration Report to be audited
are rot In agreement with the accourting records and

returns: or

« certain disclasures of Directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made, o1

+ we have not recelved all the informatior and
explanations we require for cur audit

We nave nothing to report in these respects.

Arrual Report & Accounts 2023

09 Respective Responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fuily ‘nthe’r statement set oLt

or page 66, the Directors are responsibe for, the
preparation of the financial statements including beng
satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such interal
control as they determine 1s necessary 1o enable the
preparation of finarc al statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error:
assessing the Group and parent Compary's abviity to
contimue as | yong concers, disc'os.ng, as applicable,
matters related to goirg concern; and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless they either interd to
ligu date the Group ar the parent Company or to cease
operations, or have no reaustic alternative bul to do so

Auditor's responsibilities

Our ohjectves are to obta nreasonable assurance
about whether the “nancial staterments as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to iIssue our opinion Ir an auditor's report
Reasonable assurance is a high evel of assurance,

but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1ISAs (UK) wili always detect a matenal
misstatement when it exists Misstatements can arise
frorm fraud or error and are considered matenal If,
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of usars
taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our resporsibiiities is
provided on the FRC's website at www frc org.uk/
auditorsresponsibiities.

The Company is required to irciude these financia
statements :n an annual financial report prepared Lsing
the sing'e electronic reporting format specified ir the
TD ESEF Regulation. This aaditer's report provides no
assurance over whether the annual financial report has
beer prepared in accordance with that format.
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independent auditor’s report
continued

10 The purpose of aur audit work and to
whom we owe cur responsibilities

Tnis report s made solely to the Company’s members,
as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 and the terms of cur engagement
by the Company. Cur avdit work has beer undertaker, so
that we might state to the Company's members those
matters we are required to state to thermin ar auditor's
report, and tre further matters we are required (o state
10 them n accordance with the terms agreed with

tne Compary and for no gther purpose. To the fuilest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibiity to anyone other than the Compary and the
Company's members, as a body. for our audit work faor
this repart, o1 for the opiniors we have formed

Buo Wt L

Philip Merchant {Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutary Auditor

KPMG

TF Property i vestmert Trust
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Group staterment of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital
Returh Return Return Return Total
Notes £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Income
Investment income 2 52,077 - 52,077 44170 - 44170
Other operating income 4 255 12 267 5 - 5
Gross rental income 3 3,513 - 3,513 2,773 - 2773
Service charge income 3 946 - 946 1,103 - 1,103

(Losses)/gains on Investments
held at fair value 10 - (549,430}  (549,430) - 249038 249038

Net movement on foreign
exchange; investments
and loan notes - (2,780) (2,780) - 1,136 1136

Net movement on foreign
exchange; cash and cash

equivalents - 2,016 2,016 - 637 637
Net returns on contracts for

difference 10 9,462 (45,556) (36,094) 5,701 16,361 22,062
Total Income 166,253 (595,738) (529,485) 53,752 267172 320924
Expenses

Management and performance

fees 5 (1,560) (4,680) (6,240) (1.663) (29.477) (31,140}
Direct property expenses, rent

payable and service charge costs 3 (1,660) - (1,660) {1,435) - (1,435)
Other administrative expenses 6 (1,163) - (542) (1,705) {1.621) (6083 (2.229)
Total operating expenses i (4,383) (5222)  (9,605) (4718} (30.085) {34,804}
Operating profit/(loss) 61,870 (600,960} (539,090) 49,033 237,087 286,120
Finance costs 7 1.146)  (3,438) (4,584) (629) {1,886} (2,515)
Profit/(loss) from operations

before tax 60,724 (604,398) (543,674) 43 404 235201 283605
Taxation 8 (6,087) 2,495 (3,592) (4967) 3049 {1518)
Total comprehensive income 54,637  (601,903) (547,266) 43437 238250 281687
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary

share 9 17.22p (189.67)p {(172.45)p 13.6%p 7507p 88 7ép
The Total coiumn of th s statemen “epresents The Croup's Statement of Comprehens ve mcome prepared In accorgance with
UK-zdopted ntematicnal account g sta1darzs Tne Revenue Retuand Capta Peturnccumns zre supplemeniary to 7
31< are preparel unge” gu dance pub :shed by the &ssocaTon o 1.estment Compan es A cems inthe above statemen:

der.ve from continu N¢ cpetztions

i3

The Croup goes nol12:€ anv other ncome o expense *hat s 1ot inciudes 1 the gbo g satemien: “nerefore "Tota
o I3

comprehens ve income’ ’ T ENC 1088 ‘o the veer
All ncome g 2t butal 2 w0 tne snarenolcers of the parent company

Thenotes from pages 20 o 124 formpart of tnese F zane Statements

o
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Group and Company statement of changes in equity

Group

For the year ended 31 March 2023

At 31 March 2022

Total comprehensive income
Dividends pata

At 31 March 2023

Share
Premium

Account
Notes £000

79,338 43,162

Capital
Redemption
Reserve
£000

43,971

43,971

Retained
Earnings
£'000
1,396,268
(547,266)
(47,127)
801,875

1,562,739
(547,266)
(47,127)
968,346

Company

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Share

Share Premium

Capital Account

Notes £000 £'000

Capital
Redemption

Reserve
£000

Retained
Earnings
£'000

At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739
Total comprehensive iIncome - - - (547,266) (547,266}
Dividends paid - 17 - - (47.127) (47,127)
At 31 March 2023 79,338 43,162 43,971 801,875 968,346
Group
Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained

Capital Account Reserve Earnings Total
For the year ended 31 March 2022 Notes £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
Total comprehensive income 281,687 281 687
Dividends paid 7 o - (45381)  (45387)
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739
Company

Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained

Capital Account Reserve Earnings Total
For the year ended 31 March 2022 Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2021 79338 43162 43,971 1,159,862 1,326,433
Total comprehensive Income 231,687 281,687
Dividends paid 17 (45381 {45381)
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43162 43,871 1,296 268 1,562,739

Tne notes from pages 80 to 104 form part of 1nese “inancial Statements

Annual Report & Accolnts 2023
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Group and company balance sheets

¥

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022

Notes £000 £'000 £'000

Non-current assets

Investments held at fair value 10 948,672 548,672 1,506,436 1,506 436
Investments in subsidiaries 10 - 36,292 - 36,297
Investments held for sale i 10 - ) - 48680 48580
948,672 984,964 1,555416 1591713
Deferred taxation asset 2z 903 _oen3 ] 903
949,575 985,867 1,556,314 1,592,616
Current assets
Debtors 12 65,287 65,293 97673 97,208
Cash and cash equivalents 36,071 - 36,069 32109 32107
101,358 101,362 129,782 199,215
Current liabilities 13 (23,654) (59,950) (66,109) (101.939)
Net current assets 77,704 41,412 63673 27376
Total assets plus net current
assets/{liabilities) 1,027,279 1,027,279 1,618,992 1,619992
Non-current liabilities _ 13 (58933) (58,933) ) (57,253} - (57,253)
Net assets 968,346 968,346 1,562,739 1,562,739

Capital and reserves

Called up share capita! 14 79,338 79,338 74,338 79,338
Share premium account 15 43,162 43,162 43,162 432162
Capital redemption reserve 15 43,971 43,971 43971 43871
Retained earnings L 6 801875 @ 801875 _ 1396268 1,396,268
Equity shareholders’ funds 968,346 968,346 1,562,739 1,562739
Net Agset Value per:

Ordinary share 19 305.13p 305.13p 492.43p 492 43p

These CINANC & slatements wee approved by the ¢ recilors of TR Propety nvesiment Trust p'orlompany ho 824971 510
author.ged for ssue on 1 June 2523

2 Wataon

D Watson

Director
Trenotes fro~ pages 80 <o 124 forr part of toese Firarcia Staterterts

g TR Property Irvestmert Trust



Group and Company cash flow statements

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022
£'000 £'000 £000
Reconciliation of profit from operations
before tax to net cash outflow from
operating activities
{Loss)/profit from operations before tax (543,674) (543,674) 283605 283605
Finance costs 4,584 4,584 2,515 2,515
Losses/(gains) on investrments and
derivatives held at fair value through profit
orloss 594,986 594,990 {265,399) (258,387}
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash
and cash equivalents and loan noles (336) (336) (977) (977)
Scrip dividends included in investment
income and net returns on contracts for
difference (6,325) (6,325) {10.839) {(10,839)
Sale of investments 448,587 448,587 544,370 544370
Purchase of investments (427,509) (427,509) (430,830) (430837}
{Increase)/decrease Iin prepayments and
accrued income (978) (978) 8 8
Decrease/(increase) in sales settlement
debtor 30,399 30,399 (32,871) (32,871}
Increase in purchase settlement creditor 3,172 3,172 5170 5170
Decrease in other debtors 1,419 1,413 2,951 2,951
(Decrease)/increase in other creditors (22,265) (21,797) 13.809 6798
Net cashflow from operating activities
before interest and taxation 82,060 82,526 111,512 111,512
Interest paid (4,584} (4,584) {2,515) (2,515)
Taxation paid o {3.403) (3,869} (1,258) {1.258)
Net cashflow fromn operating activities 74,073 74,073 107,739 107,739
Financing activities
Equity dividends paid (47,127} (47,127) {45,387) {45,381
Repayment of lcans o (25,000} (25,000) (60,000) (60,000)
Net cashflow from financing activities ] (72127} ) (72,127) (1 075,387) 7 (105,381)
Increase in cash 1,946 1,946 2,358 2.358
Cash and cash eguivalents at start of year 32,109 32,107 290114 29,112
Net moverment on foreign exchange; cash
and cash equivalents 2,016 2,016 637 637
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 36,071 36,069 32109 32,107
The notes from pages 80 to 104 form part of tnese F nanzial Statements
Annual Report & Accounts 20232 79
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Notes to the financial statements

G

[on)
(4]

Accounting policies

Tnefinancial statements for the vear enaed 31 March 2023 have been prepared on a going concern 2asis. in accordance wih
LK-adopted International accounting standards ana in confarmity with the requirements of the Comparues Act 2C06 Tne financ.ai
siatemente have also been prepared in accoraance with the Staternent of Recommenaed =ractice. "Financial Statements of
Investment Trust Companies and Venture Capital Trusts, ('SORPY, 10 the extent that it s cong’stent with UK-acopied nternat onal
accounting standards

In assessing Go ng Concern tne Boarc has maage & detaled assessment of the abrl ty of the Company and the Group 10 meet
1s habhities as they fali due, including stress and Lquidity tests whicn censidered ine effects of substantial fal's ninvesiment
valuations, revenues rece ved ana market 1gu-dity s the gioba economy coninues o suffer d sruption due o inflat onary
pressures, the wear in Ukraine and the after-effects of the COVID-19 pandemic

'n hght of the testing carred out, the "quidity of the evel 1 assets held by the Company and tne sign'ficant net asset va ue,
anc the net current asset position of the Group anc Parent Company, the Directors are satsfied that the Company and
Group have acequate financiai resources to continue .n operation for at ieast the next 12 months fonowing the signing of
the financia. statements and therefore 18 appropriate 1o adopt the going concern basis of accountng.

The Croup and Company financial statemants are expressed in sterhing, which is thelr functional and pregentationa!
currency Sterling s the functional currency because itis tae currency o 17€ primary economic eny ronment in w1 ch tne
Group operates Values are rounced 10 the nezarest thousand pouncs (£0CT} except where otherwize indicatec

Key estimates and judgements

Tnepreparation of the financial statements necessarily requ-es the exercise of udgement bota napphcaton of
accounting polcies, which are sel out below, anc n t1e selection o° assumpt ians used n the calcutation of estimases
These est.mates and judgemenis a~e reviewes on an ongoing basis and are continug 'y evaluatec basec on 1.storical
experience and other faztors However, actuai -esults may ciffer from tmese est mates The only key estimate
s consdered to be the valuation of vestment properties. See secton (fy of this note There are not cons:aeren
10 be any <ey jutigements.

a) Basis of consolidation

The Group finanoia statements consondate the fingncal statements of the Company anc its subsidianies to 31 Mach
023 Al the subsidiar es of the Company have been consolidated in these financ al statements In acco-dance with
IFRS1T the Company has been designated as an investment entity an 11 basis that

=t obtains funds from nvestors and provides those Mvesiors witn investment management serv:ces,

- It commits to its nvestars that its business purpese (s to nvest funds soleiy “or returns from capital apprec’ation and
IMvestment income, and

+ Tmeasures and evaluates performance of substantiary all of s imvestments on a "ar value as s

Sach of 1ne subsiciaries of the Company was estahlisned for the so'e pu-pose of operating or suppor: 1g the vestment
operations of the Company Lincluding ra’sing add tional “inancingl. and s not rself an investmen: entty IFRS 10 sets cut
thatin the case of controlled entties that support the awvestment activity of the investment entity “hose enuities snoud be
consohdatec ratner than presented as nvestments at “air value According v the Company has consalidatec the results
and financ.a, positions ¢f those subs ciarnes

Subsidiares are consoigatec from the date of tThe r acqu sition, heing Te date anwrien the Company obtaing contral, anc
cont nue 1o be consel aatec unt | the date that such contof ceases The “nanc 2 staiements of suksicianes used i the
preparation of e consol dated financial statements a'e based on consistent accounting pocies Al ntra-group balances anc
rENsSactons, INC uCINg unreal sec profits ersing tnerefrom, are enminatec

b) Income

Cvicencs recengheonenu retrezled 3g re.enue 107 the vear o0 anex-d vcenc basis Vinete 1o ex-¢ . gene
date1s =5 ab e dividencs 7 or be‘ore the year enc g7e T"eatec 55 "evenue for tne year Pro. son s made
far cm o v dends not expec celveq YWnere the Group %s electec (o "ecelve these ¢ videncs mi11e formi of
adat ona snares rather 1na amount of casn cov.cenc foregone s “ecogn sed as ncome Ot f"erences bﬂ"" een
'we '8 ue 0° SNETeS TeCEIe0 ENC T8 md v gena foregone are recogEeC N the capita returns of Tne Group Statemen:
of pqmp'ehe s .e ncome. U s o0 asht secur ties are e'ﬁc T SeC on ahime Spport cnment £Es:S S0 53 10
reflect tng e®ectne vedaone S e ok M Cash anc Sho I e m GEPOS 'S 5 alorued 16 18
e of the year Stoc<ienc g ‘ 58 Jndet G COMIM 81671 S T8KeN 10 Te, BnUE
U7 eSS any shates mdew.r‘{tev e S€°ME DTOROT C"9'€ COMM S50 TeLE (60 S

sEdUTISa F1OM A6 £08T 0F TN . eSTMEN:
Re7ogn10n 0f pUOpeT, "enta ITOMme S8t oun nsect ot of s ote

ncome from contrzois for

N
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=
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01

Accounting policies
c) Expenses

Allexpenses and finance costs are accounted *or on an accruals basis. An analysis of etaned earnings broker down into
revenue and capital temsis gveninnote 16 In a"niving a1 this breakdown, expenses have been presented as revenue
tems except as follows

+ Expenses wh.oh are incidenta: to tne acquis ton or disposal of an invesiment;

+ Expenses are presentec as capital where a connection with the mantenance or ennancement of the vaue of the
nvestments can be demonsirated, this includes rrecoverabie VAT incurred on costs relating 1o the extension of
residential leases as premiums received for extending or terminating leases are recogrised in the capital account

- One auarter of the base management fee 1z charged to revenue, with three quarters allocated to capna: return to reflect
the Board's expectations of long term mvestment returns All performance fees are charged 1o capiiai return,

« The fund administration, depositary, custody anc company secretanal services are charged directly to the Company and
are included within 'Other admim.strative expenses’ in note 6 These expenses are charged on the seame bas:s as the base
management feeg; one quarter 1o mncome and three quarters to capital

d) Finance costs

The fnance cost in respect of capital instruments other than equity shares is caculated so as to give a constant rate
af return on the cutstanding balance Gne guarter of the finance cost 1s charged to revenue and three quarters to
capital return

e) Taxation

Current tax assets ana habilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates anc laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Income tax is charged or credited directly to equity if 't reiates to items that are credited or charged 1o equity
Otherwise income tax is ~ecognisea n the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

“ne tax effect of different items of expenditure is allocated between capital and revenue using the Group's effective rate
of tax for the year The charge for taxation 1s based on the profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred
because of temporary differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes.

n accordance with the recommendations of the SORP the allocat.on method usec to calcu'ate tax relief on expenses
presented against capital returns inthe supplementary information in the Statement of Comprenensive Income is the
‘marginal basis" Under this basis, if taxable income 1s capabie of being offset entiely by expenses presentec in the
revenue return column of the S1aterment of Comprehensive Income, then no tax relief is transferred to the capital column.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payab.e or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the Balance Sheet ang tne corresponding tax hases used in the computation of taxable prefit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax habilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognisea 1o the extent that it is probatie that taxabie profits will be availahle
against wh'ch deductible temporary cifferences can be unlised

The Company is an investment trust under s 1158 af the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and, as such, 1s not hiable for tax on
capital gamns. Capital gaing arising in subsidiary companies are subject to capital gains tax

f) Investment property

Investment property s measured initially at cost noluding transaction costs, Transaction costs include transfer taxes,
prafessional fees for legal services and Inrtial leasing commissions to bring the property to the condition necessary for
it to be capatle of operating The carrying amount aiso inc udes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment
property at t1e ime that costis incurred if the “ecogn:tion criteria are met ~he purchase ana sale of properties s
recognised to be effected on the date unconditional contracts are exchangec

Subseguent to inttial ~ecognition, iInvestment property is stated at far vaiue Gains or losses arising ‘rom changes in the
fair values are inc'uded in tne Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise,

Investiment praperty 1s derecagnised when it has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use and no future
ezcnom.c henefit s expected from ts disposal. Any ga.ns of losses on the retirement or disposa! of iInvestment property
are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year of dispozsa

Gains or :osses on tne disposal of investment property a-e determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds
and the cairy.ng value of the asset at the date of disposal

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries ts investment prope-ties a: fa rvalue 'n accordance with FRS 13, revaiuen twice a year, w th changes
i1 fair values being recogrised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income The Group engaged Knight Fran< as
Independent valuation specialists to determine fair varue as at 31 March 2023
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

Q1

Accounting policies

Valuations of investment properties

Determination of the fair value of nvestment properties has been prepared an the bas s defined by the RICS Vauation -
Globai Standards (The Red Boox Global 3tendards) as fo lows

The est:mated amount for whicn & property should excriange on the date of va uation between a willing buyer and a
wiling seterin an g m's ‘engin transaction after proper marketing where nthe partes nad eacnh acted knowledgezab'y,
prudent'y ang witnou: compulsion”

The valuation takes nto account future cash flow from assets (such as et ngs, tenan:s’ profiles, future revenue streams,
capital values of fixiures and fittings, plant and machinery, any environrmental matters ano e overa'l repair and condition
of the property) and aiscount rates applicak.e to those assets These assumptions are basec onlocai marke: condtions
existing a® the balance shee! date

In arriving at tneir estimates of fair vaives as at 31 March 2023, the valuers nave used therr ma-ket knowlecge and
profess onal jJudgerment and have not only re1ed solely on istorica. transact-onal comparab'es Examples of inputs to the
valuation can be seeninine sensitiv ty analysis disclosed innote 10 (e}

Held for sale investment are presented separately on the face of the 3a‘ance Sheer

Held for sale
Investment property olass fed as neld for sae s measured far value

This condition s regarceG as met on y when the iqvestment property 1s avaiatle for mmediate sale 1n 1s present
condition and tne sale 's hwgh'y probab e.

Management must be cemmitied to a plan for sale wth an active programme to 1centify a buyer &t a reasonab.e prce in
relation to 1s fair va'ue which shoula be expected to aualfy for ecognition as a ﬁomp‘eted sale w thin one yvea: from the
date of classification

Rental income

Rentai mcome recevable under operating leases 1s recognisec on a straignht-ine basie over e term of the lease. except
for contingent ~entar .ncome which s recognised wnen il arises

Incentives for lessees to enter into 'ease agreements o” other negotiated rent flee perods agreeg are sprezd evenly over
the easeterm, even if the payments are not made on sucn a bas's. “he ease termas tne non- Paﬂﬁe\\able perniod of the
ease together with any ‘urther term far which the tenant has the option to cont nue tne lease, wnere, &t the nception of
the Iedse‘ the directors a e reasgnably certain that tne tenant wi. exercise that opnion Premiums fecewed totermnate or
extend lezses are recognised in the capital account of the Group Statement o Comprenensive :ncome when they anse

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

Income arsing from expenses recharged 1o tenants s recognised nthe period inwhich the expense can be contractua iy
“ecovered. Service cnarges and oine” such recepts are Noiuded gross of tne related costs inrevenue as the airectors
consider that the Group gcts as principa. In this respect

g) Investments

Yéhen a pu-chase 07 sz e:3 meace under contract the te'ms o which require celivery witnin the tmeframe of the relevant
market, the nvestments concerned are recogn sec o derecognised o1 the traae date

A the Group's nvestments are cef ned unde- I=RS &s westmenls des gnated &s fa © va ue through profitor oss but a7e
a sodezcrbed 1 tnese f iene 3 statements 2s nvesiments helc &t farr value

Al mvestments are cesignateq upot 1t a’ "ecogn ton gs hed at far vaile, anc a'e measurec at subsecusn: reporing dates a1 Ter
satue, wnich, for quotec nvesiments, s ceemead to be ¢ osing prices for stoc<s sourcea om Europeaw stack excnanges anc for
SETS stocks sourced rom ne London Stocx Excnange SETS s the Lonaon Stock Exchange eectronic rading service covenig
most of the marxetinc'udng a’l the 7 SE Al -Share 210 the most | cuc AN COMSTIIUETTS LNSUGTeC M+eSIMEents &7 Nvesiments
torwichthere s oy aninact ve market ave he d &t ‘arvaiue «h ¢1is basec onvaluaiions mace by Tne drectors nazcordance
&t IPEVCA GUICE NeS anc US Ng curen: rnarke: prizes, adng cond.n.ong and the genetz’ economic cumate

Tits fingncia! staternenits the Company “ecogn ses the “a ruslue of 18 iMvestments » subs ciznes as beng the agjusted net asset
«a'ue Thesubs diznes have nistorcally been ho dng vemcles for airect property mvesiment or ingnoing ven cles o assets are
-:u.'-'en‘."_y' hac throughthe subsic ary struzture and 87 Maning nstrumen's are directly nels by the Company

hages ninefarvausaer ecogn sec 0 the Group Statemen: of Comprenensi e ncome On o sposé, realses 92 s
a"c CSSES A€ &30 recognsed Tt .epruup atemen: o° Comprenens e intome
Derivatives
Jervalives zrened 51 fai w2 ue based on traced prces Gains and 10sses ¢ oe 1 QNS are recogn SEC 1N
e Croup 3tatemen: of Comipr ehe“s vg 'ncome Cains and osses on contracts for ¢ CrCsianccia etun
svaps resuting from mo.ements nne price of the under'ying stock are treated a5 ¢2 CCenss from e Uncery iy
neesiment anc f 132G costs 'CFDSG’N‘IFI» retura swaps gre tregted as revenus Laptal expenses

Gz ns andlosses on forward currency contais usea ‘or zap tal hecging pup
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01 Accounting polictes

Derivatives continuecd
CFDs are synthetic equities and are valued by reference to the investments' underlying market values

“he sources of tine returns uncer the derivative contract {e g notional dividends, financing costs, interest returns and
capital changes) are allocated to the revenue and capita accounts in alignment with the nature of the underlying source
of income and i1 accordance with the guidance given in the AiC SORP Notiona. cividend income or expenses ansing on
log or shot pestions a“e apportioned wholly to the revenue account Notiona' interest expense on long posit'ons is
apportoned between revenue and capital n accordance with the Board's long term expectec returns of the Company
{currently determmed to be 25% to the revenue account and 75% to capla: reserves). Changes mivalue re:ating o
uncerlying price movements of securities in relation 10 CFD exposures are allocated whoily 1o capital reserves

uodai ;ubajensg

h) Borrowings, loan notes and debentures

Allloans and debentures are initially recognised at the fa.r value of the consideration receiveq, 'ess issue costs where
apphcable. After nitia' recognition, all interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Amortised cost s caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on settlement The costs of arranging
any -nterest bearing loans are capitalisec and amortised over the I'fe of the loan on an effective interest rate basis.

SIULLIDAOD

i} Foreign currency translation
Transactions involving foreign currencies are converted at the rate ruling at the ¢ate of tnetransact on.

Fareign currency monetary assets and liabiiities are translated into sterling at the rate ruling on the balance sheet date
Fore'gn exchange differences are recognisec in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.,

j) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amorised cost and comprise cash in hand and demand deposits.
k) Dividends payable to shareholders

Interim divigends are recognised :n the period .n which they are paid and final dividends are “ecognised when approved
by shareholders

1) Adoption of new and revised Standards

Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous consolidated financial statements

There were no amendments to International Financia: Reporting Standards or Interpretations that had an effect during the period

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

The standards 1ssued before tne report ng date that become effect ve after 31 March 2023 are not expected to nave
amaterial effect on equity or proft for the subsequent period. “he Group has not early adoptea any new International
Financia« Reporiing Standard or Intergretation Standards, amendments and interpretations 1ssued but not vet effective up
to the cate of issuance of the Group's financiai statements are listed below:

1AS 1 Amenaments - Classif.cation of Uiabilities as Current or Non-Current {effectve date amended to 1 January 2023).

The amendments specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current The amencments are not
expected to nave 2 material impact on the Group's financial statements.

IAS 1 Amendments - Disclosure of Accounting Policies (effective 1 January 2023) The amendments require an entity to
disclose ‘ts mate~al accounting policy information insteac of 1ts significant account'ng pol cies The amendments contain
guidance and examples on identifying material accounting policy informat:on.
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A5 8 Amendments - Definition of Accounting Estimates (effective 1 January 2023) The amendments defne accounting =2

estimates as ‘'monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty” The amendments E

a so clanfy the interaction hetween an accounting policy a1¢ an accounting estmate P

IAS 12 Amendments DSeferred Tax related to Assels and Liabilities ansing from a S'ngle Transaction (effective 1 January

2023) The amendments “equire entities with certain assets to recognige ceferred tax on part.cular transactions that, on

nital recagnition, give nise 10 egual amounts of taxable and decuctble temporary differences

IAS 1 Amendments - Non-curent Liab-ities witn Covenants ieffect ve 1 January 2024) The amendments requ re disclose

of mformaticn wien there s arnght to defer settlement of 2 hability for at ieast twe've months.
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

02

03

04

4

investment income

2023 2022
£'000 £'000

Dividends from UK listed investments 3,084 3101
Dividends from overseas listed investments 30,891 21,349
Scrip dividends from listed investments 6,325 10,693
Property income distnbutions o o 1,777 o - 9627
_ . . - } ,7 52077 44170
Net rental income
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Gross rental income 3,513 2773
Service charge income 946 1.103
Direct property expenses, rent payable and service charge costs B (1660 (1.435)
2,799 ) ) 2,441

Operating leases

The Group has enterec nio commercia leases on 1s property portfolic Commercial property .eases typically nave -ease
terrns between 5 and 15 vears and ncluge clauses to enable periodic upwara revision of the rental chaerge aczording to
preva ing marke: condmons Some leases contan options 1o bregk tefore the end of the lease term

Future m:imum renia's uncer non-cancel.ab e operaiing leases as at 31 Marcn are as follows:

2023 2022
£'000 £000

Within 1 year 2,900 2,800
After 1 year but not more than 5 years 9,900 10,250
More than 5 years . _ a5 17,500
_ 26,950 . 30550

Other operating income
2023 2022
£000 £'000
Interest receivabie 255 -
Interest on refund of overseas withholding tax - 5
Incorre receved to capital - L _o1z -
267 5

TR Property Inestment Trast



05 Management and performance fees

2023 2023 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue
£000 £000 £000

Management fee 1,560 4,680 6,240 1,663
Performance fee ) ] - - - - -
1,560 4,680 6,240 1663

2022
Capital
£'000
4988
24 489
29477

A summary of the terms of the management agreement is given in the Report of the Directors on page 47,

Under the terms of this agreement the manager 15 not entitled to a performance fee for the year to 31 March 2023.

06 Other administrative expenses

2023
£000

Diractors’ fees (Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 63 to 65} 228
Auditer's remuneration’
- for audit of the consolidated and parent company financial

statements 97
Legal fees 1
Taxation fees 90
Other administrative expenses 187
Other expenses 532
irrecoverahle VAT L e 28
Expenses charged to Revenue 1,163
Expenses charged to Capital o L B _ 542
1,705

2022
Total
£000
6651
24,489
31,140

2022
£'000

220

Other administraiive expenses include depositary, custocy and company secretariai services. These expenses are
charged on the same basis as the base management fee, 25% 1o ncome and 75% to capita . Total other administrative

expenses charged ta both income and capital are £721.000 12022: £807,000

Other expenses include broker fees, marketing and PR costs, Directors’ National insurance and recruitment, Registrars
ana listing fees, and annual ~eport and otmer publication printing and aistribution costs These expenses are charged

soiely 1o the revenue accoun:
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

07 Finance costs

08

o
(a2

2023
£'000

Loan notes, bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year

Logn notes repavabie between 2 - S years

Amount allocated to Capital

Amount aliocated to Revenue

Taxation
a) Analysis of charge in the year

Revenue

UK corporation tax at 19%
(2022:19%)

Overseas taxation

QOver provision in respect of prior
years

Deferred taxation

Current tax charge for the vear

2023

£'000

4,221
2,148
6,369

(282)
6,087

6,087

2023
Capital
£000

(3,521)

1,026
(2,495)

(2,495)

(2,495)

700
3,174
3,874

(282)
3,592

3,592

3,189
837
558
4,584
(3.438)
1,146

2022
Revenue
£000

2,632
2,135
4967

2022
Capital
£'000

(2.832)

(2.832)

(2.832)
(217)
(2,045}

2022
£'000
1162

814
539
2,515

(1.886)

629

2022
Total
£'000

2,135
2135

2,135
(217)
1918

TP Broperty Investmeant Trust



08 Taxation

b) Factors affecting total tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year is lower (2022 lower) than the stancarc rate of corporaucn tax in the JK fora large
company of 19% (2022 194},

The di*ference 1s explained helow

2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue . Capital Revenue Capital Total
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £°000

Met profit/(loss) on ardinary

activities before taxation 60,724  (604,398)  (543,674) 48404 235201 283605
Corporation tax charge at 19%
(2022:19%} 11,538 (114,836) (103,298) 9,197 44,688 53,885
Effects of
Non taxable losses/(gains) on
investments - 104,392 104,392 - (47,317) (47,317)
Currency movements not taxable - 145 145 - (337) {337
Tax relief on expenses charged to
capital - (1,878) (1,878) - 3,243 3,243
Non-taxable returns - 8,656 8,656 - (3,109) (3,109}
Non-taxable UK dividends (586) - (586) {603) - {603)
Nan-taxable gverseas dividends (6,791) - (6,791) (5810} - (5.810)
Overseas withholding taxes 2,148 1,026 3,174 2135 - 2,135
Deferred tax movement - - - - (217) (217)
Over provision in respect of prior
years (282) - (282)
Disallowable expenses 131 - 131 26 - 26
Deferred tax not provided {71) - (71) 22 - ) 22
6,087  (2495) 3592 4967 (3,049) 1918
¢) Provision for deferred taxation
The amcun:s for defer-ed taxation provided at 25% (2022, 25%) compnse;
Group
2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Unutilised losses carried forward 7 - (903) (903) - o (903 (803)
Shown as.
Deferred tax asset S - (903) (903) - {803) - (803)
Company 2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Tatal
£000 £000 £000 £°000 £000
Unutiised losses carried forward _ - (903)  (903) - (303) {903)
Shown as
Deferred tax asset - (903) (903) - (S03) {503}
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

08

09

Taxation

c) Provision for deferred taxation continued

The movement in provision in the year is as follows:

Group 2023
Revenue

£'000

Provision at the start of the year -
Unutilised losses carried forward -

Provision at the end of the year -

Company
2023

Revenue

£'000

Provision at the start of the year -
Unutilised losses carried forward -

Provision at the end of the year -

2023
Capital
£000

Capital
£'000

(903)

(903)

2022

Revenue

£'000

(903) -
(903)

2022

Revenue

£000

(903) -
(903)

2022 2022
Capital Total
£000 £'000
(686} (686)
(217) (21
{903} {903)
2022 2022
Capitai Total
£000 £'000
(686) (686)
(217) (217)
{903} (903)

The Group has not recogmised deferrec tax asseis of £5,601,017 (2022 £8,0C7 7691 ansing as a resul of .osses carried
forwerd Itis considered too uncertain that the Group wll generate profits in *ne relevant comgpan ¢s that tne 'osses would be
avaaable 1o offset aganst a1c, on th.s basis, the defered tax asset in respect of ese expenses nas not heen recognised

Cue to the Company's siatus as an imvesiment trust company and the intention to continue mee*ing the conditions
requ.rec o obtain appreva: for the foreseeab e future, the Company has not prov ded deferred tax on any capial gans

arg ng o1 the revaluat on or disposal of investments.

Earnings/{loss) per Ordinary share
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share

The earntngs per Ordinary share can be analysed between revenue and capital, as below.

Net revenue profit
Net capital profit
Net total profit o — —

Weighted average number of shares in 1ssue during the year

Revenue earnings per share
Capital earnings per share

Earnings per share

Year ended
31 March 2023

£000

54,637
(601,903)

 (547,266)

317,350,980

17.22
(189.67)
(172.45)

Year ended

31 March 2022
£000

43437
238.250
281,687

317 350,980

pence

13.69
75.07
8876

The Group has na securities in issue that could dilute the returr per share. Therefore the basic and duuted return per share

are the same
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10 Investments held at fair value

a) Analysis of investments

Listed in the United Kingdom
Uniisted in the United Kingdom
Listed Overseas

Investment properties
Investments held for sale
Investments held at fair value

Investments in subsidiaries
at farr value

383,303
2,573
488,839
73,957

648,672

948,672

Company
2023

£'000
383,303
2,573
488,839
73,957

948,672

984,964

. 36292

Group
2022
£'000
516,076
2,347
940,744
A7275

48,980

1,555,416

1555416

Company
2022
£'000
516,078
2,341
940,744
47 275
48,980
1,555,416

36,297
1,691,713

Investments held for sale: mixed use property, the Colonnades, London, W2, was under offer at 21 March 2022 with a
sale expected to complete by the end of June 2022 Ultimately, the residential element of the Cclonnades was sold and a
decision was made to retain the commercial element for the foreseeable future. There are no investments held for sale as

at 31 March 2023.

b) Business segment reporting

Listed investrments
Unlisted investments
Contracts for difference
Total investments segment

Direct property segment

Valuation
31 March
2022
£'000
1.456,820
2,341
1657
1466818

o 96255
1,563,073

Net

(disposals) (depreci
£'000

(52,591) '

42,567
(10,030)
(4,723)
(14,753)

Net
additions/ appreciation/

(632.087

ation)
£'000

)

232

(45,556
(577.411
(17,575

(594,986

)
)
)
)

Gross

Valuation revenue
31 March 31 March
2023 2023
£000 £'000
B72,142 51,450
2,573 627
4662 9,462
879,377 61,539
73,957 4,459
953,334 65,998

Gross
revenue
31 March

365
5701
45,871
3876
53747

In seeking to achieve 1ts investment ob:ective, the Company invests in the shares and securities of property companies

and property re.atec businesses internationally and also in investment property locatec intne UK. The Company

tnerefore considers that there are two distinct reparting segments, investments anc direct property, which are used

far evaluating performance and allocat on of ~esources The Board, which is the principal decision maker, rece'ves
information on the two segments on a requiar basis. Whilst revenue streams and direct property costs can be attnibuted
10 the reporting segments, general administrative expenses cannot be spht to allow a profit for each segment to be
determined The assets anc gross revenues for each segment are shown above

The property costs ncluded within note 2 are £1,660,000 (20227 £1,435,00C) and deductng these costs from the direct

ate Bl

property gross revenue above woulc resu tin net income of £2.799,000{2022. £2,441,000) for the d rect propetty

reporting segmens
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

10 Investments held at fair value

c) Geographical segment reporting

UK listed equities and convertibles

UK unlisted equities
UK direct property!
Continental European listed equities

UK contracts for difference?

Valuation
31 March
2022
£000
516,076
2,341
96,255
940,744
1,555,416
1,627
6030
1,563,073

Net Net
additions/ appreciation/
(disposals} (depreciation)

£'000 £'000

46391 (179,164

232

(4,723) (17,575
(98982)  (352.923)

(57314) (549430}
31,268 (33.831)

11,293 (11725)

(14,753) (594,986)

Valuation
31 March

2023
£'000

383,303
2,573
73,957

488,839

948,672
(936)
5,598

953,334

Gross Gross
revenue revenue
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£000 £000
15,941 11731
395 395
4,459 3876
35741 32,044
56,536 48,046
3,425 1,676
6,037 4085
65,998 53,747

Inclugea nthe above figures are purchase costs of £881.000(2022, £48% 000! and sales costs of £238,00C (2022

£259,000

These comprise mainly stamp cuty and commission.

Tne Company recelved £512,155,000 (2022 £544,092.000) from investimenis, incluaing direct property, sola in the
year The book cost of these investiments when they were purchaseg was £412,270,00012022 £356438,000) These
nvestmenis have been revalued over w.me anc unul they were solg any unrealised gans’losses wee ‘ncluded niie ‘an

va-ue of the vestments

! Net additions/idisposais) inc.udes £48C.000 (2022 £366.000) of cap tsl expendrure Net appreciation/(depreciaton)
ncludes amounts ‘n respect of rent free perods

¢ Grossrevenue for contracis fo- d fference relates o d vicends rece vab €, on an ex ¢ videnc basis, on the underlying
pos tons hed Tme apprec ations(deprecat’on) in CrDs relates to tne movement In fa.- value in the year

d) Substantial share interests

" he Group he'c nterests N 3% or mo e o a1y ciass of captas 16 companies (202

None of these investmenis is canaidered signficant in the contex: of these financ

ang 104 “o- Turther getalls of subsic.ary v

/estments.,

e) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

Fnancial assets and inancial rabilities a-e car- e in tne Bz anze Sheet & the a7 than fair vl
halznice sheet amount s a reasonzbie approx.mation of “a rvaiue ‘due from brokers, d v des

Cue o broxers, scctus s anc cash at banx;
Fair value hierarchy disclosures

Czregonss

vA'UP measiremen ¢f tne relesant assel as fo ows

Leve 1-valueQ usng cuolec pr ces 1 &n act
evel 2 - auec by reference to valuat on tectn cues us g aheeruzble nputs oiher ther cucten

_eve 3 -z ued by referente 1o va uat on tesnin QuUes Us ¢ npuis et 7€ not basec onabser

v&ma ket for dent cal assets

N VBUET 0N TeChn Cues used By e GroUR 378 €xP1E NEC N TNE S0LoUTT 0D Ces N

2.8
EIER

*  Thedgepreciation nthe TRS re.ates to the movement in fair value in the year unti matur iy

107 watTIn Tne mergteny Nas been cetermones onthe bas 5 0f e owest ece npuiinat ssign frantotne s

ue
ds gnc terest e

sompanies) in wnich it .nves's
latements See note 21 onpages 103

dnvestmenis: or the
cevab e

43
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10 Investments held at fair value

e) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities continued
Tne tabie below sets out fair value measurements using IFRS 12 fair value hiemachy

o
Financial assets/{liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss g
2
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 3
At 31 March 2023 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 2
Equity investrments 861,611 10,531 2,573 874,715
Investment properties - - 73,957 73,957
Contracts for difference - 4,662 - 4,662
Foreign exchange forward contracts - ) {38e) - (386)
. 8els1 14807 . ._76530 952,948 g
3
Level 1 tevel 2 Level 3 Total
At 371 March 2022 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Equity mvestments 1,456,820 - 2,341 1459161
Investment properties - - 96,255 86,255
Contracts for difference - 7,657 - 7.657
Foreign exchange forward contracts - 2736 o - 2,736 3
1456820 10,393 98596 1565809 g
The 1able above represents the Group's fair value herarchy The Company's fair va\ue hier archy s identical excep‘[ forthe
inclusion of the fair value of the investment in subsidiaries which at 31 March 2023 was £36,292 000 {2022 £36,297,000) 3
These have been categorised as leve. 3 in both years. The movement in the year of £5,000(2022: £7,015,00) s E
[}

the change in fair vaiue in the year The total financial assets at fair value for the Company at 31 March 2023 was
£984,964,000 (2022: £1,591,713.00C;.

Reconciliation of movements in financial assets categorised as level 3

o
31 March Appreciation / 31 March E
2022 Purchases Sales (Depreciation}) 2023 5
At 31 March 2023 £000 £000 £000 £000 £°000 a
o o - o by
Uniisted equity investments 234 - - 232 2573 z
Investment properties ;
- Mixed use 487187 287 (5.203) (6,746) 36,625 5
=
- Office & Industrial 7 48,068 93 - (10,829) 37,332 e
96,255 480 {5,203) {17.575) 73,957 =
_ OV 3397 Z
) 98,596 480 {5,203} (17343} 76,530 3
=]
All appreciation/idepreciation) as stated above relates to movemenits in fair value of unl sted ecurty investments anc b3
Mvestment properiies held at 37 March 2023 Z
Tne Group helc one unquoted Investment at the year end {see 17 € overleaf)
Transfers between hierarchy levels
There were no transfers dusmg the vear between any of the levels
wr
g
[:-]
g
&
s
g
3
8
5
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

10 Investments held at fair value

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations

The sgnificant unobservakle nputs used n tne fair vaiue measurement categonsed within Leve, 3 of the “air value
n-ergrchy of investment propel.es are.

sEstmatec rents va'ue £7.5- £65 per sq 1 (2022 £6 5- £65;

* Capualisation rates 3 8w - 6.0%: (2022° 2 0% - 6 0%

Significant increases (decreasesiin estmated rental va ue ana rent grow?h in isolation wou.c result in a significanty

higner (\ower) “air value measurement. A significant increase idecrease) inlong-termvacancy rate . 1solation waud
resut in a s-gnificant'y lower (higher] fair value measurement

Tnere are inter-elatnonships between the y.elds anc rental values as they are part.aly ceterminea by market rate
condition The sensitivity of the valuation to changes 'n the most s.onificatt mputs per ¢lass of investmen property are
shown below

Estimated movement in fair value of

investment properties at 31 March Retail Industrial

2023 arising from £'000 £000

increase inrental value 5.0% 289 1,712 - 2,001
Decrease in rental vaiue 5.0% (289) (1,712) - N (2,001)
Increase in Yield §.5% (3,538) (3,466) - {7.004)
Decrease In Yield 0.5% - 4,343 4,261 _ - 8,604
Estimated movement in fair value of Office &

investment properties at 31 March Retail Industriai Other Total
2022 arising from €000 £000 £000 £'000
Increase inrental value by 5% 306 2.266 145 2,717
Decrease in rental value by 5% ) (294) _ (2208) m (2,567)
Increase in yield by 0 5% {3,865) (6,343) (832) (11,040)
Decrease inyield by 0.5% ) 4841 8711 ) 1167 14,653

No impEairment 'osses have been reccgn.sed a5 21 31 March 2523

11 Financial instruments

Risk management policies and procedures
The Group mvesis in ecutes and CTNer MSTUMments ToF IMe1ong Term it the pursutt o the nvestment Object ve set ous
0 page 33 The Group s exposec (o a variety 0f nisks that couc resu’t 1 etier a reducton or an merease in e profits
ava .able Tor d stnbution by way of dwdends

e princ.pal rsks the Group faces 1 .1s port*clic managemen: ao7 Jites are
Ma kel MISK (COmpEr S S prCe T 8K CUITENcy T S< Ena Interest rgte - 5!
CoUe Ty sk

» Crecitrse

The tManzger3 ool es 2T LroCessEs O MENag G TTRSE T SKE 576 SUMIMaE’ s6d 01 pECes 3 0 40 a1d na.e been zpplec

Malgeliivlaleii G

22 TR Property Investmnent Trus!



11

Financial instruments

11.1 Market price rigsk
By the very nature of itg activ ties, the Group's Investments are exposed to market price fluctuzations.

Management of the risk
The Manager runs & diversified portfoiio and reports to the Board an the portfolio activity anc performance a® each Board
meeting The Board manitors the investment activity and strategy to ensure it 15 compat’ b e with the stated objectives

e

The Group s exposue to cnanges = marxet prices on its quoted ecuity investments, CFDs and investment proper ty

partfolio, was as follows,
2023 2022
£'000 £000

Investments held at far value 948,672 1,555,416
CFD long gross exposure B 130,906 7 144,642

Concentration of exposure to price risks

As set out in the Investment Policies on page 34, there are gu'delines to the amaount of exposure to & single company,
ceographica region or direct property. These guidelines ensure an appropriate spread of exposure to inaividual or sector
price isks. As aninvestment company dedicated to investment in the property sector, the Group 18 exposea 1o price
movements across the property asset class as a whole

Price risk sensitivity

The following table lustrates the sensitvity of the profit after taxat on for the year and tne value of sharenolders’ funcs to
anncrease or cecrease of 15% inthe fair values of the Group's equily, f.xed interest, CFD and direct property investments,
The level of change 1s consistent witn the illustration shown in the previous vear. The sens tvity 18 based on the Group's
equity, fixed interest, CFD and direct property exposure at each balance sheet date, with all other variables hela constant

2023 2023 2022 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

in fair value in fair value in fair value in fair value
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Statement of Comprehensive
Income - profit after tax

Revenue return (71) 71 {115) 115
Capital return B - 7 142,826 - (142,826) 234176 _{234.176)
Change to the profit after tax for the

year/shareholders’funds 142755 (142,755) 234061 {234,067
Change 1o total earnings per Crdinary
Share _  44.98p (44.98)p - 7375p {73.75)p

11.2 Currency risk

A propertion of the Group's portfolio is invested in overseas securities and their sterling value can be signif cantly aftected
by movements ' foreign excnange rates

Management of the risk

Te Beard receves a report at each Board meeting on the proportion of the investment portfono held in sterling,
Euros or other curencies Tne Group may sometirmes hedge foreign currency mavements ocutside the Surozone by
funding investments in overseas securities with unsecured loans denomenated in the same currency o tarough
forward cur-ency comracts

Geash deposits are he d n sterling and-or Eurc denominated accounts
g
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

11 Financial instruments

Foreign currency exposure

At the reporting date the Group had the following exposure.
{sterling has been shown for reference)

Currency 2023 2022

Sterling 34.0% 34.0%
Euro 42.0% 42.0%
Swedish Krona 14.0% 16.0%
Other 10.0% 8.0%

The foi'owing table se:s cut the Group’s total exposure 1o fareign currency nisk and the net exposure to foreign currencies
of the nel monetary assets and | ablites

Swedish
Sterling Krona

2023 £'000 £'000

Receivables {due from brokers,

dividends and other mcome receivable) 10,534 51,105 2,811 837
Cash at bank and on deposit 8,226 20,620 4,299 2,926
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts (10,000) - - -
Payables {due t¢ brokers, accruals and
other creditors) (10,573} (1,221) (1,474) -
Fx forwards _  (118,592) _ 52,283 39,628 26,295
Total foreign currency exposure on net
monetary items (120,405} 122,787 45,264 30,058
investments held at faw value 459,832 330,586 88,592 69,662
Non-current assets 903 - - -
Non-current liabilities - (15.000) (43,933) - - -
Total currency exposure - 325,330 409,440 133,856 99,720
Swedish

Sterling Euro Krona Other
2022 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Recelvables {que frombrokers, o o o - o
aividends and other income receivabie} 53912 27,758 12,659 608
Cash at bank and on deposit 20,341 3,247 2,883 5,638
Bank loans loan notes and overdrafts (35,000) - - -
Payables {due to brokers, accruals and
other creditors) (25,642} {111 (1.634) (3722)
FX forwards N (88,280 {10,596) 58877 42135
Total foretgn currency exposure on net
monetary items (74,669) 16,898 73,785 44 659
Investrments held at fair value 674672 680,755 181455 78,534
Non-cutrent assets elelc -
Non-currert habiities (15.000) {42 253) - -
Total currercy exposure 5255C6 658,400 255240 123,793

Foreign currency sensitivity
Tnefonomngiable ustates ;e sens Ty ly o tne profafes rax for e

exchange "ates ‘or sterh

L
I
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11 Financiai ingtruments

Foreign currency sensitivity continued
If sterling had strengthened against the currencies shown, this wou.d nave had the foliow.ing effect.

Year ended March 2023 Year ended March 2022
Swedish Swedish

Euro Krona Eurc Krona Other
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000

Statement of Comprehensive
income — profit atter tax

Revenue return (4,080) (354) (370) (3,215} (399) (252)
Capital return - (53,496) @ (17,442) (12,993) {72,110} (33,256) {16,053)

Change to the profit after 1ax for
the year/shareholders’ funds (57.576)

(17,796) (13,363) (75,325) (33,655) (16,205)

2023 2022

Change to total earnings per share o (27.96)p (3948

If ster'ing had weakened against the currencies shown, this wouls have the following effect

Year ended March 2023 Year ended March 2022
Swedish Swedish

Euro Krona Euro Krona Other
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Statement of Comprehensive
Incorme — profit after tax

Revenue return 5,392 446 475 4419 475 314

C&}pitarl return 72,392 2}_,60_@ _ ___17,_!_"_:86__ ~ T3_6‘656 45017 4771

Change to the profit after tax for

the year/shareholders’ funds 77,784 24,054 18,061 141,075 45492 5085
2023 2022

Change to total earnings per share o 37.78p o 60.39p

11.3 Interest rate risk
Interest rate movementis may affect:

+the fair value of any nvestments in fixed interest securities;

- the “air value of he loan notes,

- the ievel of income mecewvahie from cash at bank and on deposit;
- the level of Interest expense on any vanable rate bank loans; and
+ the prices of the under'ving securities heid in the po-tfolios.

Management of the risk

The posgsib'e effects an fair value and cash flows that could arse as & esu't of changes ininterest rates are taken into
account when making investment cecis .ons Property companies usually have borrowings themselves and the level of
gearing and structure of its debt portfolio 1s a <ey factor when assessing the invesiment .n a property company

The Group has fixed and has had variable rate borrowings during tne year. The interest rates on the oan noles is f xec,
detalls are set cut 'nncte 13 In gadition to the loan notes the Group has unsecured, mu'ti-currency revalving loan
‘acilties which carry variable 1ates of “iterest based on the currencies grawn, plus a margin The unusec facuities total
£120000,00C (2022 £95,000,000)
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

11 Financial instruments

Management of the risk continued

Tne Manager considers both te level of debt on tne baiance sheet of the Graup 11 e the loan notes ana any bank loans
drawnland the see-through gearing, lgking into account the assets and 1akb hizies of tne underlying invesiments, when
considering tne investment portfolic These gearnng levels are “eportad reguiarly 1o tne Boarg

The majonty of the Group's imvestment portfo'io 1s non- nierest bearng As aresu'l the Group's financial assets &re no:
airectly subject to s.gnificant amounis of ns< aue o fluctuztions in the prevalling levels of market interest rates

interest rate exposure

The exposure at 31 March of Tinancial assets anc fnancia, labibites 1o interest rate nsk 18 shown by re‘erence to

- floating ‘nterestraies when the \nterest rate1s due to be re-set

- fxeq interest rates. when the financial Instrumentis due to be repaia.

The Group's exposure 1o floating interest rates on assets ‘s £81,170,000:2022 £77 242 000;

The Group's exposure to fixed interest rates o1 habihties 1s £58,633.000 (2022 £57,253,000}

The Group's exposure 1o floating interest -ates an labilives 1s £10,000,002 2022 £25,000 000

Interest rece.vabie and finance cos's are at the fo. cwing rates

* 'nierestrece ved on cash balances, or pa d on bank overcrafis, ‘s at a margin aver SONIA or ns foreign currency
equivaient {2022 same)

- interest paid on borrow.ngs under the muit-currency loan faciities, s atamargn aver SONiA o 1ts foreign currenay
equivalent for the type of loan (Z027Z. same]

+ The inance charges on the (50rm anc £15mcan notes are gt interest rates o° 1 92% and 3 59°: respectively

The year end amounts are not representative of the exposure 1o nterest rates aur-g ine year as tne evel of exposure

changes as nvestments are maae i fixed interest secunies, Dorowings are drawn down anc repaid, and tne mix of

borrowings between floating ano fixed nterest rates changes.

interest rate sensitivity
A change of 2% an mnteresi rates at the reporting date would nave had the fo .owing direct impact

2023 2022 2022

2% 2% 2%

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

£'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Change to shareholders’ funds (198) 198 {243) 243
Change 10 total earnings

per share - (0.06)p ~ 0.06p (0o8)p 0.08p

Tasleve of change snot representative of the year as a who e, s qce the exposure £1aQes 11 ougnoul the yea-

Thrs zssessment coes N0t Teke Mo account the .mpact of Interest rate chiznges on The marke: va ue 07 the nwestments
the Group helds

11.4 Liquidity risk
-ncuotec investments .1 the portfol o g7e subect to quicty fis< “he Group nNeid one unauotes Tvestment 27 the y2a
engisee 11 6 heoy

23,02~ 12027 G hof tne Group s vestmen: po-tioro shed - ostec secunives eoachare precomran y

¢ NGH08TS STC Y S anTendes 3 ed orrep acec byt rene na 220000 he
grerepaveb e 1 Februg-y 2026
gofcash outiors csetre me Group s cutrensaab f 8S 100878 v 1Y aRTSGETET MRSt C0IE
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11 Financial instruments

Debt and Financing maturity profile

Within Within Within Within More than
1-2years 2-3 years 3-4years 4-Syears Syears
At 31 March 2023 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Bank loans* 10,000 - - - - - 10,600
Loan notes - - 43,933 - - 15,000 58,833
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and lcan notes 1,382 1,382 1,241 539 539 1,505 6,668
Securities and properties
purchased for future settlement 8,536 - - - - - 8,536
Accruals and deferred income 2,953 - - - - - 2,953
Other creditors ) 141 - - - i - - 14
23,012 1,382 45174 539 539 16,585 87,231
Within Within Within Within Within  More than
1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year 3-4 year 4-5 year 5 year Total
At 31 March 2022 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Bank loans 35,000 - - - - - 35,000
Loan notes - - - 472 253 - 15,000 57,253
Projected interest cash flows on
hank and loan notes 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,241 539 2124 7954
Securities and properties
purchased for future settlerment 5,364 - - - - - 5364
Accruals and deferred income 25,523 - - - - - 25,523
Other creditors 222 i o - - - - 222
67,459 1,350 1,350 43494 539 177124 131318

v forone yea il ebriany 2022 £10m 12022 £25mewas dravnonthis fachty et e bz ence phect date

20ez .

~enewed InJu'y 2022 £ drawnoan tes fac ity 2Une Ba ance nert date

sMNesenber 2022 SnhiZ0Z22 £noowas draw ontns fac ity et tae brance sheet dote

Management of the risk
The Manager sets guidelines for the maximum exposure of the portfolic 1o unquotea and direct property investments These are set

out ‘nthe lnvestment Policies on page 34. All unquoted investments with a value over £1m and direct property investments with &
value gver £5 million must be approved by the Board for purchase

The Company maintains regular contact with the banks provicing revosang facilities and renewal giscussions commence
well ahead of facility renewal dates In additicn new opportunities for the provision of debt are expiored on an ongoing
basis,

11.5 Credit risk

The failure of & counterparty to a transaction to discnarge its obligations under that transaction could result in the Group suffering
aloss. At the pedod end the largest counterparty risk, which the Group was exposed to was within Cetstors anc Cash and cash
equivalents where the 1078 bank balances held with o1e counterparty was £56,326 000 (2022 £55,101,000)

Management of the risk

nvestment t-ansactions are carmed out with a number of brokers, wnose credit standing 1s "eviewed peniod cal v by the
Manager, ane limets are set on the amounst that may be due from any ane broker Cash at banx is only held w th banks witn
mgh qua ty externa' credit ratings
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

11
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Financial instruments -

Credit risk exposure
In summary, compared to 1ne amounts 'n the Balance Sneet, the maximum exposure "o cred t sk a1 31 March was as follows

2023 2023 2022 2022

Balance Maximum Balance Maximum

Sheet exposure Sheet exposure

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Debtors 65,287 65,287 87673 97673
Cash and cash equivalents 3,071 36,071 ) 32,109 32,109
101,358 101,358 129,782 129,782

Where the -eceivabies of the Group are exposed to credi risk, the regquirement far impairment 1s assessec at each vear
end For all rece'vabes, 1 the table abeove, no mpairment has been recognised in relation (o expecied crecit Iosses 28 the
mpac:t of these 'osses (s mmaterial ag at 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022 no impa.rment).

Offsetting disclosures

In order to gefine .1s contractual nighis better and to secure rghts 1nat vail he'p the Group mitigate its counterparty risk,
the Group may enter into an ISCA Master Agreement or similar ag-eement with 12 OTC dervative contract counterparties
An 12DA Master Agreement s an agreement between the Group and the counterparty tha: governs OTC denvatives a1a
fore'gn exchange contracts and typ cally containg, among other things, colatera: posing terms and netting provisions

in the event of a default andsor termination event. wnder an ISDA Master Agreement, the Group has a contractual r gnt

to offset with the counterparty certain derivatve financial mstruiments payables and o ecevables with collaters

held and/or posted ana create one single net payment .n the event of default includ ng the bankruptcy or nsclvency

of the counterparty ~owever, bankrupicy orinsclvency laws of a particwar jurisciction may impose restrict.ons on or
pronibr ons against tne 1 gnt of offset in bank-uptey, nsolvency or other events

The disclosures set cutinthe fo loving tzbles incluge financial assets anc financiz nat ities that a7e sub ect 1o a0
enforceabe master nett'ng arrangement or similar agreement,

AL 31 WMaren 2023 and 2022, the Group's cervatve assets anda labilities by wype and counterpartyi were as follows

Year ended 2023 Year ended 2022

Net amounts MNet amounts
of financial of financial
assets/ assets/
(liabilities) liabilities
presented in presented in '
the Balance Cash collateral the Balance Cash collateral
Sheet pledged Sheet pledged
£000 £000 £'000 £000

CFD positions’

Goldman Sachs _ . 4,662 65,117 7657 45,133
_ 4,662 65,117 7,657 45133 '
Fx forward contracts
HSBC _ (386) - 2736
(386) - 2736

“F Property trvesirert Trust



11 Financial instruments .

11.6 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Excep: for the loan notes which are measured at amortised cost (refer 1o Note 13), the fair values of the financ-al assets
and financia liabilities are either carmec in the ba.ance shee! at thew fair value {investments) or the balance sheet
amount 1s a reasonable approximat.on of fair value (debtors, creditors, cash gt bank and bank overdrafts, accrua s and
prepayments;

The fair va.ues of tne listed . avestments are cerveg from the closing price or last traded price at which the secunties are
cuoted on the Londen Stock txchange and other recognised exchanges

The fair vaiue of contracts for difference are based on the underlying listed investment value as set out above and the
amount due fram or to the counterparty under the contract is recorded as an asset o7 habiity acco cingly, which s
cisciosed n Nete 13 for the current year

The fair values of the properties are derived from an open market {Red Book) vaiuation of t1e propertes on the Balance
Sheet date by an ndependent firm of valuers (Knight Frank)

There was one unquoted investment at the Balance Sheet date, Atrato, with a total value of £2,573,000 {2022 Atrato,
£2,341,000)

In the Parent Company azcoun’s there are investments of £36,336,000 (2022 £36,207,000} in unlisted subsiciaries which
are classifieq as revel 3.

The amounts of change 'n fair value for investments including net returns on CFDs recognised in *he consohoated profit
orioss for the year was a loss of £594,286,000 (2022: £265,399,000 gain).

11.7 Capital management policies and procedures

The Group's capital management objectives are

+ g ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern; and

- to maximise the total return to 1ts equity snarenolders through an appropriate balance of equity capital and debt

The equity capital of the Group at 31 March 2023 consisted of calleg up share capital, share premium, capital redemption
and revenue reserves totalling £968,346,000 (2022: £1,562,739,00C) The Croup does not regaro the loan notes anc loans
as permanent capital.

The loan notes agreement requires comphance with a set of financ'al covenants, including

+ Total Borrowings shall not exceed 337 of Adjusted Net Asset Value;

+ *he Adjusted ~otal Assets snall at all imes be eguivalent to a mimmum of 300% of Total Borrowings; and
+ he Adjusted NAV shall not be less than £260,000,000

12 Debtors

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022
£'000 £'000 £'000

Armounts falling due within one year:
Securities and properties sold for

future settlement 2,739 2,739 33,138 33,138

Foreign exchange forward contracts

for settlernent - - 2736 2,736

Tax recoverable 3,857 3,857 3,344 2,878

Prepayments and accrued income? 6,146 6,146 5168 5,168

Amounts receivable in respect of

Contracts for Difference 5,598 5,598 7,657 7657

CFD margin cash 45,099 45,099 45133 457133

Other debtors 1,848 1,854 A97 497
65,287 65,293 87673 97,208

Non-current assets
Deferred taxation asset 903 903 903 903

'oncfudes arrounts mrespect of rent free periads
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

13 Current and non-current liahilities

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022
£000 £000 £000

Amounts fzlling due within one year:

Bank loans and overdrafts 10,000 10,000 35,000 35,000

Securities and properties purchased

for future settlement 8,536 8,536 5364 5364

Amounts due to subsidiaries - 36,336 - 35,869

Amounts payable m respect of

Contracts for Difference 936 936 - -

Tax payable 702 700 - -

Accruals and deferred income 2,953 2,925 25523 25523

Foreign exchange forward contracts

for settlement 386 386 - -

Other creditors 141 131 222 183
23,654 59,950 66109 101,829

Non-current liabilities:

1.92% Euro Loan Notes 2026 43,933 43,933 42,253 42253
3 59% GBP Loan Notes 2031 15,000 15,000 15006 15,000

) 58,933 58,933 57,253 57,253
Loan Notes

On the 180tn February 2076, the Compzy 1ssued 1.92=, Unsecured Euro S0 000000 _oan Notes ana 3 59% _nsecured
GBP 15,002,000 Loan Notes which are due =0 be redeemed at par o1 11e 10:h February 2026 and 1011 February 2031
respectivey

The fair vaue ofthe 1 927% Euro Loan Notes was £43,870 000 (2022 £42.340.000; and the 2 5% GBP Laan Notes was
£14338.000 (2022 £14.879,055 at 31 Marcn 2023

Jsng the 'FRS 13 %2 rvalue nierarchy the _oan Notes are deemed to be categanised witn 1 Level 2

The oan notes agreement requl’es Zofmip: ance w th a set o' “ nancia: covenants, .nclud 1g

«Totz Borrow ngs shall not exceea 33:. of Acjustec et Asset Vs ue,

- the Adjusted Total Assets snal at all t mes be egu va ent to a minmum o 3035 o “otal Bor-ow 1gs, and
< the Adrusted NAV shall not be less than £265.000,000

e Company @nc GrOoUp COmp 80w 1N the Terms o the oan noles agreement 1NrougniouT Te year

Multi-currency revolving loan facilities
Grodp & 5C Nad UNSeCUTES, MUT-CUrenty. revd .« Mg SI07-em 081 ‘a0 -1

o Ay e
gl I3 -~

it A o PO R o e P S
JOGCOCS at 31 Maen 2023 ALEN Maren 2023 £10 000 00T as grav a on tnese Tao

Themztut v of trese faC Tes s3ngan nnctes 11 2ang 11 4
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13 Current and non-current tiabilities

Reconciliation of liahilities arising from financing activities

Long term Short term
debt debt

Group and Company £'000 £000
Cpening liabiities from financing activities at 37 March 2022 57,253 35,000 92,253
Cash flows:
Repavment of bank loans - (25,000} (25,000}
Non cash-flows:
Movement on foreign exchange 1,680 - 1,680
Closing liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2023 58,933 10,000 68,933

14 Called up share capital

Ordinary share capital

Tre balance classifled gs ardinary share capital includes the nominal value proceeds on the ‘ssue of the Ordinary equity
share cap:tal comprising orainary shares of 25p

lssued, allotted

Number and fully paid £'000
Ordinary shares of 25
At April 2022 o - _317.350%80 79,328
AL 31 March 2023 o 317,350,980 79,338

The voting nights are disclosed i the Report of the Directors on page 4%
During the year, the Company made no market purchases for cancellation of Ordinary shares of 25p each (2022 none).

Since 31 March 2022 no Ordinary shares have heen purchased and cancelled

Share premium account and capital redemption reserve

Share premium account

The balance ¢ assifed as share premium includes the premium akove nominal value from the proceeds onissue of tne
equity share capita' comprising Ordinary shares of 25p.

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve is used to record the amount equivilent to the nominal vaiue of purchases of the
Company's own shares n order to mainta:n the Company's capiial

16 Retained earnings

Company Group Company

2023 2022 2022

£'000 £°000 £'000

Investment holding (losses) / gains (99,771) (81,449) 472,934 431,260
Realised capital reserves 828859 802,597 918,057 891,806
Total capitai reserves 729,088 721,148 1,330,991 1,323,066
Revenue reserve 72,787 80,727 65277 73,202
Total retained earnings 801,875 801,875 1,396,268 1,396,268

Tnerealisec capital -eserves are distributable by way of & div dend to shareholcers or utilised for the repurchase of share
capital, net of any unrealised losses on investments he d. The “evenue reserve represents accumulated revenue profits
from which annual dividends are patd

Annual Report & Accounts 2523 01
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Notes to the financial statements

cantinued
17 Dividends
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£000 £'000
Amounts recogrised as distributions to equity holders in the year:
Final dividend far the year ended 31 March 2022 of 9 20p
(2021: 9 00p) per share 29,196 28,562
interm dividend for the year ended 37 March 2023 of 5.65p
(2022: 5.30p) per share 17,931 16,819
47,127 45381
Amaunts not recognised as distributions to equity holders
in the year:
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 of 6. 85p
(2022.9.20p) per share 31,259 29156

The “inal divicend has not been inc uded as a habi 1y in these “inancial statemenis in accordance with AS 10 Syvents
alter tnereparting perod'.

Ser outbelow ‘s the tota’ divdend 1o be paig in-egpect of the vear Thisis ne basis an wnich the requirements of s 1158
of the Carporation Tax Act 2010 are cons dered

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£'000 £'000

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 of 5 65p
(2022 5.30p) per share 17,931 16,819
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023

of 8.85p (2022. 9 20p) per share 31,259 29196

49,190 46,075

18 Company statement of comprehensive income
As permitied by Sectian 408 o the Companies Act 2006, Tne Company nas not presented 18 own Statement of
Comprehensive Income The net loss after taxation of the Company dealt w tn 1 the accounts of the Group was
£ 547,266 00012022 £281.687,00C prof i)

19 Net asset value per ordinary share
Net gsset varue per Orcimzqy share 13 based 01 the nel assels attribuiable o Ordinagrv snares of £968.346 000 (2027
£1.562,72900%  encon 317.235C 68012022 317 350.623: Orc nary snares 7 ssue al the year end

20 Commitments and contingent liabilities

A1 21 Maron ZU23 the Sroup hec Ceb te commitments of £20,000 2222 £74000 butnc nontngent 8o tesi2022 4

0z [P Prooerty Investrert Trast
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271 Subsidiaries
the Group has tne following prncipal subsidiares, al. of which are registered and operating in Scotland, England anc

Wales
Name Reg. Number Principal Activities 59‘2
New England Properties Limited 788895 Non-trading company ‘r?:
The Coionnades Limited 2826672 Non-trading company gﬁ:
Showart Limited 2500726 Non-trading company -
Trust Union Properties Residential Developments Limited 2365875 Non-trading company
The Property Investrnent Trust Ltd 2415816 Mon trading compary
The Real Estate Investment Trust Limited 2416015 Non-trading company
The Terra Property investment Trust Limited 2415843 Non-trading company @
Trust Union Property Investrment Trust Limited 2416017 Non-trading company §
Trust Union Properties (Number Five) Limited 24715839 Non-trading company %
Trust Union Properties (Number Six) Limited 2416018 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Seven) Limited 247158360 Nor-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Eight) Limited 2416019 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Nine} Limited 2475833 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Nurmber Ten) Limited 2416021 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Eleven) Limited 24715830 Ner-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Twelve} Limited 24716022 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Numibzer Thirteen) Limited 2415818 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Fourteen) Limited 2416024 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Fifteen) Limited 2416026 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Seventeen) Limited 2416027 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {(Number Eighteen) Limited 2415768 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {(Bayswater) Limited 2416030 Property investment ®
Trust Union Properties (Cardiff) Limited 2415772 Non-trading company g
Trust Union Properties (Theale) Limited 2416037 Non-trading company “;
a
Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Two) Limited 2415765 Non-trading company =
Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Three} Limited 24716036 Non-trading company g
Skillion Finance Limited 2420758 Non-trading company §
Trust Union Finance {1991 Plc 2663567 Investment financing %
FGH Developments Limited 1481476 Non-trading company
FGH Developments (Aberdeen) Limited SC68799 Non-trading company g
FGH (Newcastle) Limited 1466619 Non-trading company '_;‘i
NEP (1994) Limited Q77481 Non-trading company %
New England Developments Limited 1385909 Non-trading company
New England Investments Limited 2613805 Non-trading company
New England Retai} Properties Limited 1447221 Non-frading company
New England (Southern) Limited 1787371 Non-trading company
Sapco One Limited 803940 Non-trading company @
Trust Union Properties Limited 2134624 Non-trading company i
Trust Union Finance Limited 1233998 Investrment holding and finance company %
TR Property Finance Limited 2415941 Investment holding and finance company g,,
Trust Union Properties (South Bank) Limited 2420097 Non-trading company g_
]
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

21 Subsidiaries
“ne Company nas proviced a guaraitee foreach of the
requirement of an audit, 11 kne with the requirements of

se suhsiciar es 1 oraer for them to take the exemipsion froni e
$ 4794 of -ne Companes Act 2006 ‘

Allthe subsciaries & e “ully owned and al: the holdings &re ordinary shares

Al' companies have the reqistered office of Exchange House, Primrose Street, London, EC2A 2NV vatn the except.on of
FGH Developments {Aberdeen) L'mitec which s reqistered 10 50 cotmian Read, Festval Square, Eamburgh ER3 @BV

22 Related party transactions disclosures

Baances and transactions between the Company ane s subsiaanes, which a-e relatec paries, have bees el'minatea on
consolicat’on. The balances are interest free, unsecured and repavabie on demand.

2023 2022
£000 £000

Ameounts due by the Company to subsidiaries per note 13

The Colonnades Limited 23,101 22619

TR Property Finance Limited 13,255 13270 i

New England Broperties Limited _ (20) (20) ‘
36,336 35869

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors, wno are the <ev management personnel of the Company for each of the reievant
calegories spec fiec n 1AL 24 Related Party D.sclosures s prov'ded inthe audited part of tne Directors Rermuneration
Reporton pages 63 and 65

Directors’ transactions

Jirectors ransactions in the Cormpany's shates are consideres to be a re'atec party transaction cue o the naiure of ther
-oe as Directors

Mavements 1 Directors’ shareno ¢ ngs are digcloses wihinthe irectors’ Remuneration Repor: on page 65

23 Subsequent events
There are 1o events 11zt have cocurred subsecuent to The Tnancig vear enc 1o tepot

]
1SN
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

1.0 Alternative Performance Measures
Alternative Performance Measures are numenca:
rreasures of the Comrpany's current or histonical
performance, financial posit on or cash fows, other
thar the financial measures defined or specified 1n the
Franc.al Statemerts.

The measures defined below are cons.dered to be
Alternative Performance Measures They are viewed as
particular'y relevant and are fregLentiy quoted for closed
ended investmert companies

Total Return

Tne NAV Tota! Return s calcllated by reinvesting the
dividerds in the assets of the Compary from the re.evant
ex-dividend date Dividends are deemed to be reinvested
on the ex-d.viderd date as th's ‘s the protocol used

by the Company's benchmark and other .ndices. The
Snare Price Total Return 's calcu ated by reinvesting the
dividends in the shares of the Company from the relevant
ex-divdend date

Year to
31 March

2023

NAV /share price per share at

31 March 2022 {pence) 492 .43 456.5

NaV/share price per share at

37 March 2023 (pence) 30513 2790

Change In year (380%)  (3B.9%)

Impact of dividends reinvested . 25% 26%

Total Return for the year (85.5%) (36.3%)

NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2027 (pence) 41797 39250
NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2022 (pence) 497243 456.50
Change in year 17 8% 16 3%
Impact of dividends reinvested 36% 36%
Total Return for the year 21.4% 19.9%

[y ]
(@]

Ongeing Charges

Tne Ongoirg Charges ratic bas been calculated ir
accordance with the guidance issued by the AIC as the
total of investrent Tanagement fees and admiristrative
experses expressed as a percentage of the average

Net Asset Vaiues thro.grout the year The defirit an of
admiristrative expenses does 'nclude property reated
expenses, tre Gngoing Charges calcu at:or s showr
inclus ve and exclus ve of these expenses 10 anow
comparison of the drect admin'strat ve and managenrent
charges with the majority of Investrent Trusts which do
rot hald any direct property investmerts

Excluding
Including  Excluding  Performance
Year to Performance Performance  Fees & Direct
31 March Fees Fees Property Costs
2023 £000 £000 £000
Management
Fee (note o) 6,240 6,240 6,240
Other
Administrative
expenses
(note 6) 3,705 1,705 1,705
Property
Costs 714 714
Less. Non
recurring
expenses o
o 8,659 8659 7.945
Average Net
Asgsets 1,184,462 1,184 462 1,184,462
Ongoing
Charge 2023 0 73% 073% 0.67%

Excluding
Including Including Performance
Year to Performance Performance Fees & Direct
31 March Fees Fees Property Costs
2022 £000 £000 £000
Management
Fee (note 5) 31,140 6651 6,653
Other
Administrative
EXDENSES
(hote 6) 2.220 2220 2,220
Property
Costs 332 332
Less Non
recurr-ng
expenses }
33,692 9,203 887"
Average Net
Assets T 536,828 1536825 1,536825
Ongoing
Charge 2022 2.19% 0.60% 0 58%

TR Property Investmrens Trust



Net Debt

Net debt is the total value of ‘'oan notes, loars {including
not:anal exposure to CFDs and TRSs) less cash as a
proportian of net asset value

The ret geanng ras been calculated as folows:

Loan notes 58,933 57253
Loans 10,000 35,000
CFD positions (notional exposure) 130,906 144642
Less Cash (36.071) (32109}
Less Cash collateral (included within
‘Other debtors’ in Note 12) - (45088)  (45133)
o 118669 159,653
Equity shareholders' funds 868,346 1,562,739
Net gearing 12 3% 10.2%

The Ongeing Crarges ratio provided in the Company's
Key Irformatior Docuament 15 calculated in line with
the PRIIPs regulations wnich is different to the AIC
methodology above

Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the perfarmance of the Manager
in meeting the Company's objective against a number
of Key Performance indicators, which are considered to
be Aternative Performance Measures. Detars of these
calculations are set out above

Compound Annual Dividend Growth

This is calculated by taking the final dividend - in the time
series, divided by the initial dividerd = thre penied, raised
10 the power ¢f 1 divided by the number of years  Inthe
series

5 year penod

5

a ° 1550
125800 7 oy
,b » ’

12.20p
Premium/(Discount)
The amcurt by which tne market price of a snare of an
investrment trust company 1s ugher or fower than tne Net
Asset Va ue per share expressed as a percentage of the
NAY per share If the share price 15 'ower than the NAV pel
share, tne shares are trading at a discount and iIf the share
price is higher thar the NAV per share the shares are
tracing at a prermium

2023 2022

pence pence

Net Asset Value per share (a) 30513 492.43
Share price per share __(by 27900  456.50
Premium ar {Discount) (¢= (b-a}/a (¢ (B.6%) (7.3%)

Annuzal Report & Accounts 2023

Ar average premum or discourt 1s calcu.ated by takirg
the sum of each daily premriam and discourt for the
perad under review, divided by the number of days in the
given period

2.0 Glossary of terms and

definitions AIFMD

The Alterrative Fund Managers Directive 1s European
legislat’'or which created a European wide framework
for reguiating the managers of "a'ternative investment
funds” (AlFs) It 1s designed to regulate any fund which
‘s nota UCITS (Undertakings for Coilect ve Investment
i1 Transferable Secunties) fund and which 1s managed
or marketed in the EU

AIC

The Asscciation of Investrrent Companies, the
representative body for ciosed-ended investment
companies

Alternative Performance Measure

A firancial measure of financ:al performance or financal
position other than a financial measure defined or
specified Ir the accounting statements.

Key Information Document

Under the PRIIPs Regutations a short, cansumer friendly
Key Information Document is required setting out the
key features risks rewards and costs of the PRIIP and
is Intended to assist investars to better understand the
Trust and make comparisors between Trusts

The docament Inciudes est mates of investment
performance under a number of scerarios. These
calculations are prescribed by the regulation and are
based parely onrecent historical data. It is important
for irvestors to note that tnere is no judgement applied
and these do not 'n any way reflect the Board or
Manager's views.

Key Performance Indicator (KPI')

A KPlis a quartifiable measure that evaluates Fow

successful the trust 1s in meeting its object ves The
Company's KPIg are discussed on pages 35 and 36

MiFID

The Markets in Financ:al Instraments Directive is the EU
legislation that regulates “Sirms who prowide services to
clients linked to "financial instruments” (snares, honds,
units in collect ve \nvestment schemes and dervatives)
and the venues where those instruments are traded

Net Asset Value (NAV) per share
The value of total assets less iiabilities {including
borrowings) divided by the rumber of shares nissee
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure
continued

3.0 Alternative investment fund managers
directive (AIFMD")

Ir accordance with the AlRMD informatior in relation
to the Cempary's leverage and remunerat.on of the
Corrpany's AIFM, Columbia Threadneedie I=vestment
Business L mited, is required to be made available to
investors. Deta led regulatory disclosures ircluding
those on tre AlFM's remuneration po'icy are avallabie an
tne Co'unb'a Threadneedle webs.te or from Coiurbia
Threadneed.e onrequest The numernica remuaerat on
d.sciosures inrelation 1o the AIFM's Tirst relevant
accounting period wi.l be made avaiiable 'n due course

Leverage

Urder the AIFM Directive 1t is necessary for AlFs
to discicse their leverage :n accordance with
prescribed calculations

Although leverage is often used as anotqer term for
gearing, under the AIFMD leverage 1s specifically defired
Two types of leverage calculations are defired, ine gross
a~d commitrrert methods These methods summarily
express leverage as a ratio of the exposure of the AIF
againstits ret asset va ce ‘Exposure typica'y includes
debt the va.ue of any phys'cal properties subject to
mortgage, non-stering currency, equity or cdrrency
nedging at abso-ute notiongl values (even those ne d
purely for r'sk reductior pLrposes, such as forward
foreign exchange contracts held for cuarrency hedging!
and derivative exposure (corverted ntotne equiva ent
urderlying pesitions) The comrmitnent metmod nets
off dervat ve irstruments, whle tne grass method
aggregates them

T+e table be ow sets out the currert Mgk permitted
~1tard tre actual ieve of leverage for tne Corrpary as
at 31 March 2023:

Gross Commitment

Leverage exposure method method
Maximum permitted limit 200% 200%
Actual 138% 130%
T

~e everage "mts are sel by the AIFM ard approved
ytne Board ard are n rewitntre i Titssetolt nire
Ccropanty's Art cles of Assocat or

[

Trssro.dotbeconfused wint~e gear rngsat cut
ctreF ratcs Higoignts wro on s ca Cuated wnder
tretradtora ~etrod set oot by tre Assce at o of
Imsestre~tCorpares TreLlFM sa'soreqoredto
o py i tre gear ~g parareters set by t7e Board o
reator to borroamgs

TR Prozerty In estmert Trust
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

This Notice is important and requires your
immediate attention

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take
you should seek your own advice from a stockbroker,
solicitor, accountant or other independent professional
adviser who is authorised under the Financial Services
and Markets Act 2000 if you are resident in the

United Kingdem or, if not, from another appropriately
authorised independent financial adviser.

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your
shares, please pass this document, together with
the accompanying decuments, to the purchaser or
transferee, or to the person who arranged the sale
ortransfer so they can pass these documents to the
person who now helds the shares.

Notice s hereby gven that the Arnua Genera Meetng
of TR Property Investrment Trust p:c (the 'Companry’) wi'l
be reld at the Rovya:- Autormobile Club, 89/97 Pall Mall,
Londor SW1TY SHS on Thursday 20 July 2023 at 2 30 pir
for the purpose of transactirg the following business

To consider and, If thoLght it pass the foilowing
Resolutions, of whicn Resoluticns 110 12 wi'l be
proposed as Ordinary Reso-utiors and Resolutions 13
and 14 skail be proposed as Specia, Resolutions

1 Torecewve the Report of the Drectors ard the
Aud ted Accounts for the year ended 31 Marcn 2023

2 Toapprove the Directors Remuneration Pol cy.

[@%]

To approve the Directors’ Remruneration Report
{excluding the Directors’ Remuaneration Pohicy) for
the yvear ended 31 March 2023

4  Todecareafina dvdendof 9 8Sp per Ordirary
share

5 Tore-eectKate Bo'sover as g Director

6 Tore-eect Sarab-cane Curt s as a b rector

~J

Tore-eect Tm G lbarks as a Drector

Tore-elect Busoa Sode rde as a D rector

an

el

Tore-elect Ardrew Vaugra as a D rector

12 Toreappo~t KPMG LLF ithe ALdtar as Audtor
cftre Copa-y tono d office o~t tre corc Lsior of
tre ~ext Arnua Gerera Meet ~gcf tre Corpary

11 Toautorse tre Directars tc determine the

remyneration of the Aodtor

TG

Special business

Ordinary resolution

12 THAT msubstitution for al such existing authorities,
the D'rectors be generally and uncondit onally
authorised pursuant to ard in accordance w th
Sectior 551 of ine Cormrpanies Act 2006 {the ‘Act)
1o exercise all the powers of the Company to allot
snares n the Campany and to grant nghtsto
subscribe for, or to convert any security into, shares
nthe Company up to a nominal value of £26,1871,455
(being approximately 33% of the tota issued share
capita' of the Company as at the latest practicabe
date prior to publication of this Notice) provided that
tris authority sha’ expre at tne conclusion of the
Annua Genera: Meet g of tne Company in 2024
(or, if eatlier, at the close of business or 19 Octaber
2024, save that the Corpary shal: be entitled to
rmake offers or agreements before the expiry of this
aJdthonty wh.ch would or m ght reguire skares to
be allotted or nights to be granted after such expiry
ardthe Directors shal be entitled to aliot shares
and grart rights pursuart to any such offers or
agreer-ents as if this authonty had not exprred

Special resolutions

13 THAT ir substitution. for al: sLch existing aathor ities
and subject to the passing of Resolutiom 12 set
oLt above, the Directors be empowered parsuart
to Section 570 and Section 573 of the Act to alot
equity secunties (as defined in Section 56C of the
Act) for cash pursuant to the authorty corferred by
Reso'dtion 12 above and/or ¢ seil snares eld by tre
Compary as treasury shares for cash as f Section
561 cf tne Act did rot app.y to a~y sucr alotmert or
sa:e, provded that tus power snail be ''ted

(a} totreaiotment of equ ty secuntes and saie
of treasury shares for cas~ in conrection witn
ar offer of or irvitation to apply for equity
secartes

[} tocsnare g ders nproportion (as rearly
as may be practicabejtcirerex st ryg
~o.d:ngs, a~d

(11 toroders of ctaer equ ty secoer ties as
req. red by the rgnts of those securt €3 or
astre Board otrerwse corsiders ~ecessary

and sotrat t~e Board —ay mpeoseaty misor
restrictors and —ake atyarrangererts woicn t
Cors ders mecessary or appropr ate to dea ot
treas.ry stares, fractora erttierents record
dates, ega requ atory or pract ca probe~s.n or
Jndertre aws of anv termtory or ary Gtner matter,

a~d

TR Sroperty Ingestrrert Trust



{h) inthe case of the authornty granted Lnder
Resolution 12 and/or m tne case of any sale
of treasury shares for cash, to the allotrent
{otherwise than under paragrapn (i) above)
of equity securties or sale of treasury shares
upto anomiralamount of £3 966,887 (be'ng
approximately 5% of tre total 1ssued share
capital of the Company as at the latest
practicab'e date prior to publicatior of the notice
of meeting),

the power giver by th.s resolution shall expire upon
the expiry of the authority conferred by Resolation 12
above save that the Company shall be entitied to
make offers or agreements before expiry of such
power which would or might require equity securities
to be a’lotted after suck expiry and the Directors
shall be ertitled to allot equity securnities pursuant

to any such offer or agreer~ent as 'f the power
conferred hereby had not expired

14 THAT the Company be and is hereby generally and
unconditonally authorsed in accordance with
Section 7071 of the Act to make one or more market
purchases {within the meaning of Section 693(4) of
the Act) of Grdinary shares of 25p each in the capital
of the Company on such terms and ir such manner
as the Directors may from time to time determine
provided that

{a) the maximum number of Ordinary snares hereby
author.sed to be purchased snall be 14.99% of
the Company’s Ordinary shares in issue at the
date of the Annual Genera: Meeting {equivalent
to 47,570,971 Ordinary shares of 25p each at
30 May 2023, the atest practicable date prior to
pubiication of this Notice);

{b) tne maximum price (exclusive of expenses)
which may be paid for any such share shall not
be more than the higner of:

(1} 105% of the average of the m'ddle market
guotations for ar Qrdinary share as taken
from the London Stock Exchange Dary
Official List for the five bus'ness days
immediately preceding the date on which
tne Company agiees to buy the shares
concerred, and

(i) the Pigher of the price of the 1ast
independent trade and the highest current
independent bid far an Ord'nary share inthe
Company on tne trading venue where the
purchase s carried aut at the relevant time;
ard

Annuzl Repor: & Accounts 20023

{c} the minimum price (exciusive of expenses) which
may be paid for an Ordinary share shall be 25p,
being the nomnal value per Ordirary share,

the authority hereby conferred snall expire at

tre conclusior of the Anual General Meeting of
the Compary irn 2024 {or, fearlier, at the close

of business on 19 Cctober 2024}, save that the
Company shall be ertit ed to enter into a cortract
to purchase Ordinary shares which wil', or may, be
compieted or executed wholy or partly after the
power expires and the Company may purchase
Ordinary shares pursuart to such contract as if the
power conferred hereby had not expired.

C) Lattar

gy Order of the Board
Forand or beralf of
Coiomba Threadreedle
frvestmrent Bus ness Limited
Company secretary

12 _une 2023

Reg'stered Office:

Company registered in England and Wales.
Company number. 84467

13 Woodstock Street

London W10 2AG
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Notes

Shareholders intending to attend the AGM are asked to
register their intention as soon as practicable by email
to the following dedicated address:
trpitagm@columbiathreadneedle.com.

Snarehalders wna are rot able or do not wish to attend
the meet ng in person wil be able to watch a ve webcast
of the meeating Th's wili include the formal busmess of
the meeting, the Manager's presentation and guestions
and answers The webcast wili not enable sharenolders to
participate in the meeting or to vote. However, shareholders
will be invited to sLbmit questors through our webs te,
by 12 3C noon on Tuesday 18 LLly 2023 Questions

may he sent to the following email address: trptagmig
colLmbiatrreadneedie com. Questions of a very sirlar
~ature rmay be grouped tagether to ensure the crderly
rrning of the AGMW

1 Amemberentitied to attend and vote at the meeting
convened by the above Notice 1s entitled to appoint one
orimaore proxies to exercise al or any of tne nignts of the
member to attend speak and vote in big or ner plac

Starenclders are stiongly encouragedtc sabmit tnen
proxy vote 1in advance of the reeting and to apport
tme Chairman of the meeting as tneir proxy. rather thar
any other ramed person wio may not be permttedto
attend the AGM in the event of restrictions or lirts or
attendance A proxy need not be a snareholder of tne
Company To appont 'more tnan ore proxy, tne proxy
ferm shaou d be protocopred and the name of the proxy
ta be appo nted ind cated on eact proxy form togetner
w1 the nurber of shares trat such proxy s appo nted
nirespect of Complet-onand subrriss or of a proxy
mstiuct on wi not prec ude a member from attend rg
and votitg r person at the AGM isubject to ary
restrict 018 or physical attendance)

Tobeva:dary proxy for~ or other nstrument
apporting 3 proxy Mast be returred by post, by cour er
or by ~and to tre Copany’'s Reg:strars, Corputersiare
Imvestor Serv.ces PLC, Tre Pavi o-s, Br dgwater Road
Br st BS99 62Y or ateriat vey by gonglo www
eprexyappomtrant cor and fo owingthe rstruct ors
provded A prox es ust be appairted by no ater tnan
48 ~ours before tretire of tme AGNM I the case of
jont~c ders wnere mmore tnan ore of the jort hoiders
pJrportsto appo-nt a proxy o'y tre apportmest
subtted by tre ~ost semvor rodervy  be accepted
Senanty s determi~ed by tre orderim oo the nantes
of the o ~t "gigers appear 1 t1e Comipany s Reg ster of
Merbers ~respect of thejor-t "o ding itine first ~aed
bergdeemedtre ~ost ser oy

2 I~ orderto be ab e to atterd and wote at tre AGM or
anv adjo.rred rmeebirg (ard a so for the purpose of
CaiC. ating ~ov: ary voles a perscn ray ¢astl a

person mast have nis or her name ertered on the
Companys Reg ster of Members by 2.3C pmor 18
July 2023 {or 6 00 pir or: the date two days before
any adjourred meeting) Changes toertnes on

the Req.ster of Members after th s time snail be

d sregarded i deternmining the nghits of any persor o
attend or vote at the imeeting.

voting w' I oe conducted on 8 poll at the meetirg On
a paltvote every shareholder will through the r proxy
have ore vote for every Ordinary share of which re or
she s the noider

Srareholders should note that #is possibie that,
pursJart to requests made by sharehoiders of the
Comrpary under Secton 527 of the Act, the Company
may berequired to publisn on a webs'te a staterment
setting out ary matter relating to {1 the audit of the
Company’s accolnts (including the Aadtors Report
and the corduct of the aud't) that are to be lad before
the AGM or (i) any circurstarce connected witn

an audior of the Company ceasing to hod office
since the prev:oLs meet'ng at wnich arnda accounts
and reports were aid In accordance witn Section

437 of tre Act Tre Company may not reguire the
sharetolders requesting any sucn webhs te pubiicat on
topay tsexpenses in cormplying with Sectorg 527 or
528 of the of the Act. Wnere the Company is required
to place g staterrent on a website Lnder Sectian

577 oftre Act, ‘tmust forward the statemenrt 1o

the Corpany’s auditor rotater than the time wnen

it makes the statement aval abe on the website.

The busmess whic™ may be deat with at the AGM

ne Ldes ary staterrent that the Corpany ~as beer
required .nder Sectior 527 of the Act to publisk ora
webs te

&y corporator wh ¢ s a Tember of tie Comipary
car appo Nt ore or mare corporate representatives
who Tay exercise or its benata of tspowersasa
member provded tiat they do not do S0 1n relat om 1o
t~e same shares.

Trenghtto appa.~t a proxy dees rot apply to perso=s
whose srares are ~exd on ther bera f by a~otner
person and wno nave beer nornated 10 rece ve
coTrma- cat or frer t~e Corpary 1 accordarce
wite Sectior 146 of tne Acti Nominated Persors
NoT.mated Perscng ~may ~aveargrt urderar
agreerert vt~ e reg stered snareo der whe o ds
shares or trerbenafto be appo ~ted (or to have
soTeDne ese appcitted as a proxy Alertatvey f
roviaated perscrs 4o ot tave suet argat ordo
rotw ST IC eXerc se b tney mMiay rave a rght Lager
such a-agreemerttc g ve rstructonste the persor
rading the shares as tc tne exers se of vot ~g nghts

TR Prozerty Irestment Trust




&  CREST members who wish {G appaint a proxy
of proxies through the CREST electronic proxy
appointmert service may do sc for the AGM to
be held on 20 July 2023 and ary adjourrment(s)
thereof by using the procedures descrbed 'nthe
CREST Manual CREST persoral members ar other
CREST sponsoted members, and those CREST
members who have apponted a voting service
provider should refer to the’'r CREST sponsors or
voting service provider(s), wno will be able to take
the appropriate action on thair behalf. In order fora
pIoXy appomtrrent or irstruction made by means of
CREST to be vaid the appropriate CREST message
(8 'CREST Proxy Instruction’y must be properly
authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK &
lreiand Limited's spec-fications and must contain
the information required for such instructions, as
described ir the CREST Manuat. The message must
betransmitted so as to be received by the Company's
agent, Corrputershare Investor Services PLC (CREST
Participant ID 3RA50), no later than 48 hours before
the time appointed for the meeting For this purpose,
the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as
determined by the time stamp appled to the message
by the CREST Application Host) from which the
Company’s agent 1s able to retrieve the message by
enquiry to CREST inthe manner prescribed by CREST.

CREST members and, where applicable, their
CREST sporsar or voting service provider should
rote that Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited does not
make avallable special procedures in CREST far any
particular messages

Normal system t'mings and limitations wili therefore
apply inrelation to the input of CREST Proxy
Instructions 1tis the responsibility of the CREST
member concerned to take (or, f the CREST member
15 a CREST persona member cr sponsored member
or has appointed a voting service provider to procure
that his or her CREST sponsor or voting service
provider takes) such action as shall be necessary

to ensure that a message 15 transmitted by means
of the CREST system by any particular time Inthis
connection, CREST members and, where applicab e,
treir CREST sponsor or voting service provider

are referred in part.cular to those sections of the
CREST Manua' concerning practical imitatiors of
the CREST systerm and tmings. The Company may
treat as mvaad a CREST Proxy Instruction n the
circumstances set out 1N Regulation 35(5)(a) of the
Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2007

7 Any member attending the meeting (subject to ary
restrictions ir place at the time of the meeting) has
the rght to ask guestiors The Company must calse
to be answered any such guestion relating to the

Annual Report & Azcounts 2023

10

busiress baing deslt w.ti at the meeting but ng such
answer need be givenif {a}10 do so wolld nterfere
unduly with the preparation for the meeting or invalve
the disciosLre of confidential information; (b) the
answer has already beer given on a website 11 the form
of an answer 10 a quest'on, or (¢) {115 undesirable in

the Interests of the Company or the good order of the
resting that the guestion be answered Questions of a
very similar nature may be grouped together to ensure
tne orderly running of the AGM.

Unacceptabie behaviodr on the part of any shareholder
gttending the AGM will not be tolerated and the
Cnairman has the right to deay with such bebaviour as
approprate

Under section 338 and section 3384 of the Act,
members meeting the threshord requirements in those
sections have the right to require the Company (1) to
give to members of the Company entitled 1o recerve
notice of the meeting, notice of a resolution whicn
may properly be moved and Is intended to be moved
at the meeting and/or (N to include in the business to
be dealt with at the meeting any matter (other than a
proposed resolution) which may be properly inciuded in
the business Aresoluticn may properly be moved or a
matier may praperly be included in the business uriless
(@) (inthe case of a reso Jtion only) 1t would, if passed,
be ineffective {whether by reason of inconsistency
w-th any enactment or the company's constitution or
otherwise), (b} 115 defamataory of any person, or (¢} it
is frivolous or vexatious Such a request may be 'n
hard copy form or in electronic form, must identify the
resolution of which notice is to be given or the matter
to be included in the business, must be authorised by
ne person of persons making it must be rece'ved by
the company not later than six clear weeks before the
meeting, ard (in the case of a matter 1o be ncluded
nthe busimess only) must be accompanied by a
staterment setting out the grounds for the request

As at 30 May 20273 (haing the latest practicable day prior
to publication of this Notice), the 1IssLed share capital

of the Company was 317,350,980 Ordinary snares of
Z5peach and nc ordinary shares were held in treasary
Therefore, the total mumber of voting rights inthe
Company at 30 May 2023 was 317.350,98C.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Maragement Ergagerment Committee, the Noination
Committee and the Directars’ | etters of Appointrment
wili be avallabie for inspection for at least 15 minutes
pnior to and during the Company’s AGM

You may not use ary electronic address provided
either ir this Notice or ary refated documents to
communicate for any purposes other than those
expressly stated.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

13 The Company may process perscnal data of atlendees

114

at the Annual General Meeting Trig may ncfude
webcasts, protos, recording and audo and videg 'inks,
as wei' as other forms of personal data. Tre Compary
snall precess such persoral data in accordanice with its
privacy policy, which car found at wowywtiproperty corm;

TR Property Investrert Trast



Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting

Resclutions 1, 2, 3 and 4: Accounts,
Directors’ remuneration policy, Directors’
remuneration report and dividend

Tnese are the resolutions whi.ch deal with the
presentation of the audited accounts, the approval
of tre Directors’ Remureration Policy, the appiova
of tre Drectors’ Remureration Report and the
declaration of the firal dviderd.

The vote t¢ approve the Remuneratior Policy must
be potto sharcholders every three years The vule
to approve the Remunerat'on Report 15 advisory
only and wi I not require the Company to alter any
arrangements detailed in the report should the
resolution not be passed

The Beard 1s propesing a final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2023 of ¢ 85p per Ordinary snare.

If approved at the AGM, the Compary will pay the
dividend on 1 August 2023 to those shareholders or
the Company's Register of Members at the close

of business on 30 June 2023

Resolutions 5 to 9: Re-election of
Directors

These resoiutions deal with the re-election of Kate
Bolsover, Sarah-Jane Curtis, Tim Sillbanks, Busola
Sodeirde and Andrew Vaughan in accordance with
the UK Corporate Governance Code, all Directors
retire on ar annual basis and have confirmed that
they will offer themseives for re-eiection, with the
exception of David Watson who wili retire at the
concLsion of the AGM.

A performance evaluat'on has been completed and
the Board has determined that each of the Directors
continues to be effective and demonstrates their
commitmenrt to their role.

Their biographical detalls, which are set out on pages
44 and 45, demonstrate that the Board has the
appropriate balance of skills, exper’ence,
indeperdence and knowledge to ‘ead the Company.
Accerdingly, the Board urarimausly recommends
thelr re-election.

Resolutions 10 and 11: Auditor

Trese deal with the reappointmert of the Auditor,
KPMG LLP and the autnorsation for the Drectors 1o
determine their remuneration.

Annual Repors & Accourts 2523

Resolution 12; Allotment of share capital

The Board considers it appropriate that an authority
be granted to allet shares in the capital of the
Company up o a maximum rominal amourt of
£26,181,445 is stated in the resolution (representing
approximately ane third of the Company's ‘ssued
share capital as at 20 May 2023, being the atest
practical date prior to pab'ication of this Notice of
the meeting). As at 30 May 2023 the Compary does
not hold any shares ‘n treasury,

The Directors have no present irtention of exercising
this authority and wouid orly expect to use the
authority if shares could be issued at, or at a
premium to, the Net Asset Value per share.

This authority wil expire at the earlier of the
conclusion of the Annual General Meetirg of the
Company to be heidin 2024 and close of business
on 19 October 2024,

Resolution 13: Disapplication of statutory
pre-emption rights

Tris Resolution would give the Directors the
authority to allot shares {or sell any shares which

the Company elects to hold in treasury) for cash
without first offering them to existing shareholders in
proportion to their ex’'sting shareholdings.

This authonty would be imited to aliotments

or sales in connection with pre-emptive offers

and offers to holders of otrer equity securities if
required by the rights of those shares or as the
board otherwise considers necessary, or otherwise
up to an aggregate nomina: amount of £3,966,887.
This aggregate nominal amount represents 5% of
the total issued share capital of the Company as

at 30 May 2023, the iatest practicable date prior

to pubncation of this Notice If the powers scught
by Resolution 13 are used inrelation to a non-pre-
emptive offer, the Directors confirm ther intention
to follow the sharehcider protections .n paragraph 7
of Part 2B of the Pre-empticn Group's Statement of
Principles pubtished n November 2022

Tnis authonty will expire at the earlier of the
conclusior of the Annual Gereral Meeting of the
Compary to be held ' 2024 and close of business
on 19 October 2024
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Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Resolution 14: Authority to make market
purchases of the Company’s Ordinary
shares

Atthe AGM heid 1 2022 a spec.al resclution was
passed wh'cr gave the Directors authonty, Lntil the
conclusion of the AGM i 2023, 1o make market
purchases of the Campany’s own issued shares up to
a maximuir of 14 99% of the 1ssued share capna..

The Board 's proposing that they should be g:ven
renewed authority to purchase the Company's
Qrdinary shares in the market_ It believes that to make
such purchases nthe market at appropriate times and
nrices is a suttabie metnod of enhancirg shareholder
value The Corpany would wibn gu.delines set

fram time to t'me by the Board, 'make either a s ngle
puarchase or a series of purchases, wher market
cond:tions are suitable, w th tne aim of maximising the
berefits to srareno ders

Where purchases are made at prices below the
prevail rg Net Asset Value per share, this w lienharce
the Net Asset Value for the rema.ning shareholders
Tnerefore purchases would only be made at prees
below Net Asset Value Tne Board cons ders that it
wilt be most advartageous tc srarehaiders for the
Compary to be able to make such purchases as and
wher tconsiders the tir'ng o be favourable ard
therefore does rot propose to set a timetable for
making any such purchases.

Tne Companies {Acquis't or of Jwr Shares) (Treasury
Srares) Reguations 2003 eniable comparies r the
Unted Kingdor to ho'd 7 treasury ary of ther owr
srares tney have purcrased with a view 1o possible
resa e at a future date, ratrer than cancellirg them.

If tne Company does re-purchase any of is shares,
t~e Owrectors do not currently intend 16 noid any of

the srares re-purcrased rtreasery The shares so
re-purchasedw i cortrue to be cancel ed

Tne Lst~gRuesoftre Fmancial Conduct Altrorty

Tt tne max > o prce (exoLsive of expensesy wn on
~ay be pa dforary sacr stare ts-al rnotbe rore
t~an tre higrer of

{1y 105% of te average of tne ~idd e market
qectat'ons for ar Ordinary srare as take~ from
t~e London Stock Excrarge Da y Gfficia List for
tme flve bus mess days —red ate y preced ~gire
date om wricm tne Corrpany agrees 1o boy shares
concerned a~d

0 the ~greroftrepreecftre ast ~deperdent
trade ard e gnest current rdepende-t b d for
an Crd rary share tre Comrpany or tretrad ng
/erue woere the parcrase s carred out

118

The mniram price to be paid wil' be 25p per
Ordinary share (be'ng the rominal value) Tne Listing
Rules also | met 8 nsted cormpany to purchases of
shares representing Lp 1o 15% of its issued snare
capita. inthe market parseant tca gereral authority
such asths Forth sreasor, the Compary 'siiriting
1S autnonty (o make sueh purchases to 14 99% of
the Company's Ordinary shares ir issue at the date
of the AGM, this s equivalent to 47 57C 911 Crdinary
shares of 25p eacn (norn na' value £11,892,727)

at 30 May 2023 the latest practicabe date prorto
pub.cation tnis Notice. The autnority wil fast unti!
tne corclusion of the Annua’ General Meeting of tne
Company tobe neld i 2024 or, if earler at the close
of busness o1 19 October 2024,

Recommendation

Tre Board be' eves that the resolutiors cortaired
in this Netice of Annua: General Meeting are i the
best interests of the Comrpany and sharekolders as
a who'e and recommenids that you vote 1 favour
cf ther as yoar Directors interd te do inrespect of
their own beneficia. sharenoldirgs

TR Property Investrert Trag:
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Directors and other information

Directors

O Watsor (Cha rrmarii
K Bolsover

S-J Curtis

T Cribanks

B Sodeince
AVaughar

Registered office
13 Woodstock Stree:
Lonaon W1 C 246

Registered number

Reqgisterea as ar mvestment company in

Engiand and Wales No 84492

AIFM and Company Secretary

Columbia Threadneedle Investment

Business Lim.ted
Exchange House
Primrose Street
London EG24 2NY

Please contact conathar Latter for
Comrpany Secretanal gnd acministrative

matiers

Portfolio Manager

Thames River Capital LLE author sea
and reguiated by the Finarcial Cond.uct

Authority

13 Woodstock Street
London W1 C 240
Teephone 320 353C6375

Fund Manager
4 Phayre-tdadge MRICS

Finance Manager and
Investor Relations
JLE et ACL

Deputy Fund Manager
& Lhonreur

Direct Property Manager
G = Gay MRICS

a.
The Association of
Investment Companies

Registrar
Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilons, Bncgwater Road

Bristoi BS99 627
Telephone. 0370 707 135¢

o

Shareho.ders whe hold the rsharesin
certficates forrr car check ther hoidings
with the Registrar, Computershare Investor
Services PLC, via www.investorcentre.co uk.
Please note that 1o gain access 10 your details
onthe Computershare site you will neec the
holder reference number stated onthe iop'e™
hand corner of your share certficate.

Auditor
KPMCGLLP

15 Canada Square
Longon BEL4 SGL

Stockbrokers

Panmure Gordor {JK: Limited
One New Charage

Lordon EC4P 2AF

Stfel“icoiaus Europe L T ted
150 Cheapside
Longon EC2V 6ET

Solicitors
Slaughter and May
One Bunt i Row:
Loroon ECTY 8YY

Depositary, custodian and fund
administrator

BNP Paribas Secur tes Services
iC Harewooa Avende

Londor N~ AL

Website
s treropersy com

Tax advisers
orcesaterhouseCoooers LIS
Certrat Sguare South Orzhare Street

Newcast e upen Ty re NET A7

—
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General Shareholder information

Announcement of results
The ~alf year results are announced inate November

The full year resu ts are announced i1 early june

Annual general meeting
The AGM is neld in Londonin Juy

Dividend payment dates

Dividends are usua'ly paid on the Grdinary shares
As follows:

interm. Janary
Frai August

Dividend payments

Dividends can be paid to sharehoiders by means of
BACS (Bankers' Automated Clearng Serv ces), mandate
forms for this purpose are avaiiable from the Registrar,
Alternativeiy, shareholders can write to the Registrar
{(the address 1s given on page 114 of this report) ta give
therr instructions; these must include the bank accourt
aumber, the bank accourt title and the sort code of the
bank to which payments are to be made

Dividend re-investment plan ('DRIP')

TR Property Investment Trust plc offers shareho'ders the
opportunity to purchase further shares in the Company
through the DRIP Please note that following Brexit
shareho'ders in the European Economic Area ((EEA)

are o longer able to participate in the DRIP. DRIP forms
may be obtained frorm Computersnare Investor Serv'ces
PLC through ther secure website www investorcentre.
co.uk, oron 0370 707 1694 Crarges apply. dealing
commission of G.75% (subject to a minimum of £2 50)
Goverrment stamp duty of 0.5% a-so apples.

Share price listings

The estimated Net Asset Value and market price of the
Company's Ordinary shares, as well as the discount/
premium, are pubhished daily in Tne Financial Times.
They can also be found on the Company's website at
www irproperty com

Share price information
ISIN GBO0O09064097

SEDOL 0806409

Bloomberg

TRY.LN Reuters

TRYL

Datastream TRY

Annual Repor & Accounts 2023

Benchmark

Deta’ls of tne benchmark are given in the Strategic
Report or page 22 of this Annual Report and Accounts
The benchmark index is pubiisned dally and can

be found on Bloomberg;,

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe Capped Net Total
Return Index in sterfing
Bloomberg TRORAG Index

Disability Act

Copies of this Report and Accounts and other
documents issued by the Company are availlable from
the Company Secretary. If needed, copies can be made
availlable in a variety of formats, including Braille, audio
tape or larger type as appropriate

You can contact the Registrar, Computershare Investor
Services PLC, whicn has instal ed textphones to allow
speech and hearing impaired people who have their own
textphore to contact them dnectly, without the need
for an intermediate operator, by dialling 0870 702 G005
Specially trained operators are available during normal
husiness hours to answer queries via this service,
Alternatively, if you prefer to go through a typetaik’
operator (provided by the Royal Nationa® Institute for
Deaf People) you should dial 18007 foliowed by the
number you wish to dial,

11
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General Shareholder information
continued

Neminee share code

wrere not'fication ras beer provided m advance,
the Company wii' arrange for copies of snarehoider
comirurications to be prov'ded to the operatars of
nominee accoLnts Nommee investors may attend
gereral meetings and speak at meetings when
nvited to do so by the Crairman,

CGT base cost

Taxation of capital gains for shareholders who
formerly held Sigma shares

Upon a disposa' of a'l or part of a shareholder's
hoiding of Ordinary snares, the .mpact or the
shareholders cap:ital gains tax base cost of the
conversion to Sig-ma shares in 2007 and the
redesignaton to Oidinary shares in 2012 snowid
be considered

v respect of the conversion to Sigma r 2007,
agreerrent was reached witn HM Revenue &
Customs ((HMRC™) to base the apportionment of
tre capital gains tax base cost or the proportion
of Ordinary srares that were converted by a
shareholder into S.gma shares on 25 July 2007,

Therefore, if an Ordinary sharenolder converted 20°%
of therr ex'sting Crdirary shares \nto Sigma shares
on 25 ouly 2007 tne capital gairs tax base cost of
tre new Sigma shares acquired wouid be equal to
20% of trie or:giral capital gairs tax base costof
the Ordinary snares that trey reid pre conversian
The base cost of therr remaming holding of Qrdirary
shares would tren be 80% of the onigina capitai
gains tax base cost of the r Ordinary srares he d
pre-Corversior

As part of tve re-designation of the Sigma srares
mto Ord—ary shares = Decerrber 2012, & furtner
snarenolder s agreement was reacned wit~ HMRC
that a sharero.ders capta ga ~stax basecost ~
treir ~ew Ordirary shares srou'd be equ va et
totrercapita ga ~s base cast »ire pre-ex strg
Sigma starest & trercaptaigarsbase costunder
the ex sting agreeent fapplcabel

If in do.bt as tc the corsequerces of this agree~ent
w th HIMRC sharerclders s~ouid corsult witn trerr
owr professiora adv sors

"R Property I vestment Trust



Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc

Market purchases

The Cormpany's shares are I'sted and traded on the
London Stock Exchange Investors may purchase
snares through the:r stockbroker, bark or other firancial
intermedsary

Holding shares in certificated form

Investors may rold therr investmient in cert ficated form.
Ourreqistrars, Computershare operate a dealing service
wrech enables irvestors to by and ae . snares guickly
and easily online without a broker or the need to open a
trading account Alternatively the Investar Certre a'lows
mvestors to marage portfolios qu.ck'y and securely,
update details and view balances w'tnolt annual
charges. Further detalis are available by contact.ng
Computershare on 0370 707 1355 or vistt

www. nvestarcentre co.Lk.

Tne Company offers shareholders tne opportunity

to purchase further shares 'n tre company through

the Dividend Re-investment Plan (DRIP') through the
registrar, Computershare. Shareholders can obtain
further information on the DRIP tnrough their secure
website www investorcentre co uk, or by pnoning 0370
707 1694. Charges do apply. Please nate that to gain
access to your detalls or register for tne DRIF an the
Computershare site you will need the holder reference
number stated on the top left nand corner of your share
certificate.

Saving schemes, ISAs and other plans

A number of banks and wealth management
organisations provide Savings Sclemes and I1SAs
through which UK clients can irvest in the Companry

ISA and savings scheme providers do charge deating
and other fees for operating the accounts, and investors
snould read the Terms and Conditions provided by these
companies and ensure that the charges best suit therr
planned investment profie Mast schemes carry annual
charges but tnese vary between provider and product
Where dea.ing charges apply, in some cases these are
applied as a percertage of furds Invested and others as
aflat charge The optimum way to hoid tne shares will be
different for each investor depending upon the frequency
and size of investments to be made

Detalls are given below of two providers offer.1g
shares in the Company, but trere are Tary other options

Annua: Report & Accourts 2023

Interactive investor (i)

Interactive investor provide and admirister a range of
self-select investirent pians, including tax-advantaged
ISAs and SIPPs (Self-Invested Personal Pers'on), ard
Trading Accounts For mere information, interactive
investor can be contacted on 0345 607 6307, o1 by
VISIHTING Www il CO Jk/

Interactive imvestor offer nvestors 'n the Company a~d
other investrmert trusts a free online sharebolder votng
ardinformation seivice that erables nvestois 1o receve
sharehoider communicatons and if they wish, ta vote on
the shareholdings heid in their account

The Company 1S aso or the interactive super 60 rated list.

Columbia Threadneedle Management Limited ('CT’)
Columbia Threadneedle offer a number of savings

plans for adults and children, from general ‘nvestment
accountsto a range of investment ISAs and a Child
Trust Fund. Each product gves you the ability to

invest In a range of investment trust companies. For
more information see inside the back cover Columbia
Threadneedle car be contacted on 0800 136 420, or visit
ctinvest.co.uk

Please remember that the value of your mvestments and
any income from them may go down as well as up Past
performance is not a guide to future performance You
may rot get back the amount that you invest If you arein
ary doubt as to the suitabiity of a plan ar any investme~t
available within a plan, please take professional advice.

Saving Schemes and ISAs transferred from Alliance
Trust Savings (ATS') BNP Paribas

Following the acquisition of Alllance Trust Savings by
interactive irvestor, ATS sef-directed accounts were
transferred to the interactive investor platform on
141h Cctober 2015

In 2012 BNP Paribas closed down the part of the
busiress tnat operated Savings Schemes and ISAS
investors were given tae choice of transferr'ng their
schemes to Alliance Trust Savings [ATS Y orto a
provider of their own ¢choice, or to close tneir accounts
and se! the holdings

If investors did not respond to the letters from BNE
Par bas. their accounts were transferred to ATS

Fol:owing the acguisit.on of Alance Trust Savings by
interactive ‘nvestar, ATS self-directed accounts were
transferred to the interactive 1nvestar platformon

14 October 2019

MAAIRAD

Lodal nBalens

SlUaWaIELS [BIvueUd FOUBLIDAOD)

3INS0I5ID (WHIY DU A1Bsseln

z
2
5]
o
Q
4
®
G
=




Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc
continued

Share fraud and boiler room scams
Sharenoiders 1 a number of investment Trusts have
been approached as part of a share fraud where they
are informed of an opportunity to sed their shares as the
companry s sabjectto a takeover bid. This s rottree and
Is an attempt to defraud sharenaoders Tne share fraud
a.50 seeks payment of a 'corrmiss.on’ by sharerolders
to the parties carry ng out the fraud,

Shareholders sholld remrain alert to this type of scam
ard treat with suspicion any contact by te'ephone
offering ar attractve investment apportunity, such

as a premium price for your shares, or an attempt to
convince you that paymrent s required in orderto re‘ease
a settiement for your shares These fracds may also
offer 1o sell your shares ;0 companies whick rave nttle or
no vaiue or Imay offer you bonus shares. These so ca'led
‘boiler roor’ scams car also .nvo've an attempt 1o obtam
your persoral ardsor banking rformation wtn wh.chto
commit identty fraud

The caller may be frendiy and reassunirg or they may
take a mare urgent tone, ercourag.ng you 1o act quickly
otherwise you could cse rmoney or rrss out on a deal.

If you have been contacted by ar unactnorised firm
regarding your ghares the FCA wou'd ke to rear
from you You canrepert an urautirorsed firr using
the FCA meiplire o 0800 1171 6768 or by visit ~g therr
webgte which a.s0 has cther useful information

at www fea.org uk

If youreceve ary unsciicted investmert adv ce
make sare you get the correct name of the person
and orgar sat on Iftre ca'ls persist rang up if you
dea with ar chadtnoersed fir you wi's 10t be eilg bie
1o receive payment under tie F narc a! Services
Compensatcn Scherme

Please be adv sedtratthe Board or the Manager wou d
~ever make urso Cctedieeptureca’sof sugha mature
to snalerc'ders

5]
~)
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How to 1nvest

Onc of the most convenient ways Lo invest in TR Property investment Trust plc is through
one of the savings plans run by Columbia Threadneedle Investments.

CT Individual Savings Account

You can use your ISA allowance 10 make an annual
tax-efficient investment of up to £20,000 for the current tax
year with a lump sum from £100 or regular savings from £25
a month. You can also transfer any existing 1SAs to us whilst
maintaining the tax benefits.

CT Junior Individual Savings Account (JISA)*

A tax efficient way to invest up to £9,000 per tax year
for a child. Contributions start from L100 lump sum ar
£25 a month. JISAs or CTFs with other providers can be
transferred to Columbia Threadneedle.

CT Lifetime Individual Savings Account (LISA)

For those aged 18-39, a Lifetime ISA could help towards
purchasing your first home or retirement in later life. Invest
up to £4,000 for the current tax year and receive a 25%
Government bonus up to £1,000 per year. Invest with a lump
sum from £100 or regular savings from £25 a month.

CT Child Trust Fund (CTF)*

If your child already has a CTF you can invest up to £9,000
per birthday year, from £100 lump sum or £25 a month,
CTFs with other providers can be transferred to Columbia
Threadneedie.

CT General Investment Account (GIA)

This is a flexible way to invest in our range of Investrment
Trusts. There are no maximum contributions, and
investments can be made from £100 [ump sum or

£25 & month.

CT Junior Investment Account (JIA)

This is a flexible way to save for a child in our range of
Investment Trusts. There are no maximum contributions, and
the plan can easily be set up under bare trust {where the child is
noted as the beneficial cwner) or kept in your narme if you wish
tc retain control over the investment. Investments can be made
from a £100 lurmp surn or £25 a month per account. You can
also make additional lump sum top-ups at any time from £100
per account.

Charges
Anruat management charges ana other charges apply according to the
type of plan.
Annual account charge
FolHvAT
LANVA|
COEGhEVAL
You can pay the annua! chairge from your account or by direct aenit
(im zda thon Lo any annidg: susscripton imits]
Dealing charges
£12 per fund (reduced to £0 for deals placed through the onl'ne
Columbia Threadneedle Investor Portal) for ISA/GIALISA/JIA
and JISA. There are no dealing charges ona CTE

Dealing charges apply when shares are bought or sola but not
on the reinvestment of dividends or the investmert of monthly
direct debits, Government stamp duty of U 5% also appl'es on
the purchase of shares (where apphcab'e).

The value of investments can go down as well as up and you
may not get back your original investment. Tax benefits depend
on your individual circumstances and tax allowances and rules
may change. Piease ensure you have read the full Terms and
Conditions, Privacy Policy and relevant Key Features documents
before investing. For requlatory purposes, please ensure you have
read the Pre-sales Cost & Charges disclosure related to the product
you are appiyirg for and the relevant Key Information Documents
(KIDs) for the investment trusts you want to invest into

How to invest

To open a new Columbia Threadneedle investments plan, apply
online &t ctinvest.co.uk

Orline appiications are not avallable fyou are rarsferring

an existing plan with another provider to Columbia Threadneedle
Investments. or if you are applying for a new plan in more than one
name but paper applications are availabie at ctinvest co.uk/
aocdments or by contacting Columbia Threaaneeale Investments
New customers

Cal 0800136420** . -~ -~ T

Emai-  invest@columbiathreadneedie.com

Existing plan holders

Ca'l 03456003030 - - T ook 0
Email-  investorenguines@co umbiathreadneedle com

Bypost  Cowmbia Threadneedle Management Limited, = -

P
- - '

nvestor enquinesii.columbiathreadneedle com

YoUCan as0 nvies N the Company THougs on. ne geaung 13 attorms for prvate westors that offor share dea ngund 1SAs Compan ey ne uce Barclays
Stockbrokers, EQj, Halifax, Hargreaves Lansdown, HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lloyds Bank, The Share Centre

* The CTF and JISA accounts are opened in the chd's name and they have access 1o the money al age 18

*= Cails rmay be recorded or monnored for traming and quaity purposes

Tofircounmone v ctinvest.co.uk

0345600 3030, Gier 1 - & O0pr L weekdavs cals ~ay berecorded ormontoredfor na -~ ngand gua "y BUrposes

& Y023 Couriba Thicadnesdis vestmens Couribna Threadneed ¢ lnves: ricsts s the g oba brand name

of the Coumb aane Threadneod.e group of corpan es Faoanc a promotons aie ssuec for markenng and

nforrat on pu poses by Courmib s Threadnesd e Managerent | cced author seoandregu ated nthe UK Dy

e b nanca Condoct Auther oy TO5R00 (D6 221 LK
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